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NOTICE OF 15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Members of United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 
will be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 04:30 P.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio 
Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following businesses: -  

 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES   

 

ITEM NO. 01 – ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:  

To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements and Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 
together with Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon. 
 

ITEM NO. 02 – RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION: 

To re-appoint Mr. Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal (DIN: 00593377) who retires by rotation and being eligible   
offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

ITEM NO.03- APPOINTMENT OF M/S. SBSG & CO, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AS THE STATUTORY AUDITORS 
OF THE COMPANY: 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder as amended from time to 
time (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and 
based on the recommendation of Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, M/s. SBSG & CO, 
Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm registration No. 146428W) be and are hereby appointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a period of 2 (Two) consecutive years from the 
conclusion of the 15th Annual General Meeting (AGM) until the conclusion of the 17th AGM of the 
Company, on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors and 
the Statutory Auditors.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or the director or officials authorised by the Board, be and is 
hereby authorised to determine the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors including the revision in the 
remuneration during the tenure, if any, in consultation with the Statutory Auditors, certification fees 
and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and/or expedient in 
connection therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES 

 

ITEM NO. 04 – APPOINTMENT OF M/S. M K SAMDANI & CO. PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES 
AS THE SECRETARIAL AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY. 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations), read with the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and as per the recommendations 
of Audit committee and Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the Members be and is hereby 
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accorded for appointment of M/s. MK Samdani & Company, Practising Company Secretaries (Peer 
review No. 3320/2023) as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a period of 2 (Two) 
consecutive years from the conclusion of the 15th Annual General Meeting (AGM) until the conclusion 
of the 17th AGM of the Company, on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the 
Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditors.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or the director or officials authorised by the Board, be and is 
hereby authorised to determine the remuneration of the Secretarial Auditors including the revision in 
the remuneration during the tenure, if any, in consultation with the Secretarial Auditors, and to do all 
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and/or expedient in connection therewith 
or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.” 

 
ITEM NO. 05: RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO COST AUDITOR FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2025-
26: 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act,2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the consent of the 
members be and is hereby accorded to ratify the remuneration of Rs.35,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five 
Thousand Only) per annum plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses payable 
to M/s. M.I. Prajapati & Associates, Cost & Management Accountants, Ahmedabad appointed by the 
Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 25, 2025, as Cost Auditor of the Company, based on the 
recommendations of the Audit Committee of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of 
the Company for the financial year 2025-26. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company including its committee of Directors 
thereof, be and are hereby Authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper 
or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

ITEM NO. 06 – TO APPROVE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION LIMITS WITH UNITED POLYFAB 
PRIVATE LIMITED FOR FY. 2025-26:  

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a 
Ordinary Resolution:- 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulations 2(1)(zc), 23(4) and other applicable Regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), if any, read with relevant Rules, if 
any, as amended from time to time and the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and based 
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee of Directors, consent of the Members be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board', which term shall be deemed 
to include any Committee constituted / empowered / to be constituted by the Board from time to time 
to exercise its powers conferred by this resolution)to continue with the existing transaction(s) and/or 
carry out new transaction(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together 
or series of transactions or otherwise) as detailed in the Explanatory Statement, with United Polyfab 
Private Limited ( Companies where Promoter is interested, Related party for the Company) on such 
terms and conditions as may be agreed between the Company and United Polyfab Private Limited , for 
an aggregate value not exceeding Rs. 500 (Five Hundred) crore for sale, purchase or supply of any goods 
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or materials, during the Financial Year 2025-26, as per the details set out in the explanatory statement 
annexed to this notice, notwithstanding the fact that the aggregate value of all these transaction(s), 
exceeds the prescribed thresholds as per provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations as applicable from 
time to time, provided, however, that the said transaction(s) were carried out at an arm’s length basis 
and in the ordinary course of business of the Company.  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board, in connection with any matter referred to or 
contemplated in the foregoing resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all 
respects.” 

 

ITEM NO. 07: APPROVAL OF MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S) WITH UNITED TECHFAB LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS UNITED TECHFAB PRIVATE LIMITED) FOR FY. 2025-26:  
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution :- 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulations 2(1)(zc), 23(4) and other applicable Regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), if any, read with relevant Rules, if 
any, as amended from time to time and the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and based 
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee of Directors, consent of the Members be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board', which term shall be deemed 
to include any Committee constituted / empowered / to be constituted by the Board from time to time 
to exercise its powers conferred by this resolution)to continue with the existing transaction(s) and/or 
carry out new transaction(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together 
or series of transactions or otherwise) as detailed in the Explanatory Statement, with United Techfab 
Limited (formerly known as United Techfab Private Limited), ( Companies where Promoter is interested, 
Related party for the Company) on such terms and conditions as may be agreed between the Company 
and United Techfab Limited (formerly known as United Techfab Private Limited), for an aggregate value 
not exceeding Rs. 500 (Five Hundred) crore for sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, during 
the Financial Year 2025-26, notwithstanding the fact that the aggregate value of all these transaction(s), 
may exceed the prescribed thresholds as per provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations as 
applicable from time to time, provided, however, that the said contract(s/arrangement(s)/ 
transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm's length basis and in ordinary course of business of the 
Company.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to approve transactions 
and the terms and conditions with the related party as defined under the Act and to delegate all or any 
of the powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Committee of Directors of the Company 
or to any one or more Directors of the Company or any other officer(s) or employee(s) of the Company, 
as it may deem fit, and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things and to take such steps as may be 
considered necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto as the Board may in its absolute discretion 
deem fit to give effect to the aforesaid resolution including to settle any question, difficulty or doubt 
that may arise with regard to giving effect to the above resolution and to sign, finalise, settle and execute 
necessary documents, papers etc on an ongoing basis, without being required to seek any further 
consent or approvals of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed has 
given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution for the purpose of giving effect 
to this Resolution  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board, or any person so authorized by the Board, in 
connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in any of the foregoing resolutions, be and are 
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respect.” 
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ITEM NO. 08: APPROVAL OF MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S) WITH UNITED COTFAB LIMITED 
FOR FY. 2025-26:  
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:- 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulations 2(1)(zc), 23(4) and other applicable Regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), if any, read with relevant Rules, if 
any, as amended from time to time and the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and based 
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee of Directors, consent of the Members be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board', which term shall be deemed 
to include any Committee constituted / empowered / to be constituted by the Board from time to time 
to exercise its powers conferred by this resolution)to continue with the existing transaction(s) and/or 
carry out new transaction(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together 
or series of transactions or otherwise) as detailed in the Explanatory Statement, with United Cotfab 
Limited, ( Companies where Promoter is interested, Related party for the Company) on such terms and 
conditions as may be agreed between the Company and United Cotfab Limited, for an aggregate value 
not exceeding Rs. 500 (Five Hundred) crore for sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, during 
the Financial Year 2025-26, notwithstanding the fact that the aggregate value of all these transaction(s), 
may exceed the prescribed thresholds as per provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations as 
applicable from time to time, provided, however, that the said contract(s/arrangement(s)/ 
transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm's length basis and in ordinary course of business of the 
Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to approve transactions 
and the terms and conditions with the related party as defined under the Act and to delegate all or any 
of the powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Committee of Directors of the Company 
or to any one or more Directors of the Company or any other officer(s) or employee(s) of the Company, 
as it may deem fit, and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things and to take such steps as may be 
considered necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto as the Board may in its absolute discretion 
deem fit to give effect to the aforesaid resolution including to settle any question, difficulty or doubt 
that may arise with regard to giving effect to the above resolution and to sign, finalize, settle and execute 
necessary documents, papers etc on an ongoing basis, without being required to seek any further 
consent or approvals of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed has 
given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution for the purpose of giving effect 
to this Resolution. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board, or any person so authorized by the Board, in 
connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in any of the foregoing resolutions, be and are 
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respect.” 

 

ITEM NO. 09: APPROVAL OF MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S) WITH VINOD SPINNERS PRIVATE 
LIMITED FOR FY. 2025-26:  

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulations 2(1)(zc), 23(4) and other applicable Regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), if any, read with relevant Rules, if 
any, as amended from time to time and the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and based 
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee of Directors, consent of the Members be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board', which term shall be deemed 
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to include any Committee constituted / empowered / to be constituted by the Board from time to time 
to exercise its powers conferred by this resolution)to continue with the existing transaction(s) and/or 
carry out new transaction(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together 
or series of transactions or otherwise) as detailed in the Explanatory Statement, with Vinod Spinners 
Private Limited, ( Companies where Promoter is interested, Related party for the Company) on such 
terms and conditions as may be agreed between the Company and Vinod Spinners Private Limited, for 
an aggregate value not exceeding Rs. 500 (Five Hundred) crore for sale, purchase or supply of any goods 
or materials, during the Financial Year 2025-26, notwithstanding the fact that the aggregate value of all 
these transaction(s), may exceed the prescribed thresholds as per provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing 
Regulations as applicable from time to time, provided, however, that the said 
contract(s/arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm's length basis and in ordinary 
course of business of the Company.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to approve transactions 
and the terms and conditions with the related party as defined under the Act and to delegate all or any 
of the powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Committee of Directors of the Company 
or to any one or more Directors of the Company or any other officer(s) or employee(s) of the Company, 
as it may deem fit, and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things and to take such steps as may be 
considered necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto as the Board may in its absolute discretion 
deem fit to give effect to the aforesaid resolution including to settle any question, difficulty or doubt 
that may arise with regard to giving effect to the above resolution and to sign, finalise, settle and execute 
necessary documents, papers etc. on an ongoing basis, without being required to seek any further 
consent or approvals of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed has 
given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution for the purpose of giving effect 
to this Resolution. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board, or any person so authorized by the Board, in 
connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in any of the foregoing resolutions, be and are 
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respect.” 

 

Place: Ahmedabad            For and on behalf of Board of Directors, 

Date: September 06, 2025                          United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

                                                                                                                           
SD/- 

                                    Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal 

                          Chairman and Managing Director 

                                                       (DIN: 00593377) 

                                                                                                                                   

 

 

                Registered Office: 

              Survey No. 238, 239, Shahwadi,  
Opp. New Aarvee Denim, 
 Narol-Surkhej Highway,  
Ahmedabad-382405, Gujarat 

CIN: L18109GJ2010PLC062928 

Website: www.upgl.in 

E-mail: info@unitedpolyfab.com 

 

http://www.upgl.in/
http://www.upgl.in/
file:///C:/Users/UNITED%20POLYFAB/Desktop/Annual%20report/info@unitedpolyfab.com
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NOTES FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR AGM: 

1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) and Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 issued by SEBI 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Circulars”), companies are allowed to hold AGM through VC, 
without the physical presence of members at a common venue. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, 
the AGM of the Company is being held through VC on Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 04:30 P.M. IST. The 
deemed venue of the proceedings of the 15th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at Survey 
No. 238, 239, Shahwadi, Opp. New Aarvee Denim, Narol-Surkhej Highway, Ahmedabad-382405, Gujarat. 
 

2. Information regarding appointment/re-appointment of Director(s) and Explanatory Statement in respect of 
special businesses to be transacted pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and/or Regulation 
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial 
Standard II is annexed hereto. 

 
3. Though, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member is entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is 

entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf, since this AGM is being held pursuant to 
the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to 
appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not  available for this AGM and hence the Proxy 
Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 

 
4. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a 

scanned copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of its Board Resolution or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., 
authorizing its representative to attend the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM on its behalf and 
to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email 
through their registered email address to azizvanak@hotmail.com with copies marked to the Company at 
info@unitedpolyfab.com and to National Securities with copies marked to the Company at 
info@unitedpolyfab.com and to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 
5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

6. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed 
hereto. 

 
7. In line with the aforesaid Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 

2020, the Notice of AGM along with Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent through electronic mode to those 
Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Member may note that 
Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.upgl.in. The 
Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited at www.nseindia.com  and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL i.e. 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
8. Those shareholders who have not yet registered their e-mail address are requested to get their e-mail 

addresses submitted, by  following the procedure given below: 
 
a) In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to info@unitedpolyfab.com. 
 

b) In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested 

file:///C:/Users/UNITED%20POLYFAB/Desktop/Annual%20report/azizvanak@hotmail.com
mailto:info@unitedpolyfab.com
mailto:info@unitedpolyfab.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.upgl.in/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:info@unitedpolyfab.com
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scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
info@unitedpolyfab.com.  

 
c) Alternatively, member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User ID and 

Password by proving the           details mentioned in Point (a) or (b) as the case may be. 
 
d) It is clarified that for permanent submission of e-mail address, the shareholders are however 

requested to register their email address, in respect of electronic holdings with the depository 
through the concerned depository participants and in respect of physical holdings with the 
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited, A 
Wing, Office No. 106 and 107 Dattani Plaza Andheri Kurla Road, East West Industrial Estate 
Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072, E-Mail ID:service@satellitecorporate.com by following the due 
procedure.  

 
e) Those shareholders who have already registered their e-mail address are requested to keep their 

e-mail addresses validated with their depository participants / the Company’s Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent, Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited to enable servicing of notices / 
documents / annual Reports electronically to their e-mail address. 

 
9. It is clarified that for permanent submission of e-mail address, the shareholders are however requested to 

register their email address, in respect of electronic holdings with the depository through the concerned 
depository participants, by following the           due procedure. 
 

10. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM or 
who would like to ask questions or registered themselves as Speaker, are requested to write to the 
Company mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
info@unitedpolyfab.com on or before Saturday, September 27, 2025 so as to enable the management to 
keep the information ready. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending 
on the availability of time for the AGM. 

 
11. Members holding the shares in dematerialized form are requested to notify immediately, the information 

regarding change of address and bank particulars to their respective Depository Participant. 
 

12. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 
170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are 
interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in the Notice 
will be available for inspection in electronic mode. 

 
13. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will 

be entitled to vote. 
 

14. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of 
the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. Instructions and 
other information for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are given in this Notice under 
Note No.15. 

 
15. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, 

telephone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of 
attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC 
code, etc., 

 

mailto:info@unitedpolyfab.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:info@unitedpolyfab.com
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16. Members seeking clarifications on the Annual Report are requested to send in written queries to the 
Company at least one week before the date of the meeting. This would enable the Company to compile the 
information and provide the replies at the Meeting. 

 
17. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) KYC details and nomination by holders of physical securities by October 1, 2023, and linking 
PAN with Aadhaar by June 30, 2023 vide its circular dated March 16, 2023. Shareholders are requested to 
submit their PAN, KYC and nomination details to the Company’s RTA, Satellite Corporate Services Private 
Limited, at service@satellitecorporate.com Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 
requested to submit their PAN to their DP. In case a holder of physical securities fails to furnish PAN and 
KYC details before October 1, 2023 or link their PAN with Aadhaar before June 30, 2023, in accordance with 
the SEBI circular dated March 16, 2023, RTA is obligated to freeze such folios. The securities in the frozen 
folios shall be eligible to receive payments (including dividend) and lodge grievances only after furnishing 
the complete documents. If the securities continue to remain frozen as on December 31, 2025, the RTA / 
the Company shall refer such securities to the administering authority under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibitions) Act, 1988, and / or the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. As per Section 72 of the 
Act, the facility for submitting nomination is available for members in respect of the shares held by them. 
Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting 
Form SH-13. Members are requested to submit these details to their DP in case the shares are held by them 
in electronic form, and to the RTA, in case the shares are held in physical form. To prevent fraudulent 
transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change in 
address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat 
account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned 
Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. 
 

18. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company 
of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to 
leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the 
concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. 

 
19. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 

170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the members 
during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection 
without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. 
September 30, 2025. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 
info@unitedpolyfab.com. In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with the corresponding rules, and 
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing 
Regulations”), the Company has provided a facility to its members to exercise their votes electronically 
through the electronic voting (“e-voting”) facility provided by the NSDL. Members who have cast their votes 
by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may participate in the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes 
again. The manner of voting remotely by members holding shares in dematerialized mode is provided in 
the instructions for e-voting section which forms part of this Notice.  
 
The Board has appointed M/s. Aziz Vanak & Associates, Company Secretaries (M. No. 65309 and COP No. 
27348), as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting in a fair and transparent manner.  
 
The e-voting period commences on Saturday, September 27, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on Monday, 
September 29, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). During this period, members holding shares in dematerialized form, 
as on cut-off date, i.e. as on Tuesday, September 23, 2025 may cast their votes electronically. The e-voting 
module will be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. A member will not be allowed to vote again on any 
resolutions on which vote have already been cast. The facility for voting during the AGM will also be made 
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available. Members present in the AGM through VC/ OAVM and who have not cast their vote on the 
resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through the e-voting system during the AGM. The Scrutinizer will submit their report to the Chairman of 
the Company (‘the Chairman’) or to any other person authorised by the Chairman after the completion of 
the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes casted during the AGM and votes casted through remote e-voting). The 
result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be communicated to the stock exchanges, NSDL and 
will also be displayed on the Company’s website  www.upgl.in . 
 

20. PROCESS AND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS AND 
PARTICIPATING AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM: 
 

i. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 8, 2020, April 13,2020, May 5, 2020 and SEBI Circular dated May 
12, 2020, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business 
to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with NSDL, 
as the Authorised e-voting agency for facilitating voting through electronic means. The facility of casting 
votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be 
provided by NSDL. 
 

ii. There being no physical shareholders in the Company, the Register of members and share transfer books 
of the Company will not be closed. Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in 
the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e Tuesday, 
September 23, 2025 shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as e-voting system on 
the date of the AGM. Any recipient of the Notice, who has no voting rights as on the Cut-off date, shall 
treat this Notice as intimation only. 

 
iii. A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company after the dispatch of 

the Notice of the AGM and prior to the Cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, September 23, 2025, shall be entitled to 
exercise his/her vote either electronically i.e. remote e-voting or e-voting system on the date of the AGM 
by following the procedure mentioned in this part. 

 
iv. The remote e-voting will commence on 9:00 A.M. on Saturday, September 27, 2025 and will end on 5:00 

P.M. on Monday, September 29, 2025. During this period, the members of the Company holding shares 
as on the Cut-off date i.e Tuesday, September 23, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The members 
will not be able to cast their vote electronically beyond the date and time mentioned above and the 
remote e-voting module shall be disabled for voting by NSDL thereafter. 

 
v. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently or cast the vote again. 
 

vi. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company as on the Cut-off date i.e Tuesday, September 23, 2025. 

 
vii. The Company has appointed M/s. Aziz Vanak & Associates, Company Secretaries (M. No. 65309 and COP 

No. 27348), to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting process as well as the e-voting 
system on        the date of the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
viii. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through remote e-

Voting and count the same, and count the votes cast during the AGM, and shall make, not later than 48 
hours from the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour 

https://www.upgl.in/
https://www.upgl.in/


         

 
 

10 | P a g e  
 
 

or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the 
same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes 
shall be final. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 
website www.upgl.in and on the website of NSDL www.evoting@nsdl.com, immediately after declaration 
of the result and shall also be communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company 
are listed i.e. NSE and be made available on their respective websites www.nseindia.com. 

  

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CASTING VOTES BY REMOTE E-VOTING 

The remote e-voting period begins on 9:00 A.M. (IST) Saturday, September 27, 2025 and will end on 5:00 P.M. 
on Monday, September 29, 2025. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-
off date) i.e. Tuesday, September 23, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders 
shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, 
being i.e. Tuesday, September 23, 2025. 

 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system: 
 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode: 
 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and 
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility 
 
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 

file:///C:/Users/UNITED%20POLYFAB/Desktop/Annual%20report/www.evoting@nsdl.com
file:///C:/Users/UNITED%20POLYFAB/Desktop/Annual%20report/www.nseindia.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 
seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their 
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 
without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / 
Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

1. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to 
see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

2. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

3. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 
provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting 
is in progress. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click 
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at above mentioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll 
free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43  

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client 
ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN 
is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 
login and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent 
to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment 
i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit 
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 
your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process 
for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, 
your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 
the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 

casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 
“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 
5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

page. 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS 
 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
scsandcollp@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other 
than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority 
Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in 
their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 
reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll 
free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a request to at evoting@nsdl.co.in  

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL IDS ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR 
PROCURING USER ID AND PASSWORD AND REGISTRATION OF E MAIL IDS FOR E- VOTING FOR THE 
RESOLUTIONS SET OUT IN THIS NOTICE: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to info@unitedpolyfab.com 
 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to  info@unitedpolyfab.com 

 
3. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login 

method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
 

4. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 
password for e- voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 
5. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and 
email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e- 
voting. 
 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM at the Registered Office of the Company 
or through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and 
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

 
3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not 

be  eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 

mailto:scsandcollp@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:info@unitedpolyfab.com
mailto:info@unitedpolyfab.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on 
the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting 
system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. 
After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against 
company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The 
link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. 
Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the 
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the 
notice to avoid last minute rush. 
 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting. 

 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 
mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
info@unitedpolyfab.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 

CONTACT DETAILS 

Company United Polyfab Gujarat Limited  

Survey No. 238, 239, Shahwadi, Opp. New Aarvee Denim,  
Narol-Surkhej Highway, Ahmedabad – 382 405, Gujarat, India  
Tel No. +91 79 2573 1155; Fax No. +91 79 2573 1144 
 
E-Mail ID: info@unitedpolyfab.com  
Website :www.upgl.in 
Tel Num: +91 7575020966 

Registrar and Transfer 
Agent 

Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited  

   A Wing, Office No. 106 and 107 Dattani Plaza 
Andheri Kurla Road, East West Industrial Estate 
Sakinaka, Mumbai-400 072 

 
E-Mail ID : service@satellitecorporate.com  
Contact No. : 28520461-62 

e-Voting Agency & VC  

/ OAVM 

National Securities Depository Limited 

Email: evoting@nsdl.co.in  

NSDL help desk: 1800-222-990 

Scrutinizer M/s Aziz Vanak & Associates 
Email: azizvanak@hotmail.com 
Contact No. 8372956448 

 

mailto:info@unitedpolyfab.com


         

 
 

16 | P a g e  
 
 

 

EXPLANTORY STATEMENT TO THE NOTICE PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE 
ACT”)  

(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified by Central Government under Section 
118(10) of the Act) 

 

Item No. 3: Appointment of Statutory Auditors : 
 
The Members of the Company at the 12th AGM held on September 30, 2022 had approved the reappointment 
of M/s. Rajiv shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 108454W), as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of 3 (Three) consecutive years from the conclusion of the said 
AGM till the conclusion of the 15th AGM. They will complete their two consecutive terms as Statutory Auditors 
of the Company on the conclusion of this AGM. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company (the Board), at its meeting held on September 03, 2025, considering the 
experience and expertise and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has proposed to the 
members of the Company, appointment of M/s SBSG & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 
146428W), as Statutory Auditors of the Company in place of Rajiv Shah & Associates. The proposed appointment 
is for a term of 2 (Two) consecutive years from the conclusion of the 15th AGM till the conclusion of the 17th 
AGM on payment of such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors and 
the Statutory Auditors, from time to time.  
 
The proposed remuneration to be paid to the Auditors for the FY 2025-26 is Rs.5.75 lacs (Rupees Five lacs 
Seventy Five Thousand only). The said remuneration excludes applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses. In 
addition to the Statutory Audit, the Company may also obtain certifications from M/s SBSG & Co. under various 
statutory regulations and other permissible non-audit services as required from time to time, in accordance with 
the provisions of Sections 142 and 144 of the Act. The Board of Directors/Audit Committee/officers authorised 
by the Board, may alter and vary the terms and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, in such 
manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the Statutory Auditors. The process of selecting a 
new statutory auditor was overseen by the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. 
It followed a transparent approach, with firms shortlisted based on a comprehensive set of criteria. This 
evaluation included factors such as independence, industry expertise, technical capabilities, geographic reach, 
audit team quality, and reports on audit performance. Following this thorough review, the Audit Committee 
recommended M/s SBSG & Co. for the role of Statutory Auditors for the Company. 
 
Brief Profile: 
 

SBSG & Co. is an Ahmedabad Chartered Accountant firm who has gained popularity by providing quality CA 
services.  Firm is providing Chartered Accountant Services since last 7 years. We have the knowledge and 
expertise in Direct Tax, Indirect Tax, Audit and Assurance, Company Law and many more area of services 
which required for any business or profession. We are up-to date with growing complexity of the Indian Tax 
system for corporate law structure. 
 
We are experienced and matured professional practitioner assisting for timely complying the tax procedures 
and see that no penalty from Tax department occurs to the clients. This can include timely filling of returns 
and prompt reply of notices. We have the knowledge and expertise in Direct Tax, Indirect Tax, Project 
Finance, Company Law, Audit and Assurance, KPO so client can rest assured that effective tax strategies will 
be planned for them. Firm has an immense experience in Project Financing of corporate and non-corporate 
clients, and liaison with Banks for arranging finance and other facilities which is the very much basic 
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requirement for any growing company. 
 
Our services are aimed at helping our clients in developing proper Accounting, Tax Planning, Management 
and Controlling Systems; complying with various statutory laws and requirements. 
 
We take utmost care in our Audit Assignments to present a True and Fair view of the state of the business. 
We are vibrant team of 3 Partners and well-groomed assisting staff guided by the principle of Hard Work, 
Discipline and Client Care. Leveraging entirely on vast experience of our team members in different fields and 
strong back office set up, we provide services in the various fields.  
 
Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules framed thereunder, the Company 
has received a provisional consent/ certificate that from M/s. SBSG & Co. satisfy the criteria provided under 
Section 141 of the Act and that the appointment, if made, shall be in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. As required under the SEBI Listing Regulations, M/s. SBSG 
& Co., has confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of ICAI.  
 
None of the Directors or other Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are concerned or interested 
(financially or otherwise) in this Resolution. The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item 
No. 3 for the approval of Members. 
 
Item No. 4: Appointment of Secretarial Auditors: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 4, 2025, considering the experience 
and expertise and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has proposed to the members of 
the Company, appointment of M/s. M K SAMDANI & CO., Practising Company Secretaries, Peer Review 
Certificate No. 3320/22023 as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. 
 
Brief Profile: 
 
M/s. M K SAMDANI & CO., a peer-reviewed firm of Company Secretaries with Peer Review Certificate No. 
3320/22023 valid till is managed by Ms. Megha Samdani qualified Company Secretary with a dynamic career 
spanning over 6 years, offering deep understanding of corporate governance, regulatory compliance, and 
company law. The firm operates out of modern, well-systematized office located in Ahmedabad. 

 
The firm provides a wide range of services to a diverse network of clients in matters relating to Corporate 
Laws, including Company Law. It plays a proactive role in continuously supporting leading business houses 
with establishments across the country, government corporations, joint ventures, MNCs, and leading banks. 
The firm's focus areas include advisory services on the Companies Act and Rules framed thereunder, listing 
compliances, SEBI Act and Rules, restructuring, revival and rehabilitation, winding-up matters, and 
appearances before the National Company Law Tribunal, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA Offices), SEBI, 
SAT, due diligence, etc. 
 
Terms of appointment and fees: 
The proposed appointment is for a term of 2 (Two) consecutive years, from the conclusion of the 15th AGM 
until the conclusion of the 17th AGM. The Secretarial Auditor shall conduct the Secretarial Audit for the 
financial years ending March 31, 2026 to March 31, 2028.  
 
The proposed remuneration to be paid to the Secretarial Auditors for FY 2025-26 is Rs.2.8 lacs (Rupees two 
lacs Eighty thousand only). This remuneration excludes applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses. In 
addition to the Secretarial Audit, the Company may also obtain certifications from M/s. M K SAMDANI & CO. 
under various statutory provisions and other permissible non-audit services as required from time to time. 
The Board of Directors or officers authorised by the Board may alter and vary the terms and conditions of 
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appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with 
the Secretarial Auditors. 
 
The above disclosures are incompliance of the provisions of Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. None of the Directors or other Key Managerial Personnel 
and their relatives, are concerned or interested (financially or otherwise) in this Resolution. The Board 
recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 for the approval of members 

 
 
Item No. 05: Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditor Payable for the Financial Year 2024-25: Ordinary 
Resolution  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the 
appointment of M/s. M.I. Prajapati & Associates, Cost & Management Accountants, Ahmedabad to conduct the 
audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2026 at a remuneration of 
Rs.35000/- (Rupees Thirty Five Thousand Only) per annum, as applicable, at its meeting held on 26th May, 2025. 
 
In pursuance of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors 
has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.  
 
Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 06 of 
the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 
31, 2024. 
 
The Board recommends the passing of Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 06 of the Notice by the 
members.  
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned 
or interested financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at Item No. 06 of the Notice. 
 
In respect of Item No. 06, 07, 08: Material Related Party Transaction(S) with United Polyfab Private Limited, 
United Techfab Limited (formerly known as United Techfab Private Limited) & United Cotfab Limited: 
 
Pursuant to the Provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,2013 ('the Act") read with related Rules 
thereunder state that any related party transaction in relation to sale, purchase or supply of goods or material, 
directly or through appointment of agent amounting to or exceeding l0% or more of the turnover of the 
Company as per the audited financial statement for the preceding financial year shall not be entered into by the 
company except with the prior approval of the Company by a resolution. The proviso to Regulation 23(l) of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
("the SEBI Listing Regulations"), as amended by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2021, effective April l, 2022, states that a 
transaction with a related party shall be considered material, if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually 
or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds rupees one thousand crore or ten 
per cent of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of 
the listed entity, whichever is lower, and Regulation 23(4) of SEBI Listing Regulations mandates the requirement 
of prior approval of members of a listed entity, by means of an ordinary resolution, for all material related party 
transactions and its subsequent material modification(s), even if such transactions are in the ordinary course of 
business of the concerned company and at an arm's length basis. During the Financial Year 2025-26, the 
Company, proposes to enter into certain related party transaction(s) as mentioned below, on mutually agreed 
terms and conditions, and the aggregate of such transaction(s) are expected to cross the applicable materiality 
thresholds. Accordingly, as per the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, approval of the Members is being sought 
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for all such transactions proposed to be undertaken by the Company. All the said transactions shall be in the 
ordinary course of business of the Company and on an arm’s length basis. The Board of Directors, at its meeting 
held on May 26, 2025, upon recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Company, at its meeting held on 
same day, had, subject to approval of members of the Company, approved an aggregate limit not exceeding Rs. 
500 crores per company for transactions involving purchase and sales for the Financial Year 2025-26, with United 
Polyfab Private Limited, United Techfab Limited (formerly known as United Techfab Private Limited), United 
Cotfab Limited.  
The Business of the Company may be impacted if the transactions of the nature stated herein above are not 
carried on by the company or are restricted. It is in the interest of the Company therefore, to continue or engage 
in the said transactions as they contribute to business growth, competitiveness, and efficiency of the Company. 
On the recommendation of Audit Committee, Board of Directors of the Company hereby recommend approval 
by Members for Related Party Transaction to be entered by Company upto Rs. 500 Crores per company/group 
entity for FY 2025-26, i.e. with United Polyfab Private Limited, United Techfab Limited (formerly known as United 
Techfab Private Limited), United Cotfab Limited.  
 
The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the related parties as 
defined thereunder (whether such related party(ies) is a party to the aforesaid transactions or not), shall not 
vote to approve resolutions under Item No. 06,07 and 08.  
 
Except Mr. Gagan Mittal & Mr. Nirmalkumar Mittal along with and/or his relatives are concerned or interested 
in the resolutions. None of the other Directors and/ or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their 
respective relatives are concerned or interested either directly or indirectly, except to the extent of their 
shareholding in the Company, if any, in the Resolution mentioned at Item No. 06, 07 and 08 of the Notice.  
The Board recommends the relevant Special resolution set forth at Item no. 06,07 and 08 in the Notice for the 
approval of the Members.  
 
Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and provisions of Regulation 
23 of SEBI Listing Regulations read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 
22, 2021, the requisite information is given below: 
 

Sr. No. Particulars Resolution No. 

  06 07 08 

1.  Name of the Related 
Party 

United Polyfab Private 
Limited 

United Techfab Limited 
(formerly known as 
United Techfab Private 
Limited) 

United Cotfab Limited 

Mr. Gagan 
Nirmalkumar  Mittal 

,Mr. Nirmalkumar 
Mittal and Ritesh 
Hada is also the 
Promoter & Director 
of United Polyfab 
Private Limited 

Mr. Gagan 
Nirmalkumar  Mittal 

,Mr. Nirmalkumar Mittal 
and Ritesh Hada is also 
the Promoter & Director
 United 

Techfab Limited 
(formerly known as 
United Techfab Private 
Limited) 

Mr. Gagan 
Nirmalkumar Mittal 
and ,Mr. Nirmalkumar 
Mittal is also the 
Promoter  &  Director 
United Cotfab Limited 

2. Nature of Relationship 
with Listed Entity 

3. Type of transaction Purchase & Sale Purchase & Sale Purchase & Sale 
4. Material terms and 

particulars of the 
proposed Transaction 

Material terms and particulars of the proposed Transaction 

5. Tenure of the 
proposed transaction 

April 1, 2025 to March 
31, 2026 and onwards 

April 1, 2025 to March 
31, 2026 and onwards 

April 1, 2025 to March 
31, 2026 and onwards 
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6. Value of the proposed 
transaction (not to 
exceed) 

Upto Rs. 500 Crores Upto Rs. 500 Crores Upto Rs. 500 Crores 

7. Value of RPT as % 
(appx.) of Company’s 
preceding audited 
annual turnover. 

RPT  Value:-  208.61 

  

 

RPT Value- 228.9 
Crores 
 

RPT Value- 57.04 
Crores 

 

8. If the transaction 
relates to any loans, 
inter – corporate 
deposits, advances or 
investments made or 
given by the listed 
entity or its subsidiary: 

Not Applicable 

9. 

 
Justification as to 
why the RPTs are in 
the interest of the 
Company 

Related Party Transactions has been evaluated by Audit Committee and 
Audit Committee has granted its omnibus approval for Transactions for FY 
2024-25 as well as for FY 2025-26. The Business of the Company may be 
impacted if the transactions of the nature stated herein above are not 
carried on by the company or are restricted. It is in the interest of the 
Company therefore, to continue or engage in the said transactions as they 
contribute to business growth, competitiveness, and efficiency of the 
Company. 

These transactions were on ordinary course of Business and on Arm’s 
Length Price as per Audit Report of Statutory Auditor for FY ending on 
March 31, 2025. The report is available for inspection by the Members of 
the Company. They may follow the process for inspection of document as 
mentioned in ‘Notes’ section forming part of this Notice. 
 

10. Any other 
information that may 
be relevant 

All important information forms part of the statement setting out 
material facts, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
forming part of this Notice. 

 
 

In respect of Item No. 09: Material Related Party Transaction(S) with Vinod Spinners Private Limited: 

Pursuant to the Provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,2013 ('the Act") read with related Rules 
thereunder state that any related party transaction in relation to sale, purchase or supply of goods or material, 
directly or through appointment of agent amounting to or exceeding l0% or more of the turnover of the 
Company as per the audited financial statement for the preceding financial year shall not be entered into by 
the company except with the prior approval of the Company by a resolution. The proviso to Regulation 23(l) 
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
("the SEBI Listing Regulations"), as amended by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2021, effective April 1, 2022, states that a 
transaction with a related party shall be considered material, if the transaction(s) to be entered into 
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds rupees 500 crore or 
ten per cent of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements 
of the listed entity, whichever is lower, and Regulation 23(4) of SEBI Listing Regulations mandates the 
requirement of prior approval of members of a listed entity, by means of an ordinary resolution, for all material 
related party transactions and its subsequent material modification(s), even if such transactions are in the 
ordinary course of business of the concerned company and at an arm's length basis. During the Financial Year 
2025-26, the Company, proposes to enter into certain related party transaction(s) as mentioned below, on 
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mutually agreed terms and conditions, and the aggregate of such transaction(s) are expected to cross the 
applicable materiality thresholds. Accordingly, as per the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, approval of the 
Members is being sought for all such transactions proposed to be undertaken by the Company. All the said 
transactions shall be in the ordinary course of business of the Company and on an arm’s length basis. The 
Board of Directors, at its meeting held on May 26, 2025, upon recommendation of the Audit Committee of the 
Company, at its meeting held on same day, had, subject to approval of members of the Company, approved 
an aggregate limit not exceeding Rs. 500 crores per company for transactions involving purchase and sales for 
the Financial Year 2025-26, with Vinod Spinners Private Limited, related parties within the definition of Section 
2(76) of the Act and 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations The Business of the Company may be impacted if 
the transactions of the nature stated herein above are not carried on by the company or are restricted. It is in 
the interest of the Company therefore, to continue or engage in the said transactions as they contribute to 
business growth, competitiveness, and efficiency of the Company. On the recommendation of Audit 
Committee, Board of Directors of the Company hereby recommend approval by Members for Related Party 
Transaction to be entered by Company upto Rs. 500 Crores per company/group entity for FY 2025-26, i.e. with 
Vinod Spinners Private Limited. The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the related parties as defined thereunder (whether such related party(ies) is a party to the 
aforesaid transactions or not), shall not vote to approve resolutions under Item No.09. 
 
Except Mr. Gagan Mittal & Mr. Nirmalkumar Mittal along with and/or his relatives are concerned or interested 
in the resolutions. None of the other Directors and/ or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their 
respective relatives are concerned or interested either directly or indirectly, except to the extent of their 
shareholding in the Company, if any, in the Resolution mentioned at Item No. 09 of the Notice. The Board 
recommends the relevant Special resolution set forth at Item no. 09 in the Notice for the approval of the 
Members. 

Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and provisions of Regulation 
23 of SEBI Listing Regulations read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 
22, 2021, the requisite information is given below: 

 
 

Sr. No. Particulars Resolution No. 

  09 

1. Name of the Related Party Vinod Spinners Private Limited 
2. Nature of Relationship with Listed 

Entity 
Mr. Nirmalkumar Mittal is also the Promoter & 
Director of Vinod Spinners Private Limited 

3. Type of transaction Purchase & Sale 
4. Material terms and particulars of 

the proposed Transaction 

Material terms and particulars of the proposed 
Transaction 

5. Tenure of the proposed transaction April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2026 and onwards 
6. Value of the proposed transaction 

(not to exceed) 

Upto Rs. 500 Crores 

7. Value of RPT as % (appx.) of 
Company’s preceding audited 
annual turnover. 

RPT Value- 64.91 Crores 

 

8. If the transaction relates to any 
loans, inter – corporate deposits, 
advances or investments made or 
given by the listed entity or its 
subsidiary: 

Not Applicable 
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9. 
 

Justification as to why the RPTs 
are in the interest of the Company 

Related Party Transactions has been evaluated by Audit 
Committee and Audit Committee has granted its 
omnibus approval for Transactions for FY 2024-25 as well 
as for FY 2025-26. The Business of the Company may be 
impacted if the transactions of the nature stated herein 
above are not carried on by the company or are 
restricted. It is in the interest of the Company therefore, 
to continue or engage in the said transactions as they 
contribute to business growth, competitiveness, and 
efficiency of the Company. 
These transactions were on ordinary course of Business 
and on Arm’s Length Price as per Audit Report of 
Statutory Auditor for FY ending on March 31, 202. The 
report is available for inspection by the Members of the 
Company. They may follow the process for inspection of 
document as mentioned in ‘Notes’ section forming part 
of this Notice. 

10. Any other information that may 
be relevant 

All important information forms part of the statement 
setting out material facts, pursuant to Section 102(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 forming part of this Notice. 

 
 
 
 For and on behalf of Board of Directors, 

United Polyfab Gujarat Limited  
 
 
 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 06, 2025 

 
 

 
                                                                       SD/- 
 

Gagan N. Mittal 
Chairman and Managing Director 

(DIN: 00593377) 
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Disclosure under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Secretarial Standards-2 issued by ICSI: 

 

Name    Mr. Gagan Mittal 

Date of Birth February 6, 1982 

Qualification H.S.C. 

Experience - Expertise in specific functional areas - 
Job profile and suitability 

He has been into Textile business since last fifteen 
years. He looks after day to day operations including 
manufacturing, management and finance of the 
company 

No. of Shares held as on March 31, 2025 32,96,850 Equity Shares 

Terms & Conditions Liable to retire by rotation 

Remuneration Last Drawn Rs. 18,00,000/- 

Remuneration sought to be paid Rs. 30,00,000/- 

Number of Board Meetings attended during the 
Financial Year 2024-25 

09 out of 09 

Date of Original Appointment November 16, 2010 

Date of Appointment in current terms October 1, 2025 

Directorships held in other public companies 
including deemed public companies and excluding 
our Company, Section 8 Companies, Struck off 
Companies and LLPs. 

Vinod Denim Limited 

United Cotfab Limited 

United Techfab Limited 

Memberships / Chairmanships of committees of 
public companies* 

Membership – 2 Committees 

Chairmanship – Nil 

Inter-se Relationship with other Directors. Son of Mr. Nirmalkumar Mangalchand Mittal 

*Committee includes the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Grievance Committee 

 

 For and on behalf of Board of Directors, 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited  

 
 
 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 06, 2025 

 
 

 
                                                                     SD/- 
 

Gagan N. Mittal 
Chairman and Managing Director 

(DIN: 00593377) 

 
 



          

 
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL 
 

At the helm of our organization is a dynamic management team whose strategic acumen, industry 
expertise, and collaborative spirit are shaping our path forward. Bolstered by decades of leadership 
experience across core functions—from finance and operations to innovation and customer success—
each leader brings a unique strength that enhances our collective capability. United by a forward-looking 
vision and grounded in a shared commitment to excellence, this team is dedicated to driving sustainable 
growth, fostering innovation, and empowering our people. 

 
GAGAN MITTAL                                                                         NIRMAL MITTAL                                                      

            
 MANAGING DIRECTOR & CHAIRMAN                                                   NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR      

 
 

 
            RITESH HADA                                           SAFAL PATEL                                     SEJAL PARMAR                                                                                                
 
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR                 INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR                   INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR                                                                        

 
 
 

                                      RASHMI OTWANI                                              MAHESH GUPTA 
 

                              INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR                              CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                                                                
 
 

VIDYA BAGHEL 
 

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
 

“Corporate leadership embodies more than just strategic direction—it establishes the tone, integrity, 
and cultural compass for the entire organization. At its core, effective corporate leaders navigate 
complex challenges, inspire high-performance, and uphold a shared vision while modeling values such 
as honesty, decisiveness, and collaboration. Their influence shapes not only the company's objectives 
and goals, but also the ethical standards and working culture that guide every level of the enterprise.” 
 



          

 
 

 
Message from the Chairman… 
“Threads of Trust, Fabric of Success” 
 

..

 
 

Dear Shareholders, 
 
It is with immense pride and heartfelt gratitude that I reflect on our shared journey over the past year. 
UPGL continues to stand firm on the foundational pillars of quality, vertical integration, and operational 
excellence—embodied in our seamless, end-to-end textile capabilities, from spinning through weaving, 
dyeing, and fabric manufacturing. 
 
Our guiding philosophy— “Produce the best, offer the right-quality material to the customer at the 
right price”—continues to drive every decision, fortified by our robust production capacity and 
unwavering commitment to our core values: transparency, competency, teamwork, commitment, and 



          

 
 

superior service. 
 
This year, we aim to further solidify our unification across the value chain, upraise product quality, and 
innovate through strategic investments in technology and market expansion. 
 
India's Textile Economy: A Growth Engine Fuelling Our Potential 
 
UPGL’s aspirations are harmoniously aligned with the rising trajectory of India’s textile sector: 

• The textile industry contributes roughly 2.3% of India’s GDP, accounts for around 13% of 
industrial production, and represents about 12% of the country's exports, while directly and 
indirectly employing over 35 million people. 

• The sector’s growth outlook is robust: projections indicate a CAGR of approximately 10%, with 
expectations for the industry's share of GDP to double to 5% by 2030. 

• Notably, the technical textiles segment—a key focus area for us—is expected to expand at an 
impressive ~15% CAGR, presenting a significant growth opportunity  

• Complementing this growth are substantial government interventions: 
 

PM-MITRA Parks 
• Under the Mega Integrated Textile Region and Apparel (PM-MITRA) scheme, seven mega‐parks 

are being developed across India—Turquoise states including Tamil Nadu, Telangana, Gujarat, 
Karnataka, Madhya Pradesh, Uttar Pradesh, and Maharashtra  

• These parks are expected to catalyse ₹70,000 crore in investment and generate 20 lakh (2 
million) direct and indirect jobs over the coming years  

• In fact, some states—such as Madhya Pradesh—have already secured investment commitments 
exceeding ₹16,000 crore, ahead of formal groundbreakings  
 

Production-Linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme 
• The PLI scheme for textiles, introduced in 2021, continues to drive capital influx—so far 

channelling ₹7,343 crore in investments, generating a turnover of ₹4,648 crore, and contributing 
₹538 crore in exports  

• The scheme has already approved 64 proposals, with expectations to attract up to ₹25,000 crore 
in additional investments and create ~250,000 jobs within the next few years. 

• Collectively, the PLI and PM-MITRA initiatives aim to steer ₹95,000 crore in textile sector 
investments and generate 2.25 million new jobs nationwide 

 
As India advances toward its goal of becoming a global textile manufacturing hub—supported by 
favorable policies, rising domestic demand, and burgeoning export prospects—UPGL is ideally 
positioned to ride this wave of opportunity. 
 
UPGL: Positioned to Lead and Thrive 
With the vast industry tailwinds and policy momentum in place, UPGL is uniquely poised to seize 
emerging opportunities: 



          

 
 

• Production Prowess: Our vertically integrated and technology-enabled setup positions us to 
scale rapidly and deliver premium fabrics with agility and precision. 

• Technical Textile Focus: Given the soaring demand in specialized textile segments—driven by 
both domestic and global markets—our capabilities in innovation, quality, and responsiveness 
are key differentiators. 

• Policy Alignment: Through PM-MITRA, PLI, and complementary schemes such as SAMARTH (skill 
building) and the National Technical Textiles Mission (NTTM), we benefit from a conducive 
ecosystem promoting modernization, exports, and skill enhancement 

 
Strategic Focus for the Year Ahead 
Building on this solid foundation, we are stepping into the new year with renewed ambition: 

• Value-Chain Unification: We are intensifying efforts to further integrate and streamline our 
operations across the textile value chain, aiming to eliminate inefficiencies and foster synergies. 

• Elevated Product Excellence: We remain steadfast in enhancing our product offerings—
especially in the technical textiles domain—through rigorous quality assurance, research-driven 
refinement, and production precision. 

• Technology-Led Innovation: Strategic investments in cutting-edge technologies—encompassing 
automation, analytics, and sustainable manufacturing practices—will fortify our agility, 
productivity, and competitiveness across markets. 

 
Charting Our Path Forward 
With India’s textile industry steering toward a future defined by scale, innovation, and sustainability, 
UPGL is ready to align and lead: 

• We remain focused on expanding production capabilities, enhancing our product offerings both 
domestically and abroad. 

• Our investments in modern technology and agile operations strengthen our ability to deliver 
premium fabrics at competitive value. 

• As the industry evolves—with increasing emphasis on technical textiles, improved infrastructure, 
and export diversification—it is our vision to grow in lockstep with broader national progress. 
 

To our valued shareholders, partners, and team—your trust and belief fuel our ambition. Together, we 
will elevate UPGL—not only in terms of shareholder value but also as a defining force in India’s textile 
renaissance. 
 
In unity and action, we stride forward—poised to enhance UPGL’s legacy and India’s rise as a global 
textile powerhouse. 
 
Warm regards, 
 
Gagan Mittal 
Chairman & Managing Director 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 



          

 
 

                                    DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
 

 
To 
The Members, 
UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED, 
 

Your directors are pleased to present the Fifteenth Annual Report of your company together with the Audited 
Financial Statement of your company for the financial year ended, 31st March, 2025. 
 

The summarized financial results for the year ended on 31
st March, 2025 is as under: 

 
1. STOCK SPLIT: 

The Board approved a sub-division of equity shares—splitting each ₹10 face-value share into 10 shares of 
₹1 each. The approval from National Stock exchange was received on February 12, 2025 and implemented 
with a record/ex-date of May 2, 2025. 
 

2. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
Summary of the financial results of the Company for the year under review is as under: 

                                                                                                                                                       (Rs. In lakhs) 

 
3. DIVIDEND: 

Keeping in mind the need to conserve resources, Board of directors do not recommend any dividend on 
Equity Shares for the year. In terms of the provisions of Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, your Company has formulated a Dividend Distribution Policy 
and the same is available on the Company’s Website at www.upgl.in. 

 
 

Particulars Standalone Consolidated 

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25  2023-24 

Net Total Income 60322.48 91131.43 60,221.77 91,131.43 

Less: Operation and Admin Expenses 58197.20 89900.27 58,197.61 89,800.38 

Profit before Taxes 2125.28 1231.16 2,124.87 1,231.05 

Profit before interest and tax (PBIT) 2125.28 1231.16 2124.87 1231.05 

Less: Total Tax Expense 356.08 570.24 355.96 570.21 

Profit after tax 1769.21 660.92 1768.91 660.85 

Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefit 
plans 

0.41 3.88 0.41 3.88 

Less: Income tax impact on above (0.10) (0.68) (0.10) (0.68) 

Restated other comprehensive income for the 
period/year 

0.31 3.21 0.31 3.21 

Restated total comprehensive income/(loss) 
for the period/year 

1769.51 664.13 1769.22 664.05 

www.upgl.in.


          

 
 

4. DEPOSIT: 

In terms of the provision of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules, 
your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits during the year under review. 
 

5. CHANGES IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
There is no significant change made in the nature of the company during the financial year. 

 
6. NAME OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR 

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

During the year under review, no company/body corporate/any other entity has ceased to be the 
subsidiary Joint Ventures or Associate Companies. 

7. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
As on 31st March, 2025, the Company has one Whole owned Subsidiary: 
 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Subsidiary/ Associate Companies Country of 
Incorporation 

Percentage of 
holding 

1.  UNITED GREEN DISTILLERIES PRIVATE LIMITED India 100% 

 
The Board reviews the affairs of the Company’s subsidiary at regular intervals. In accordance with section 
129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company which form part of this Annual Report. Further, a statement containing salient features of the 
Financial Statements of the Company’s subsidiary is given in prescribed form AOC-1 which forms part of 
this Annual report. The said Form also highlights the financial performance of the subsidiary and associate 
companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
In accordance with section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Financial Statements of the subsidiary 
and associate companies are available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the 
Company during business hours on all days except Saturday, Sunday and Public Holiday. Any person 
desirous of obtaining said financial statement may write info@unitedpolyfab.com. The Annual Report of 
the Company and Audited Financial Statements of each of the subsidiary companies have been placed on 
the website of the Company www.upgl.in. 

8. SHARE CAPITAL: 
Authorized Capital 
As on 31st March 2025, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company is ₹ 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-
Five Crore Only) divided into 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each. 
 
 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital: 
As on 31st March, 2025, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company is 
₹22,95,15,500/-comprising of 2,29,51,550 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each. 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
As a global enterprise, United Polyfab Gujarat Limited recognizes that both external and   internal risks—
ranging from market fluctuations to operational disruptions—can materially affect our performance. To 
address these effectively, we have implemented a structured and proactive Risk Management process. 

info@unitedpolyfab.com.%20
file:///C:/Users/UNITED%20POLYFAB/Desktop/Annual%20report/www.upgl.in


          

 
 

We maintain an ongoing framework for identifying risks across all dimensions—strategic, operational, 
financial, legal, and technological. Each risk is rigorously analyzed for likelihood and potential impact. 
Mitigation Planning & Implementation based on the assessment, targeted strategies—including process 
enhancements, cost controls, contingency protocols, and technological safeguards—are devised and 
deployed to minimize exposure. Our internal control systems serve as a safety net—guiding responsible 
decision-making and protecting organizational assets while ensuring efficient utilization of resources. Risk 
oversight remains a central responsibility of the Board, with governance processes designed to integrate 
risk considerations into strategic decisions. This comprehensive framework ensures unwavering readiness 
to identify and manage risks, reinforcing our resilience and propelling our pursuit of sustained value 
creation. 

 
10. INSURANCE: 

The insurable interests of the Company including building, movable assets, vehicles, and    other insurable 
interests are adequately covered. 

11. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM: 
Your company maintains a robust system of internal controls designed to safeguard all assets from 
unauthorized use or misappropriation. Every transaction undergoes stringent processes to ensure proper 
authorization, accurate recording, and precise reporting. Our internal controls are fortified by a 
comprehensive program of both internal and external audits, complemented by regular management 
reviews. These audits ensure the accuracy of financial and operational records, supporting reliable 
financial reporting and reinforcing accountability for asset stewardship. 

The Audit Committee plays a pivotal role in governance, overseeing the effectiveness of our internal 
controls and compliance initiatives. It reviews audit performance and ensures alignment with regulatory 
standards. 
 
In the sincere judgment of the Board of Directors and our senior management, our internal control 
framework is sound, functioning efficiently, and fully capable of supporting the company’s operational 
and reporting objectives. 

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
During the financial year, all contracts and transactions with related parties were carried out in the 
ordinary course of business and conducted at arm’s length terms. Disclosures under Section 134(3)(h) and 
in Form AOC-2 which is attached as ANNEXURE-E . 
 
All Related Party Transactions (RPTs) are subjected to careful scrutiny and approval by the Audit 
Committee, as mandated under SEBI LODR and the Companies Act. To facilitate operational efficiency, 
omnibus approvals are obtained in advance for routine, repetitive transactions. These approvals are 
granted only when consistent with our RPT policy and are thoroughly vetted for necessity and fairness. 

13. SHAREHOLDERS’ DISPUTE RESOLUTION MECHANISM: 
SEBI vide circular July 31, 2023 and subsequent circular dated December 20, 2023, read with Master 
Circular dated August 11, 2023, has specified that a shareholder shall first take up his/her/their grievance 
with the listed entity/RTA by lodging a complaint directly with the concerned listed entity/RTA and if the 
grievance is not redressed satisfactorily, the shareholder may, in accordance with the SCORES guidelines, 



          

 
 

escalate the same through the SCORES Portal in accordance with the process laid out therein. Only after 
exhausting all available options for resolution of the grievance, if the shareholder is not satisfied with the 
outcome, he/she/ they can initiate dispute resolution through the Online Dispute Resolution (“ODR”) 
Portal. Shareholders are requested to take note of the same. 

Link to the ODR Portal is also available on the Company’s website at www.upgl.in. 

14. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS: 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the 
going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

15. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 
Disclosure on details of loans, guarantees and investments pursuant to the provisions of    Section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, and LODR Regulations, are set out in the standalone financial statement 
annexed with this report. 

 
16. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

The Board of the Company comprises of Six (06) directors; one Managing Director, two Non-Executive 
Directors and remaining three being Independent Directors. As on the date of this report, the Board of 
the company constitutes of the following directors: 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

                 *Ms. Vidya Baghel appointed as company secretary of the company on 4th July 2025. 

 

I. RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION: 

To re-appoint Mr. Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal (DIN: 00593377) who retires by rotation and being eligible   
offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

II.  Ms. Sejalben Shantilal Parmar, Independent Director of the Company, will retire from her position at the 
conclusion of the 15th Annual General Meeting, upon completion of her tenure. Her vacancy will be filled 
in due course, within three months of the close of the AGM. 
 

 

Name of Directors  DIN/PAN Designation 

Mr. Gagan N. Mittal 00593377 Managing Director 

Mr. Ritesh Hada 01919749 Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Nirmalkumar Mittal 01528758 Non-Executive Director 

*Ms. Sejalben Shantilal Parmar 07401639 Independent Director 

Ms. Rashmi Otavani 06976600 Independent Director 

Mr. Safalkumar Hasmukhbhai Patel 08107710 Independent Director 

Mr. Mahesh Shankerlal Gupta  *****4250D CFO 

*Ms. Vidya Baghel *****3069B Company Secretary 

http://www.upgl.in/


          

 
 

17. BOARD EVALUATION: 

The board of directors has carried out an evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees and 
individual directors, pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act and Listing Regulations. 

The manner in which the evaluation has been carried out has been explained in the Corporate Governance 
Report. 

 

18. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY: 

The policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees 
has been formulated in terms of the provision of The Companies act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 
2015 in order to pay equitable remuneration to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees 
of the Company and to harmonize the aspiration of human resources consistent with the goals of the 
Company. 

The Remuneration Policy has been updated on the website of the Company at: 
https://www.upgl.in/investors. 

Particulars of Employees: 
The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with 
Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is 
provided in a separate Annexure-C forming part of this report. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said 
annexure is open for inspection at the Registered Office of your Company. Any member interested in 
obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary. 
 

19. DETAILS OF DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION: 

The information relating to remuneration paid to directors as required under Section 197(12) of 
Companies Act, is given under Corporate Governance Report, under ANNEXURE-D. 

20. CERTIFICATE OF PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY: 

The Company has obtained a certificate from M/s. Jitendra R Rawal, Practicing Company Secretary, 
Ahmedabad stating that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred/ 
disqualified from being appointed / continuing as Directors of any company, by the SEBI and Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such Statutory authority, under ANNEXURE- I. 

21. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

The company has received necessary declaration from the Independent Directors as required under 
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act and LODR Regulations confirming that they meet the criteria of 
independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Act and that of LODR Regulations. 

Independent Directors are in compliance with the Code of Conduct prescribed under Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

In the opinion of Board, the Independent Directors of the company possess the integrity, requisite 
experience and expertise, relevant for the industry in which the company operates. Further, all the 
Independent Directors of the Company have successfully registered with the Independent Director’s 
Databank of the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. The online proficiency self- assessment test conduct 
by the said institute have been cleared by all the independent directors. 

https://www.upgl.in/investors


          

 
 

22. MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMPLIANCE TO SECRETARIAL STANDARD: 
Number of Board Meetings in the year: 

The Board of Directors of the Company met Nine (09) times during the year. The intervening gap between 
the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, as permitted by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs and Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI). 

 
23. BOARD COMMITTEES: 

The company has 3 (Three) Board Committees as on 31st March, 2025. 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

3. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

 
The composition of each of the above Committees, their respective roles and responsibilities are provided 
in detail in the Corporate Governance Report. The details of all the committees along with their main 
terms, composition and meetings held during the year under review are provided in the Report on 
Corporate Governance, a part of this Annual Report. 

24. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 
As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and the Companies (Amendment) Act,2017 Effective 
from 28th August, 2020 and rules framed thereunder, a copy of the annual return is uploaded on the 
website of the company i.e. www.upgl.in. 

 
25. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Your Company’s Directors make following statement in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Act, 
which is to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 
obtained by them: 

i. That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures, if any; 

 

ii. That such accounting policies, as mentioned in the Financial Statements as ‘Significant Accounting Policies’ 
have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st  
March, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

 

iii. That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

iv. That the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 

v. That proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and 
were operating effectively; 

https://www.mca.gov.in/content/mca/global/en/acts-rules/ebooks/acts.html?act=NTk2MQ%3D%3D
https://www.mca.gov.in/content/mca/global/en/acts-rules/ebooks/acts.html?act=NTk2MQ%3D%3D
https://www.mca.gov.in/content/mca/global/en/acts-rules/ebooks/acts.html?act=NTk2MQ%3D%3D
www.upgl.in
www.upgl.in


          

 
 

vi. That proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and 
were adequate and operating effectively. 

26. AUDITORS: 

I. Statutory Auditors: The members at the 12th Annual General Meeting held on 30th December, 2020 
appointed M/s Rajiv Shah & Co., Chartered Accountant, (Firm Registration No. 108454W), Ahmedabad, 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company until the Conclusion of 15th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. 

 
 

II. Auditors Report: The report of the Statutory Auditors along with Notes to Accounts is enclosed to this 
report. The observations made in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for 
any further comments. 
 

III. Secretarial Auditor: Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014, the company has appointed Mr. Jitendrakumar 
Rewashankar Rawal, Practising Company Secretary, Ahmedabad, to carry out the Secretarial Audit of the 
company. The Report of the Secretarial Audit for F.Y. 2024-25 is attached herewith as Annexure-B. The 
qualifications, observations or adverse remark or disclaimer in the said report are being submitted in the 
“Annual Secretarial Audit Report” submitted to the stock exchange under regulation 24A of LODR. A copy 
of the Annual Secretarial Audit Report is uploaded on the website of the company i.e. www.upgl.in. 
 

IV. Internal Auditor: In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, M/s. 
K Tibrewalla & Co. (FRN: 333660E), Ahmedabad have been appointed as an Internal Auditors of the 
Company for Financial Year 2024-25. During the year, the Company continued to implement their 
suggestions and recommendations to improve the control environment. Their scope of works includes, 
Review of the accuracy and reliability of the Corporation accounting records and financial reports, review 
of operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal control 
strengths, opportunities for cost saving and recommending company for improving cost efficiencies. 

27. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

Your company provides utmost importance at best Governance Practices and are designated to act in the 
best interest of its stakeholders. Better governance practice enables the company to introduce more 
effective internal controls suitable to the changing nature of business operations, improve performance 
and also provide an opportunity to increase stakeholders understanding of the key activities and policies 
of the organization. 

Your Company has incorporated the appropriate standards for corporate governance. Pursuant to 
Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Separate 
reports on Corporate Governance Report as required by Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“SEBI (LODR), 2015”] forms part of this 
Annual Report. Details regarding Corporate Governance Report of the Company regarding Compliance of 
the Conditions of Corporate Governance pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are annexed herewith as “ANNEXURE-G”. 

A certificate from Mr. Jitendrakumar Rewashankar Rawal, Practicing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad 
confirming compliance to the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is annexed to Corporate Governance Report 
as “ANNEXURE-H”. 

http://www.upgl.in/


          

 
 

28. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, is presented in a separate 
section forming part of the Annual Report and is annexed herewith as “ANNEXURE-F”. 

29. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS: 

During the year under review, the statutory auditor has not reported to the board, under Section 143(12) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or 
employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board’s report. 

30. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 
The Company has constituted an audit committee, therefore it is also mandatory for such Committee to 
operate the vigil mechanism, and if any of the members of the committee have a conflict of interest in a 
given case, they should rescue themselves and the others on the committee would deal with the matter 
on hand, to whom other directors and employees may report their concerns. It provides adequate 
safeguard against victimization of employees and directors who avail of the vigil mechanism and also 
provide for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit committee or the director nominated to play the 
role of audit committee, as the case may be, in exceptional cases. The existence of the mechanism may 
be appropriately communicated within the organization. The detailed Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil 
Mechanism available on below link: https://www.upgl.in/policy/vigil-mechanism.pdf. 

 
31. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT: 

As stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Business Responsibility Report describing the initiatives taken by the Company from an environmental, 
social and governance perspective is not applicable to your company as per the exemptions provided 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

32. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPRTUNITIES: 

Being an equal opportunity employer, the company will do its utmost to ensure that all of its employees 
are treated fairly during the period of their employment irrespective of their race, religion, sex (including 
pregnancy), color, creed, age, national origin, physical or mental disability, citizenship status, ancestry, 
marital status, veteran status, political affiliation, or any other factor protected by law. All decisions 
regarding employment will be taken based on merit and business needs only. 
 

33. APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY 
CODE: 

               As on the date of the report, no application is pending against the Company under the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, and the Company did not file any application under (IBC) during the financial 
year 2024-25. 
 

34. STATUS OF CASES FILED UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

No such process initiated during the period under review under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
(IBC) 

35. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE: 

Your Company has in place a formal policy for the prevention of sexual harassment of its women 
employees in line with “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013”. The Company has formed Internal Complaint Committee who periodically conducts 
sessions for employees across the organization to build awareness about the Policy and the provisions of 

https://www.upgl.in/policy/vigil-mechanism.pdf.
https://www.upgl.in/policy/vigil-mechanism.pdf.


          

 
 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Act. During the financial year 2024–25, no complaints pertaining to 
sexual harassment were received by the Internal Complaints Committee. 

36. POLICY ON CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS: 

Board of Directors has formulated and adopted Code of Business Conduct Ethics for Director & Senior 
Management Executive policy. As an organization your Company places a great importance in the way 
business is conducted and the way each employee performs his/her duties. Your Company encourages 
transparency in all its operations, responsibility for delivery of results, accountability for the outcomes of 
our actions, participation in ethical business practices and being responsive to the needs of our people 
and society. Towards this end, your Company has laid down a Code of conduct applicable to all the 
employees of your Company and conducted various awareness sessions across the Company. The Code 
provides for the matters related to governance, compliance, ethics and other matters. In this regard 
certificate from the managing director as required under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been received by the Board and the same is attached 
herewith as per Annexure – J. 

 
The detailed Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior Management Personnel policy available on 
below link: https://www.upgl.in/policy/code-of-conduct-for-directors.pdf 

37. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF YOUR COMPANY: 

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of your Company which 
has occurred between end of financial year of the Company i.e. 31st March, 2025 and the date of 
Directors’ Report i.e. 05th September, 2025. 

38. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the Company had not transferred any sum to General 
Reserve Account. Therefore, your Company remained the balance of profit to Profit & Loss Accounts of 
the Company on 31st March, 2025. 

39. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTFLOW: 

During the year, the total foreign exchange was NIL, and the total foreign exchange earned was NIL. 

40. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

The details of conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable to the company   hence 
not furnished. 

 

41. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 
In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost records and audits) Rules, 
2014, the Company is required to get its cost records audited by the Practicing Cost Accountant. 
Accordingly, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 25, 2024, appointed M/s. M.I. Prajapati 
& Associates, Cost & Management Accountants, Ahmedabad, as Cost Auditors for auditing the cost 
records of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2025. Further, they have confirmed that they are 
free from disqualification specified under Section 141(3) and proviso to Section 148(3) read with Section 
141(4) of the Act and that their appointment meets the requirements of Section 141(3)(g) of the Act. They 
have also confirmed their independent status and an arm’s length relationship with the Company. Further, 
as per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required 
to be ratified at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

 

The Company has maintained cost accounts and records in accordance with provisions of Section 148 of 

https://www.devitpl.com/wp-content/uploads/Code-of-Business-Conduct-Ethics-for-Directors-Senior-Management-Executive.pdf
https://www.devitpl.com/wp-content/uploads/Code-of-Business-Conduct-Ethics-for-Directors-Senior-Management-Executive.pdf
:%20https:/www.upgl.in/policy/code-of-conduct-for-directors.pdf


          

 
 

the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereof. 

 

42. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to 
do CSR Expenditure for the financial year 2024-25 as Net profit of the Company exceeded the specified 
threshold in the preceding financial year 2023- 24. However, Pursuant to Section 135 (9) of Companies 
Act, 2013, Where the amount to be spent by a company does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, the 
requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall not be applicable and 
the functions of such Committee provided under this section shall, in such cases, be discharged by the 
Board of Directors of such company. As the CSR Expenditure of the Company is not exceeding Rupees Fifty 
Lakhs, the Company has not constituted CSR Committee and the functions of CSR committees have been 
discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company. In compliance with the provisions of Section 135, 
the board of Directors of the Company has formulated CSR policy and the same has been placed on the 
website of the Company. 

  

During year under review, the Company incurred CSR expenditure of Rs.20,92,759/- being 2% of average 
net profit for the past three financial years. The CSR activities by the Company were under the thrust areas 
of Healthcare, Education, Water, Livelihood, Environment and Disaster Relief. The brief outline of the CSR 
policy of the Company and the details of key CSR activities are provided in the Report on CSR Activities 
annexed herewith as Annexure -A. 

 

The Company’s CSR Policy Statement and Annual Report on the aforesaid CSR activities undertaken during 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, in accordance with Section 135 of the Act and Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is set out in “Annexure A” to this report. CSR Policy is 
available on the Company’s Website at https://www.upgl.in/. 

43. CFO CERTIFICATION: 

In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the CFO has certified to the Board of Directors of 
the Company with regard to the financial statements and other matters specified in the said regulation 
for the financial year 2024-25. The certificate received from CFO is attached herewith as per “Annexure – 
K”. 

44.  LISTING FEES: 

The Company affirms that the annual listing fees for the year 2024-25 and 2025-2026 to The National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) has been duly paid. 

45. APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

The Board of United Polyfab Gujarat Limited extends its heartfelt appreciation to all individuals and 
institutions whose unwavering support has been vital in embracing and advancing the Company’s Vision, 
Mission, and core values—centered around transparency, competence, teamwork, commitment, and 
delivering superior service at the right quality and price. 

We express our sincere gratitude to the Departments of the Central and State Governments, Tax 
Authorities, the Reserve Bank of India, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, the National Stock Exchange of India and other regulatory and governmental bodies for 
their consistent cooperation and guidance. 

Our deepest thanks to our banking partners, shareholders, investors, and other stakeholders whose 

https://www.upgl.in/
https://www.upgl.in/


          

 
 

confidence and collaboration have been instrumental in our journey—from spinning and weaving to 
fabric innovation. Your trust and sustained engagement have helped us uphold quality and drive growth 
across our operations. 

We also place on record our profound appreciation for every department within United Polyfab Gujarat 
Limited—spanning weaving, spinning, quality inspection, and beyond. Your dedication, expertise, and 
tireless efforts have enabled us to achieve average production of hundreds of thousands of meters of 
fabric per month and maintain operational excellence across our integrated facilities. 

 

Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                    For and on behalf of Board of Directors,  

Date: September 06, 2025                                                                                     United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

                                                                                                                                                                                    Sd/- 

                                                                                                                                         Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal 

                                                                                                                              Chairman and Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                            DIN: (00593377) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

 
 

ANNEXURE – A 

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 
COMMENCING ON OR AFTER 1ST DAY OF APRIL, 2024: 

1. Brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy 

United Polyfab Gujarat Limited (UPGL), a leading textile manufacturer, embraces the philosophy that 
corporate success is intertwined with social responsibility. Our CSR commitments seek to generate 
sustainable value for our communities, environment, employees, and stakeholders. 

 
The Policy in brief:  
To spend at least 2% average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding 
financial years calculated in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the sector as mentioned in Schedule VII of the Act. To give preference to local area and areas 
around it where it operates, for spending the amount earmarked for corporate social responsibility 
activities. List of activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Act: 
 
1) Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills 

especially among children, women, elderly, and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement 
projects;  
 

2) Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and 
orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens and 
measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups;  

 
3) Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal 

welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and water;  
 

4) Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and sanitation 
making available safe drinking water;  

 
5) Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic sports;  

 
6) Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents; 

  
7) Contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund any other fund set up by the Central 

Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the 
Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;  

 
8) Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions which 

are approved by the central Government; 
 

9) Rural development projects. 
 

2. The Composition of CSR Committee as at March 31, 2025: 
In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to 



          

 
 

do CSR Expenditure for the financial year 2024-25 as Net profit of the Company exceeded the specified 
threshold in the preceding financial year 2023-24. However, Pursuant to Section 135 (9) of Companies Act, 
2013, Where the amount to be spent by a company does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, the requirement 
for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall not be applicable and the functions 
of such Committee provided under this section shall, in such cases, be discharged by the Board of Directors 
of such company. As the CSR Expenditure of the Company is not exceeding Rs. Fifty Lakhs, the Company 
has not constituted CSR Committee and the functions of CSR committees have been discharged by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. In compliance with the provisions of Section 135, the board of 
Directors of the Company has formulated CSR policy and the same has been placed on the website of the 
Company. 

3. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report). 

The obligation under sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies CSR Policy Rules 2014 is not applicable to 
the company. 

4. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set 
off for the financial year, if any: 

 
 

5. Average net profit of the Company in last three financial years: 

Profit calculated as per provisions of section 198 of the Companies Act,2013 for last three years:  

 2021-22 – ₹ 1212.02 lakhs 

2022-23 - ₹ 868.54 lakhs 

 2023-24 - ₹ 1058.57 lakhs 

               Average Net Profit: ₹ 3139.13 lakhs 

6. Prescribed CSR Expenditure: 

               Total Prescribed CSR Expenditure - ₹ 20.92 lakhs 

a. 2% of average profit during last three years - ₹ 20.92 lakhs 

b. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years – NIL 

c. Amount required to be set off for the financial year – NIL 

d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (6a+6b-6c) – ₹ 20.92 Lakhs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (in `) 

Amount required to be setoff for 
the financial year, if any (in `) 

- ---  NIL 



          

 
 

7. a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year. 
(in `) (in Lakhs) 

Amount Unspent (in `) 

Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account as 

per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso 

to section 135(5). 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

21.03 NIL 

 
b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name 
of the 
Project. 

Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No). 

Location of 
the project. 

Project 
duration 

Amount 
allocated 
for the 
project 
(in `). 

Amount 
spent 
in the 
current 

financial 
Year (in 

`). 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR Account 

for the 
project as 

per Section 
135(6) (in `). 

Mode of 
Imple- 
menta 
tion - 
Direct 
(Yes/ 
No) 

Mode of 
Implementation 

- Through 
Implementing 

Agency 

State District Name CSR Reg- 
istration 
number 

NIL 

 

c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Project Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule VII 
to the Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No). 

Location of the project. Amount 
spent for the 
project (in ₹). 

Mode of 
im- 
plement
ati on - 
Direct 
(Yes/No
). 

Mode of implementation 
- Through implementing agency. 

State District Name CSR 
registration 
number. 

1 WOMEN 
EMPOWERMENT 

III Yes Gujarat Ahmedabad ₹ 20,92,759/- No MANGUBA PUBLIC 
CHARITABLE TRUST  

CSR No.: 
CSR0005738
8 

2 SANITATION UNIT 
SUPPORT PROGRAM 

I YES Gujarat Ahmedabad ₹ 11,000/- No SHAKTISHALI MAHILA 
SANGHATAN SAMITI 

(SMSS) 

CSR No.: 
CSR00000894 

 
d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL 
e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL 
f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (7b+7c+7d+7e): 21.03 Lakhs 
g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL 

 



          

 
 

Sr. 

No. 

Particular Amount (in 
Lakhs) 

I Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 20.92 

II Total amount spent for the Financial Year 21.03 

III Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.11 

IV Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the 

previous financial years, if any 

NIL 

V Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 011 

8. a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL 

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the 
preceding financial year(s): NIL 

9. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created 
            or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): NIL 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NIL 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 
registered, their address etc.: NIL 

 
d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location 

                 of the capital asset): NIL 

10. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as 
               per section 135(5): N.A. 
 

    Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                       For and on behalf of Board of Directors,  

   Date: September 06, 2025                                                                                         United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

                                                                                                                                                                                    Sd/- 

                                                                                                                                         Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal 

                                                                                                                              Chairman and Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                             DIN: (00593377) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

 
 

                                                           ANNEXURE – B 
                                               Form No. MR-3 

                                                  SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025 

 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Board of Directors 

United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

CIN: L18109GJ2010PLC062928 
Survey No. 238, 239, Shahwadi, Opp. New Aarvee 

Denim, Narol-Surkhej Highway, Ahmedabad - 382405 

 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. United Polyfab Gujarat Limited, (hereinafter called the 
“company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 
Based on my verification on test check basis of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 

hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial 

year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company, for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of: 

 
The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

 
• The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

• The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

• Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

• The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable during the year: - 

 

 

 



          

 
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018; the regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021; the regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2024-2025. 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021; the regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2024-2025. 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; the regulation is not applicable 
during the Financial Year 2024-2025. 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; the 
regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2024-2025 and; 

 
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; the 
regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2024-2025. 

• Other Laws Specifically Applicable to Company: 

 
a. Income Tax Act, 1961 

b. Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 and other indirect taxes 

c. Labour Laws 

d. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 

e. Factories Act, 1948. 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 
i. Secretarial Standards with regard to the Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-

2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India and 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

During the year under review, the company has generally complied with the provisions of the act, 

rules, regulations and guidelines mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

• Due to a Typographical error, Shareholder Type of GAGAN N MITTAL HUF mentioned Promoter 

instead of Promoter Group in Shareholding Pattern filed for the quarter ended March 31, 2025, the 

revised Shareholding Pattern with correct category was filed on May 15, 2025. 



          

 
 

 
• Appeals filed before the Securities Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai, on September 4, 2024, against a 

common SEBI order were admitted after condonation of delay. The Tribunal granted stay on the impugned 

order subject to deposit of 50% of the penalty within three weeks from September 4, 2024. The matter is 

listed for further hearing on November 26, 2024, requiring timely compliance and monitoring. 

• Clarification sought on July 3, 2024, from National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) w.r.t 

Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Annual 

Secretarial Compliance Report submitted for March 31, 2024: 

 

Query-1:  During  the  year,  the  Company 
entered into material related party 

transaction with one group company, Vinod 

Spinners Private Limited, without taking 

prior approval of shareholders. 

The Company had obtained prior/omnibus 

approval of the Audit Committee and the 

Board. Owing to seasonal price fluctuations, 

the transaction was subsequently categorized 

as material. Management has confirmed that 

such transactions will be periodically 

reviewed to ensure compliance with 

applicable regulations. 

Query-2:  During  the  year,  the  Company 
entered into material related party 

transactions with two group companies, 

United Polyfab Private Limited and United 

Techfab Private Limited, exceeding the 

limits earlier  approved  by  shareholders  

through 
resolution of Rs. 500 crore each. 

The limits were approved by shareholders in the 

AGM based on earlier rates, and subsequent 

changes caused the transactions to cross the 

approved threshold. The Company had already 

submitted its clarification to NSE on January 27, 

2024, along with copies of the resolutions 

passed 
for initial approval of related party transactions. 

 
• Below mentioned forms has been filed with ROC after due date with additional fees: 

 

Form Purpose of form SRN Due Date of 
filing 

Date of 
filing 

 
CHG-1 

Application for 

registration of creation, 

modification of charge 

 
AA7769515 

 
28-04-2024 

 
03-05-2024 

MGT-7 Annual Return N21656970 28-11-2024 25-11-2024 

MGT-14 
Filing of Resolutions and 

agreements to the Registrar 
AB2982620 13-03-2025 17-03-2025 

 
I further report that, based on the information provided by the company, its officers and authorised 

representative during the conduct of the audit, and also on the review of reports by CS/CFO and 

Statutory Auditor of the company, in my opinion, adequate systems and processes and control 

mechanism exist in the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable general laws. 

 



          

 
 

I further report that, the compliance by the company of applicable financial laws, like direct, indirect tax 

laws, pollution control, labour laws and other acts as mentioned in point (vi), has not been reviewed 

in this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and other designated 

professionals. 

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried 

out in compliance with the provisions of the Act & Regulation as applicable. 

 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except those held on shorter notice, and a system 

exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 

the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. The board meetings have been conducted 

with shorter notice than seven days, after taking consent of all directors and with the presence of all 

independent directors. As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the chairman, 

the decisions of the board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines. I report further that, during the audit period, there were no specific 

events/actions in pursuance of the aforesaid laws, rules, regulations, etc. having a major bearing on the 

company’s affairs. 

 
JITENDRAKUMAR REWASHANKAR RAWAL 
COMPANY SECRETARY 

Place: 
Date: 

Surat 
03.09.2025 

C.P. NO. 20283 
MEM. NO. A54651 
UDIN: A054651G001153320 
PEER REVIEW NO. 2302/2022 
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                                                                          ANNEXURE-A 
 
To, 
The Board of Directors 

United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

CIN: L18109GJ2010PLC062928 
Survey No. 238, 239, Shahwadi, Opp. New Aarvee 

Denim, Narol-Surkhej Highway, Ahmedabad - 382405 

 
My Secretarial Audit report dated September 03, 2025 is to be read along with this letter. 

 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were considered appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on 

test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 

practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 

of the Company. 

 
4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

are the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 

test basis. 

 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
JITENDRAKUMAR REWASHANKAR RAWAL 
COMPANY SECRETARY 

Place: 
Date: 

Surat 
03.09.2025 

C.P. NO. 20283   
MEM. NO. A54651   
UDIN: A054651G001153320   
PEER REVIEW NO. 2302/2022   
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                                                                                  ANNEXURE-C 

 

Secretarial Compliance Report of M/s United Polyfab Gujarat Limited for the year ended 31-03-2025 

 
To, 
The Board of Directors 

United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

CIN: L18109GJ2010PLC062928 
Survey No. 238, 239, Shahwadi, Opp. New Aarvee Denim, 

Narol-Surkhej Highway, Ahmedabad – 382405 

 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility: 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance of these acts, rules, regulations and circulars and 
maintenance of records based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Secretarial 
Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. Those standards require that I 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
compliance of acts, rules, regulations and circulars and maintenance of records. 

I further state that due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating 
controls, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or material non-compliances may 
not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with standards. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
I, CS Jitendrakumar Rewashankar Rawal have examined the records of M/s United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 
(“the Company”) which comprises: 
 

(a) All the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by the company 
(b) The fillings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges, 
(c) Website of the listed entity, 
(d) Any other document/filling, as maybe relevant, which has been relied upon to make this 

certification. 
 
For the financial year ended 31-03-2025 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions 
of: 
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, Circulars, 
Guidelines issued thereunder; and 

(b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956(“SCRA”), rules made there under and the Regulations, 
Circulars, Guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”): 

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, have been 
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examined, include:- 
 

(a) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 
(c) SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018;(Not 

applicable to the company during the review period) 
(e) SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;(Not applicable to 

the company during the review period) 
(f) SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;(Not applicable to the 

company during the review period) 
(g) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and circulars/guidelines issued 

thereunder; 

And based on the above examination, I, hereby report that, during the Review Period the compliance 
status of the listed entity is appended as below: 

 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars Compliance 
status 
(Yes/No/NA) 

Observations/ 
Remarks by PCS* 

1. Secretarial Standard 
The compliances of the listed entity are in 
accordance with the applicable Secretarial 
Standards (SS) issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries India (ICSI), as notified by the Central 
Government under section 118(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and mandatorily applicable. 

 

 

 
Yes 

 

2. Adoption and timely updation of the Policies: 
• All applicable policies under SEBI Regulation are 

adopted with the approval of board of director 
of the listed entities 

• All the policies are in conformity with SEBI 
Regulations and has been reviewed & timely 
updated as per the 
regulation/circulars/guidelines issued by SEBI 

 

Yes 

 

 
 

Yes 

 

3. Maintenance and disclosures on Website: 
• The Listed entity is maintaining a functional 

website 
• Timely dissemination  of  the 

documents/information under a separate 

 

Yes 

 
 

Yes 

 

 

 



          

 

Page | 27  

 

 section on the website 
• Web-links provided in annual corporate 

governance reports under Regulation 27(2) are 
accurate and specific which re-directs to the 
relevant document(s)/section of the website 

 

Yes 

 

4. Disqualification of Director: 
None of the Director of the Company are 
disqualified under Section 164 of Companies 
Act,2013 

 
 

Yes 

 

5. To examine details related to Subsidiaries of listed 
entities: 
a) Identification of material subsidiary 

companies 

 
b) Requirements with respect to disclosure of 

material as well as other subsidiaries 

 

 
 

NA 

NA 

The Company does not 
have any material 
subsidiary Companies 
hence    requirement 

with respect to 
disclosure of material as 
well as other 
subsidiaries  is  not 
applicable during the 
year under review. 

6. Preservation of Documents: 
The listed entity is preserving and maintaining 
records as prescribed under SEBI Regulation and 
disposal of records as per Policy of Preservation of 
Documents and Archival policy prescribed under 
SEBI LODR Regulations,2015 

 

 
 

Yes 

 

7. Performance Evaluation: 
The listed entity has conducted performance 
evaluation of the Board, Independent Director and 
the Committees at the start of every financial year 
as prescribed in SEBI Regulations 

 

 

Yes 

 

8. Related Party Transactions: 
a) The listed entity has obtained prior approval of 

Audit Committee for all related party 
transactions 

b) In case no prior approval obtained, the listed 
entity shall provide detailed reasons along with 
confirmation whether the transaction were 
subsequently approved /ratified / rejected by 
the Audit committee 

 
 

Yes 

NA 

 
 

The listed entity has 
obtained  prior 
approval of audit 
committee for all 
related party 
translations. 
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9. Disclosure of events or information: 
The listed entity has provided all the required 
disclosure(s) under Regulation 30 along with 
Schedule III of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 within 
the time limits prescribed there under. 

 

 
Yes 

 

10. Prohibition of Insider Trading: 
The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 
3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of insider trading) 
Regulation, 2015 

 

 

 
 

Yes 

Based on the quarterly 
compliance certificate 
received from the 
Compliance Officer, the 
company has updated 
all the entries in the 
SDD Software. 

11. Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s),if any: 
No Action taken against the listed entity/ its 
promoters/directors/subsidiaries either by SEBI or 
by Stock Exchanges (including under the 
Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI 
through various circulars) under SEBI Regulation 
and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder 

 

 

 

No 

 

12. Additional Non-compliances, if any: 
No any additional non-compliance observed for all 
SEBI regulation /circular/guidance note etc. 

 

 

Yes 

There are no additional 
non compliances 
except those which are 
mentioned below in the 
table. 

*Observations/Remarks by PCS are mandatory if the Compliance status is provided as ‘No’ or 

‘NA’ I hereby report that, during the Review Period: 

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars 
/guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:- 

 
(b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in 

previous reports: 
 

 
SR. NO. 1 

Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circular/guidelines 

As per NSE circular no. NSE/ CMU2022/39, dated August 02, 2022, 
w.r.t. use of digital signature certificate for announcements submitted 
by listed companies 

Including specific clause  
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Regulations/ Circular No. As per NSE circular no. NSE/ CMU2022/39, dated August 02, 2022, 
w.r.t. use of digital signature certificate for announcements submitted 
by listed companies 

Deviations The announcement has been submitted to the stock exchange with a 
physical signature certification rather than with digital signature 
certification (DSC) for the purpose of authentication and certification 
of filings or submissions made to the respective Stock Exchanges. 

Action Taken by - 

Type of Action - 

Details of Violation - 

Fine Amount NIL 

Observations/Remarks of 
the Practicing Company 
Secretary 

The announcement mentioned below has been submitted to the stock 
exchange with physical signature certification, rather than with digital 
signature certification for the authentication and certification of filings 
or submissions made to the respective Stock Exchanges. 

Observations made in the 
secretarial compliance 
report 
for the year ended (the 
years are to be 
mentioned) 

For the year ended 31-03-2024 

Remedial actions, if any, 
taken by the listed entity 

- 

Comments of the 
practicing company 
secretary on the 
actions taken by the listed 
entity. 

- 

Management Response The Company will comply with regulation more quickly, stay informed 
about all circulars issued by the stock exchanges and meet all 
necessary compliance standards 

Remarks - 

 

 
SR. NO. 2 

Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circular/guidelines 
Including specific clause 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
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Regulations/ Circular No. Regulation 29(1) of SEBI (Prohibition ofInsider Trading) Regulations, 
2015. 

Deviations Delay in Prior intimation to stock exchange about the meeting of the 
board of directors in specific matters mentioned in the regulation 

Action Taken by NSE Limited 
Type of Action SOP Fine 

Details of Violation Delay in prior intimation to stock exchange about the meeting of the 
Board of Directors. 

Fine Amount Rs. 11800 including GST 

Observations/Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary 

The Prior Intimation to stock exchange about the meeting of the board 
of directors of the company held on August 14, 2023 to approve 
financial results for the quarter ended on June 30, 2023, which was 
submitted Four days prior to the scheduled board meeting as against to 
the requirement of submission of prior intimation at least Five days in 
advance (excluding the date of the intimation and date of the meeting), 
Consequently there was One day short intimation as per the regulations. 

NSE Limited, vide its letter dated September 14, 2023 had levied a 
penalty on Company of Rs. 10000 1- plus GST. 

 

Penalty Amount was paid by Company on September 15, 2023. 

Observations made in the 
secretarial compliance report for 
the year ended (the years 
are to be mentioned) 

For the year ended 31-03-2024 

Remedial actions, if any, taken 
by the listed entity 

The management is taking steps to create awareness about the same. 
When the Board became aware. 

Comments of the practicing 
company secretary on the 
actions taken by the listed 
entity. 

The Board of Directors has levied the penalty based on speaking order 
passed by it after considering all the facts and applicable laws. 

Management Response The intimation period has been wrongly considered due to which such 
omission has been occurred and management will now ensure 
compliance of regulations within due time. 

Remarks - 

 

 
SR. NO. 3 

Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circular/guidelines 
Including specific clause 

Requirement of SEBI Circular SEBIIHO/CFD/CFD-PoD- 
IIP/CIRl2023/I23 dated July 13, 2023. 

Regulations/ Circular No. Requirement of SEBI circular SEBIIHO/CFD/CFD-PoDIIP/ 
CIRI2023/I23 dated July 13, 2023 . 
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Deviations Disclosure of material events 1 information by listed entities under 
Regulations 30 and 30A of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

Action Taken by - 
Type of Action - 

Details of Violation - 

Fine Amount - 

Observations/Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary 

The announcement mentioned herein has not been submitted to the 
stock exchange within the timeline specified for disclosure of events 
specified in Part A of Schedule III of the LODR Regulations; 

Observations made in the 
secretarial compliance report for 
the year ended (the years 
are to be mentioned) 

For the year ended 31-03-2024 

Remedial actions, if any, taken 
by the listed entity 

- 

Comments of the practicing 
company secretary on the 
actions taken by the listed 

- 

 
entity.  

Management Response The Company will comply with regulation more quickly, stay informed 
about all circulars issued by the stock exchanges and meet all 
necessary compliance standards. 

Remarks - 

 

 
SR. NO. 4 

Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circular/guidelines 
Including specific clause 

System Driven Disclosures (SDD) for Insider Trading (as per SEBI 
circular dated September 09, 2020). 

Regulations/ Circular No. SEBI Circular No. SEBIIHO/ISD/ISD/CIR/P/2020/1 68 dated 
September 9, 2020 
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Deviations Delay in reporting of information of Designated Persons under System 
Driven Disclosures (SDD) for Insider Trading (as per SEBI circular 
dated September 09, 2020). 

Action Taken by - 
Type of Action - 

Details of Violation - 

Fine Amount - 

Observations/Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary 

As per, SEBI Circular No. SEBIIHOIISDIISD/CIR/P/2020/168 dated 
September 9, 2020 System Driven Disclosures (SDD) for Insider Trading, 
following changes in Director Designated persons in Portal of 
Designated Depository was not updated (added! deleted) on the same 
day of appointment & resignation, respectively; 

 Name of 
Designated 
person 

Designation Event date Captured 
date on 
NSDL 
Portal 

Delay by  

M. I. 
Prajapati 
& 
Associates 

Appointment 
of Cost 
Auditor 

15.05.2023 19.03.2024 309 days  

Aziz vanik Resignation 
of Company 
Secretary 

16.12.2023 27.02.2024 73 days  

Dilip 
Matolia 

Appointment 
of Company 
Secretary 

16.12.2023 27.02.2024 74 days  

SCS & co. 
LLP 

Appointment 
of 

14.02.2024 07.03.2024 22 days  

   Secretarial 
Auditors 

    

Kamal M 
Shah and 
Co. 

Appointment 
of Internal 
Auditor 

14.02.2024 07.03.2024 22 days  

Observations made in the 
secretarial compliance report for 
the year ended (the years 
are to be mentioned) 

For the year ended 31-03-2024 

Remedial actions, if any, taken 
by the listed entity 

- 

Comments of the practicing 
company secretary on the 
actions taken by the listed 
entity. 

- 

Management Response The Management will ensure timely updation of details of directors 
and Designated person in SDD details with designated depository 

Remarks - 
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SR. NO. 5 
Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circular/guidelines 
Including specific clause 

Schedule B of Securities and Exchange Board of India Prohibition of 
Insider Trading (PIT) , Regulations, 2015 

Regulations/ Circular No. Clause 10 of Schedule B of SEBI (prohibition Of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015) 

Deviations Member of Promoter group had entered into Contra Trade for a period 
less than 6 months 

Action Taken by - 
Type of Action - 

Details of Violation - 

Fine Amount - 

Observations/Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Details of Contra Trade executed by Member of Promoter Group, Mr. 
Ronak Sushilkumar Kejriwal for a period less than 6 months:- 
 
Date of transaction Buy/Sell No. of Shares 
18.08.2023 Buy 5209 
01.09.2023 Sell 3000 
08.09.2023 Sell 2209 
03.11.2023 Buy 442 
10.11.2023 Sell 500 

 

Observations made in the For the year ended 31-03-2024 

secretarial compliance report 
for the year ended (the years are 
to be mentioned) 

 

Remedial actions, if any, taken 
by the listed entity 

- 

Comments of the practicing 
company secretary on the 
actions taken by the listed 
entity. 

- 

Management Response Company has uploaded PIT Code on its website and circulated to its 
Designated Person. 

Remarks - 

 
SR. NO. 6 

Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circular/guidelines 
Including specific clause 

Schedule B of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 (PIT Regulation)- Closure of Trading Window 

Regulations/ Circular No. Schedule B of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 (PIT Regulation) 

Deviations Person's falling under Promoter Group of Company traded in shares of 
Company during the closure of Trading Window 
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Action Taken by - 
Type of Action - 

Details of Violation - 

Fine Amount - 

Observations/Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended from time to time and Company's Code of Internal Procedures 
and Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in Securities, Company's 
Trading Window for dealing in securities of the Company remained 
closed w.e.f. October 1, 2023, till 48 hours after the announcement of 
the financial results of the Company for the quarter ended September 
30,2023. The financial result was uploaded as on November 07, 2023 
and therefore trading window was opened from November 10,2023. 
Company Secretary uploaded Intimation to Stock Exchange on 
September 28, 2023 regarding the Closure of Trading Window. 

Person falling under Promoters Group traded in Shares of Company 
during span of Trading Window Closure for Insiders of Company: 

 Name of 
Person 

Category Date of 
Transaction 

No of Shares 
Sold/Purchase 

 

  Ronak 
Sushilkumar 
Kejriwal 

Promoter 
Group 

03.11.2023 442  

10.11.2023 (500)  

Observations made in the 
secretarial compliance report for 
the year ended (the years 
are to be mentioned) 

For the year ended 31-03-2024 

Remedial actions, if any, taken 
by the listed entity 

- 

Comments of the practicing 
company secretary on the 
actions taken by the listed entity. 

- 

Management Response The Company will arrange sessions to update all the designated 
Person with the provision of the PIT Regulation. 

Remarks - 

 
SR. NO. 7 

Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circular/guidelines 
Including specific clause 

Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations, 2015. 

Regulations/ Circular No. Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015. 

Deviations Delay by Company in entering all of UPSI Sharing Entries in software 
(Structured Digital Database) 



          

 

Page | 35  

 

Action Taken by - 
Type of Action - 

Details of Violation - 

Fine Amount - 

Observations/Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Company did not have Digital software maintained to capture 
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI) during the F.Y. 
2023-24. However, Company installed a SDD software on January 
13, 2024, namely Orion Legal Supplies. Therefore, all the UPSI for 
F.Y. 2023-24 was delayed entered from February 2024. 

Observations made in the 
secretarial compliance report 
for the year ended (the years are 
to be mentioned) 

For the year ended 31-03-2024 

Remedial actions, if any, taken 
by the listed entity 

- 

Comments of the practicing 
company secretary on the 

- 

actions taken by the listed entity.  

Management Response Delay was unintentional to make all compliance within due date UPSI 
sharing entries into software got delayed. 

Remarks - 

 

 
SR. NO. 8 

Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circular/guidelines 
Including specific clause 

Regulation 23 (4) of Securities and Exchange Board of india Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement Regulation, 2015 

Regulations/ Circular No. Regulation 23 (4) of Securities and Exchange Board of India Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement Regulation, 2015 

Deviations During  the  year  Company  entered  into  material  related  party 
transaction with Two related parties, without taking prior approval of 
Shareholders through resolution. 

Action Taken by - 
Type of Action - 

Details of Violation - 

Fine Amount - 

Observations/Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary 

During the year Company entered into material related party 
transaction with, two Group companies, i.e. United Polyfab 
Private Limited and United Techfab Private Limited, exceeding 
the Limit which was prior approved by the Shareholders of the 
company through resolution .i.e., Rs. 500 Crore each 
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Observations made in the 
secretarial compliance report 
for the year ended (the years are 
to be mentioned) 

For the year ended 31-03-2024 

Remedial actions, if any, taken 
by the listed entity 

- 

Comments of the practicing 
company secretary on the 
actions taken by the listed entity. 

- 

Management Response The Estimated limit has been priorly approved by the shareholders in 
Annual General meeting of the Company on the basis of old rates. 
However, such escalation has been made due to seasonal price 
fluctuation during the year and price has been increased from the 
approved Limit. 
The Management will now review the related party transactions on a 
periodically basis to ensure good compliance of regulations. 

Remarks - 

 
SR. NO. 9 

Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circular/guidelines 
Including specific clause 

Regulation 23 (4) of Securities and Exchange Board of india Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement Regulation, 2015 

Regulations/ Circular No. Regulation 23 (4) of Securities and Exchange Board of India Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement Regulation, 2015 

Deviations During the year Company entered into material related party 
transaction with Two related parties, without taking prior approval of 
Shareholders through resolution. 

Action Taken by - 
Type of Action - 
Details of Violation - 

Fine Amount - 
Observations/Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary 

During the year Company entered into material related party 
transaction with one related party, i.e. Vinod Spinners Private 
Limited (group company) without taking prior approval of 
Shareholders. 

Observations made in the 
secretarial compliance report for 
the year ended (the years 
are to be mentioned) 

For the year ended 31-03-2024 

Remedial actions, if any, taken 
by the listed entity 

- 
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Comments of the practicing 
company secretary on the 
actions taken by the listed entity. 

- 

Management Response The Estimated limit has been priorly approved by the shareholders in 
Annual General meeting of the Company on the basis of old rates. 
However, such escalation has been made due to seasonal price 
fluctuation during the year and price has been increased from the 
approved Limit. 
The Management will now review the related party transactions on a 
periodically basis to ensure good compliance of regulations. 

Remarks - 

(a) During the year under review no appointment/ re-appointment/ resignation of statutory auditor 
of the Company had occurred. The Company has complied with Circular No. 
CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated October 18, 2019. 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Compliance 
Status (Yes/No/ 
NA) 

Observations 
/Remarks by 
PCS* 

1. Compliances with the following conditions while appointing/re-appointing an auditor 

 i. If the auditor has resigned within 45 days 
from the end of a quarter of a financial 
year, the auditor before such 
resignation, has issued the limited 
review/ audit report for such quarter; 
or 

NA As there is no resignation 
of Auditor, these clauses 
are not applicable 

ii. If the auditor has resigned after 45 days 
from the end of a quarter of a financial 
year, the auditor before such 
resignation, has issued the limited 
review/ audit report for such quarter 
as well as the next quarter; or 

NA 
 

iii. If the auditor has signed the limited 
review/ audit report for the first three 
quarters of a financial year, the auditor 
before such resignation, has issued the 
limited review/ audit report for the 
last quarter of such financial year as 
well as the audit 
report for such financial year. 

 

NA 

 

2. Other conditions relating to resignation of statutory auditor 

 i. Reporting of concerns by Auditor with 
respect to the listed entity/its material 
subsidiary to the Audit Committee: 
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a. In case of any concern with 
the management of the listed 
entity/material subsidiary 
such as non-availability of 
information / non- 

cooperation by the 
management which has 
hampered the audit process, 
the auditor has approached 
the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee of the listed entity 
and the Audit Committee shall 

 

NA 

 

There is no subsidiary 
company. 

receive such concern directly and 
immediately without specifically waiting for 
the quarterly Audit Committee meetings. 

  

b. In case the auditor proposes to 
resign, all concerns with respect to the 
proposed resignation,along with relevant 
documents has been brought to the notice 
of the Audit Committee. In cases where the 
proposed resignation is due to non- receipt 
of information / explanation from the 
company,the auditor  has informed the 
Audit Committee the details of 
information/explanation sought and not 
provided by the management,as applicable. 

 

NA 

 

There is no subsidiary 
company. 

c. The Audit Committee / Board of 
Directors, as the case may be, deliberated 
on the matter on receipt of such 
information from the auditor relating to the 
proposal to resign as mentioned above and 
communicate its views to the management 
and the auditor. 

ii. Disclaimer in case of non-receipt of 
Information 

 

NA 

 

None 
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The auditor has provided an appropriate 
disclaimer in its audit report, which is in 
accordance with the Standards of Auditing 
as specified by ICAI / NFRA, in case where 
the listed entity/ its material subsidiary has  
not  provided  information  as 

required by the auditor. 

 

 

 

NA 

 

 

 

 

None 

3. The listed entity / its material subsidiary 
has obtained information from the 
Auditor upon resignation, in the format as 
specified in Annexure- A in SEBI 
Circular CIR/ CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 
18th October, 2019. 

NA None 

 

 
We further, report that the listed entity is in compliance/ not in compliance with the disclosure 
requirements of Employee Benefit Scheme Documents in terms of regulation 46(2) (za) of the LODR 
Regulations. – Not Applicable 
 

JITENDRAKUMAR REWASHANKAR RAWAL Place:SURAT 
COMPANY SECRETARY Date: 30.05.2025 
C.P. NO. 20283 
MEM. NO. A54651 
UDIN: A054651G000513582 
PEER REVIEW NO. 2302/2022 

This report is to be read with our letter dated 30th day of May, 2025 which is annexed and forms an 

integral part of this report. 
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                                                                  ANNEXURE-A 

 
To, 
The Board of Directors 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 
CIN: L18109GJ2010PLC062928 
Survey No. 238, 239, Shahwadi, Opp. New Aarvee 
Denim, Narol-Surkhej Highway, Ahmedabad - 382405 

 
Our report dated 30.05.2025 is to be read along with this letter: 

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information 
furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity. 

 
2. Our responsibility is to report based upon our examination of relevant documents and information. 

This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of account 
of the listed entity. 

4. This report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
listed entity. 

 

JITENDRAKUMAR REWASHANKAR RAWAL Place: SURAT 
COMPANY SECRETARY Date: 30.05.2025 
C.P. NO. 20283 
MEM. NO. A54651 
UDIN: A054651G000513582 
PEER REVIEW NO. 2302/2022 
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                                                                                ANNEXURE-D 

                                                          PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

A. (Pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

a) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for the financial 
year and the Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

 Name Designation  Designation  Ratio to 
median 

Remuneration  

% increase 
(decrease) in 

Remuneration 

1.  Mr. Gagan Mittal Chairman and Managing 
Director 

18:1 +1.28 

2. Mr. Ritesh Hada Non-Executive Director - N.A. 

3. Mr. Safalkumar Patel Non-Executive Director 0.60:1 +1.2 

4. Ms. Sejal Parmar Independent Director 0.60:1 +1.2 

5. Mr. Nirmalkumar Mittal Non-Executive Director - N.A. 

6. Ms. Rashmi Otavani Independent Director 0.60:1 +1.2 

7. Mr. Mahesh Gupta Chief Financial Officer 6.40:1 +1.46 

8. Mr. Dilip Matolia Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer 

5.43:1 N.A. 

b) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial   year: 

Median remuneration of Employees Increased by 6.50 % in F.Y 2024-25 as compared from F.Y. 2023-24. 

c)The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 390 Employee 

d)Average percentiles increase / (decrease) already made in the salaries of employees other than managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remuneration: 

The average salary of the employees increased by 15.15% over the previous year. The average remuneration 
of the employees increased.  

The Board of Directors of the Company affirmed that remuneration of all the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company are as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

 

Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                         For and on behalf of Board of Directors,  

Date: September 06, 2025                                                                                          United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

                                                                                                                                                                                    Sd/- 

                                                                                                                                             Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal 

                                                                                                                                  Chairman and Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                           DIN: (00593377) 
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                                                                             ANNEXURE – E 
 

                                                                            FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in subsection (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM’S LENGTH BASIS. 
 

SL. 

No. 
Particulars Details 

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil 

b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /transaction Nil 

c) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction Nil 

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any 

Nil 

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ Nil 

f) Date of approval by the Board Nil 

g) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as 
required under first 

proviso to section 188 

Nil 

 

2. DETAILS OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS AT ARM’S LENGTH 

BASIS. 

Sr. Particulars Related Party 1 Related Party 2 Related Party 3 

a) Name (s) of the related 

party & nature of 

relationship 

United Polyfab 
Private Limited 
(Enterprise over 

which KMP of the 
Company 

have Control) 

United Techfab 
Limited 

(Enterprise over 
which KMP of the 

Company have 
Control) 

Vinod Spinners 
Private 
Limited 

(Enterprise 
over which 
KMP of the 
Company 

have Control) 
b) Nature of contracts / 

arrangements 

/transaction 

Sales/Purchase/ 
others 

Sales/Purchase 
/ others 

Sales/Purchase 

c) Duration of the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months 
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transaction 

d) Salient terms of the 

contracts or arrangements 

or transaction including the 

value, if any 

Aggregate value of 

sale, purchase, 

other allied 

transaction is 

208.61 Crores. 

Aggregate value of 

sale, purchase, 

other allied 

transaction 

is 228.9 Crores. 

Aggregate value 

of sale and 

purchase 

transaction is 

57.04 Crores 
e) Date of approval by the 

Board 26/05/2025 26/05/2025 26/05/2025 

f) Amount paid as advances, 
if any 

NA NA NA 

 

           For and on behalf of Board of Directors, 

                        United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

                      SD/- 

                              Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal 

Place: Ahmedabad                    Chairman and Managing Director 
Date: September 06, 2025                                              (DIN: 00593377) 
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                                                                             ANNEXURE-F 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
The Management Discussion and Analysis report presents a comprehensive review of United Polyfab 
Gujarat Limited’s financial performance for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, alongside an informed 
overview of the spinning industry. It highlights key trends shaping the sector, including Gujarat’s newly 
launched Textile Policy 2024, which introduces attractive incentives—such as capital subsidies (10–35% of 
eligible fixed capital investment), interest subsidies (5–7% over 5–8 years), power subsidies (₹1 per unit), and 
payroll assistance—aimed at encouraging modernization, sustainability, and value-chain integration. 
 
 A notable advancement under this policy is the inclusion of spinning units—previously excluded—bringing 
UPGL and similar manufacturers into the ambit of these benefits. Simultaneously, industry stakeholders face 
pressures such as rising raw material costs driven by increased cotton MSP, coupled with global headwinds 
like steep U.S. tariffs targeting textile exports.  
 
Against this backdrop, UPGL’s strategy emphasizes leveraging new state and central government incentives, 
enhancing operational efficiencies, and exploring non-U.S. markets to mitigate adverse macroeconomic 
effects. This section spotlights how the Company is responding to these developments, articulating its 
financial outcomes, strategic adaptations, and resilience amid evolving industry dynamics. 
 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2024-25 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

The Key Aspect of your company’s consolidated financial performance during the financial year 2024-25 
are as follows: 

Operational Highlights: The consolidated revenue of the company from Sales is ₹ 60,221.77/- lakhs as 
compared to ₹ 90847.72/- lakhs in the previous year. 

Financial Highlights: The consolidated profit of the company is ₹ 1768.91/- lakhs as compared to Profit of ₹ 
660.85/- lakhs in the previous year. 

STANDALONE FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

Operational Highlights: The standalone revenue of the company from Sales is ₹ 60,221.77/- lakhs as 
compared to ₹ 90,847.72/- lakhs in the previous year. 

Financial Highlights: The standalone profit of the company is ₹ 1,769.21/-lakhs as compared to ₹ 660.92/- 
lakhs in the previous year. 

KEY CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL RATIOS: 

Details of significant changes in key financial ratios (i.e., change of 25% or more as compared to the 
immediately previous financial year): 
 
Key Ratios FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 Variance % Reason for change 

Current Ratio 1.64 1.64 0.28% -- 
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Debt-to-equity Ratio 1.22 1.58 -22.82% -- 

Debt Service coverage Ratio 0.37 0.27 36.33% Due to Increase in Current year 
profit compare to previous 
year. 

Return on Equity Ratio 18.18 8.30 119.02% Due to Increase in Current year 
profit compare to previous 
year. 

Inventory Turnover Ratio 14.80 40.78 -63.71% Due to Increase in Inventory 
compare to last year. 

Receivables Turnover Ratio 6.17 10.70 -42.37 % Due to Decrease in Turnover 
compare to last year. 

Payable Turnover Ratio 26.76 52.96 -49.47% Due to Decrease in Purchases 
compare to last year. 

Working Capital Turnover ratio 10.65 17.90 -40.50% Due to Decrease in Turnover 
compare to last year. 

Net Profit Ratio 2.94% 0.73% 303.82% Due to Decrease in Turnover 
compare to last year. 

Return on Capital Employed 13.95% 10.03% 39.07% Due to Increase in Current year 
profit compare to previous 
year. 

 

REVENUE GROWTH: 
 

Our revenue for FY25 stood at ₹ 60,221.77/- crores, representing decrease in sales of 33.7% YoY compared 
to ₹ 90,847.72/- crores in FY24.  

EBITDA PERFORMANCE: 
 

EBITDA for FY25 reached ₹2,125.28/- crores, growing 72.61% YoY compared to ₹ 1,231.16/- crores in FY24. 
This reflects our continued focus on operational efficiency and profitability, even as we invest in new growth 
areas. 

 

      INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW: 

 
India’s economy remained remarkably resilient in the face of global disruptions. Strong domestic 
consumption, higher government spending on infrastructure and an accommodative monetary policy 
powered this growth. Retail inflation eased to 4.6% in FY 2024-25, the lowest since FY 2018-19. This led the 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to implement its first rate cut in five years to 6%, thereby supporting continued 
growth.10 The financial services sector remained stable, supported by well-capitalised banks and a solid 
regulatory framework. Government initiatives, such as ‘Make in India’ spurred domestic manufacturing 
growth, while long-term prospects in manufacturing and technology attracted strong foreign investment. 
The expansion of India's digital economy, including e-commerce and digital payments, further boosted 
economic activity. Imported commodity prices in India eased in FY 2024-25, with the World Bank’s 
Commodity Markets Outlook projecting a 5.1% decline in 2025 driven largely by falling crude oil and metals 
prices, which kept domestic inflationary pressures anchored. Cotton prices in India averaged around INR 
7,800 per quintal in FY 2024-25, supported by lower production and an INR 589 MSP increase in May 2025 
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that set prices at INR 7,710–8,110 per quintal.11 India’s manufacturing sector grew at 4.8% in FY 2024-25, 
up from 4.7% in FY 2023-24. This contributed to 7.4% GDP growth in the fourth quarter of FY 2024-25.12 The 
government increased budget allocations to support manufacturing, with FDI in the sector reaching USD 184 
Billion—a 90.5% rise over the past decade—fueled by production-linked incentive schemes.13 Over the past 
six financial years, total FDI inflows amounted to USD 464.54 Billion.14 With robust physical and digital 
infrastructure, India is now well-positioned to expand the share of the manufacturing sector in the economy 
and strengthen its role in global supply chains. 

 
INDIAN TEXTILE MARKET: 
 
The textile and apparel (T&A) market in India has been on an upward trajectory, growing from USD 106 Billion 
in FY 2019-20 to USD 147 Billion in FY 2024-25, at a CAGR of 7%. With a contribution of approximately 2.3% 
to the national GDP in FY 2024-25 and accounting for 3.91% of global textile and apparel trade, India remains 
one of the world’s largest textile markets. Textile and apparel exports surged by 6%, reaching USD 36.6 billion 
in FY 2024-25, despite soft festive demand and competitive imports from Bangladesh. During the same 
period, exports of cotton-based products (yarn, fabrics, made-ups and handloom) grew by 3.19% to 
USD 12.056 Billion. Gujarat, Maharashtra, Tamil Nadu, Punjab, Uttar Pradesh and West Bengal continue to 
dominate India’s textile production. However, fluctuating cotton prices averaging INR 7,800 per quintal in FY 
2024-25 added cost pressures, especially for spinners and weavers. Nevertheless, India’s abundant raw-
material base with a cotton output of 301.75 lakh bales in FY 2024-25 provided a firm foundation for 
competitive manufacturing.2 To meet the Ministry of Textiles’ target of reaching USD 250 Billion by FY 2030-
31, the market will need to grow at a CAGR of 9% onwards. 
 
COMPANY OVERVIEW: 
 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited (UPGL) is a vertically integrated textile manufacturer based in Ahmedabad, 
Gujarat. With operations spanning spinning, weaving, and finishing, the Company delivers high-quality 
cotton yarn and fabrics across diverse applications. 
 

● Spinning & Yarn: UPGL operates a backward-integrated spinning unit equipped with approximately 40,000 
spindles, producing about 800 tonnes of yarn per month. Their yarn portfolio includes a wide range of counts 
from Ne 10/1 to Ne 40/1, covering 100% cotton carded, combed, combed compact, core-spun, Eli Twist, and 
doubling yarns for both weaving and knitting. 

● Fabrics: The Company produces grey, dyed, and denim fabrics, leveraging advanced weaving capabilities 
and state-of-the-art technology to meet growing market demands. 
 
UPGL emphasizes product quality, technological advancement, and customer-centric manufacturing. Their 
corporate values highlight transparency, competence, commitment, teamwork, and superior service. They 
advocate the business philosophy: “Produce the best, offer the right quality material at the right price.” 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:  

Opportunities: 

● Global Shift towards Sustainable Textiles: Increasing demand for eco-friendly and ethically produced 
products aligns with Trident's sustainability agenda  

● Expansion into New Geographies: Growing opportunities in emerging markets for home textiles  

● Government Incentives: Benefitting from Production Linked Incentive (PLI) schemes and textile parks under 
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Make in India  

● Innovation in Functional Textiles: Scope to develop antimicrobial, organic, and smart fabrics 

Green Energy Integration: Strengthening energy division with renewable projects enhances long-term cost 
savings and ESG positioning. 

 

Threats: 

● Global Market Volatility: Economic slowdowns, geopolitical tensions, and trade barriers can impact exports 
and input costs  

● Intense Industry Competition: Price and quality pressures from global players, especially in textiles and 
paper  

● Raw Material Price Fluctuations: Cotton, pulp, and chemicals are subject to price volatility, affecting 
margins  

●  Regulatory and Environmental Compliance Risks: Stricter norms, particularly in water-intensive sectors, 
can lead to cost and operational pressures  

● Currency Fluctuations: Affects export competitiveness and profitability 

 

RISKS AND CONCERNS: 
 

United Polyfab Gujarat Limited operates in a dynamic and competitive textile landscape marked by several 
notable risks that could affect operational and financial stability 

 

● Raw material related Risk: Raw material being a major cost of production, Company’s operations and 
profitability are significantly dependent on price and timely availability of raw materials used in production 
process. The primary raw materials for our textile operations are raw cotton and spandex yarn.  

▪ Cotton: Being an agricultural commodity, prices of cotton are affected by a range of factors like 
changes in weather conditions affecting sowing, government policies and regulations. Governing taxes, 
tariffs, duties, subsidies, import and export restrictions on agricultural commodities, overall supply 
situation in the world, etc. all these influence pricing and demand supply situation in this industry. The 
planting of certain crops versus other uses of agricultural resources, the location and size of crop 
production, volume and types of imports and exports, etc. determine availability of cotton.  

The Company has an experienced team for procurement of raw cotton with a deep understanding of this 
natural fibre. As a Company, we have adopted various processes whereby we are expanding our sources 
across different supply chain intermediaries and other stake holders. Cotton being an international 
commodity, our focus remains optimizing domestic and international opportunities to create a competitive 
edge of sourcing based on landed cost. 

▪ Market related Risk: The Company’s performance is dependent upon the demand situation in 
individual business segments. A slowdown in demand may lead to decline in production/ sales and thus 
impact profitability. The market demand is also dependent on global economic and international trade 
dynamics. The USA reciprocal tariff being negotiated can have a major impact international trade directions 
and demand. This is likely to impact textile trade in a major way. 

In the domestic market as well, the Company faces competition from organized big players and the 
unorganized small and fragmented players. The Company has developed a good reputation amongst the 
domestic traders, garment manufacturers and brands due to quality, design capabilities and cost. Further, 
the Company has started building relationships with large retailers (physical and online) to supply fabrics 
and garments. The Company’s operations are now getting scaled up and it is fully prepared to meet larger 
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volumes. The Company is confident that it would regain a preferred supplier status for big brands and 
retailers given the quality, design capability and the capacity to provide large volumes on a consistent basis 

▪ Financial Risk: United Polyfab Gujarat Limited maintains structured banking facilities comprising a 
term loan from banks and working capital limits to support its operations. As part of its financial discipline, 
UPGL is required to periodically meet interest obligations on both the term loan and working capital 
facilities, while also adhering to the repayment schedule for the term loan as per the terms agreed with its 
lenders. 

 

▪ Information Technology Risk: Information and Technology being the major backbone of Company’s 
overall operation and data storage/ analysis, is another key risk area identified by the Company and several 
measures are being taken to strengthen the same and mitigate the risk associated with this.  

 

Some of the improvements done during the financial year are:  

• Old and obsolete IT systems are replaced with new systems. (Ongoing process) 

• Network infrastructure is being hardened to mitigate security threats (ongoing process).  

• Multi-factor Authentication and MAC address binding are enforced, as applicable. 

• Implemented stronger password management system across applications and devices.  

• Network bandwidth is continuously optimized to ensure seamless access to applications/database from 
all locations. 

 

▪ Government Policies: The company’s business also has a threat of sudden change in government 
policies like policies relating to export and import of certain products, change in customs duty structure, 
change in export incentives, change in GST rates, etc. Similarly other government policies such as policies 
relating to labour etc. also have their impact in overall competitiveness of the Company as compared to 
the competing countries in the international markets. The Company monitors the changes in government 
policies on day-to-day basis and forms appropriate strategies to mitigate the impact on the Company while 
ensuring adequate compliances. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL AND ADEQUACY  

 

The Company has in place a well-established framework of internal control systems which are 
commensurate with the size and complexity of its business. These controls and protocols are designed to 
safeguard assets, enhance operational efficiency and ensure accuracy in both operational processes and 
financial disclosures. The Company has an independent internal audit in coordination with the Audit 
Committee, continuously monitors business activities and promptly notifies the Management Board of any 
discrepancies. Insights from these reviews inform the Company’s risk-assessment strategies, which 
identify, evaluate and mitigate potential threats. These internal controls support regulatory compliance, 
deter fraud and maintain transparency factors that help attract investment, bolster stakeholder confidence 
and drive sustainable growth function covering major areas of operations and the same is carried out by 
an external Chartered Accountant firm engaged for this purpose. 

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

In this Management Discussion and Analysis, statements that reflect the Company’s objectives, projections, 
estimates, and expectations are “forward-looking statements” under applicable laws and regulations. Such 
statements are based on management’s current beliefs and projections and are typically identified by terms 
such as anticipate, expect, estimate, intend, plan, believe, project, or similar expressions. These 
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forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors—including 
changes in economic, regulatory, or political conditions; litigation; labor relations; fluctuations in exchange 
rates; interest rate movements; and other cost pressures—that could cause actual outcomes to differ 
materially from those expressed or implied by these statements. While reasonable care has been taken in 
their preparation, there is no assurance that these statements will be realized. The Company undertakes 
no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether due to new information, future 
events, or otherwise, except as mandated by law. 

 

      

Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                         For and on behalf of Board of Directors,  

Date: September 06, 2025                                                                                          United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

                                                                                                                                                                                    Sd/- 

                                                                                                                                         Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal 

                                                                                                                              Chairman and Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                           DIN: (00593377) 
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ANNEXURE-G 
 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

(Pursuant to Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
Your Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended on 31st March, 
2025. 
 

1. COMPANY PHILOSPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited upholds a robust governance philosophy anchored in Integrity, 
Accountability, and Transparency, driving ethical stewardship and investor trust. Our well-balanced Board—
comprising promoter executive and independent non-executive directors—ensures strategic oversight and 
compliance with the Companies Act,2013. We maintain strong internal controls and risk management 
systems, with a diligent audit committee that meets at least quarterly to review financials, compliance, and 
disclosures. The nomination and remuneration committee oversees leadership appointments and 
compensation, aligning incentives with company performance and long-term shareholder value. We uphold 
a strict Whistleblower Policy that enables safe reporting of unethical practices with direct escalation to the 
Audit Committee chair when needed. Our Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee delivers responsive 
investor grievance redressal, reflecting our commitment to transparency and shareholder care. Additionally, 
our CSR initiatives reinforce our ethical values, as we actively contribute to community welfare in alignment 
with regulatory frameworks. 
 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Your company has optimum combination of both Executive and Non-Executive Directors. DEV IT’s board is 
tutored with enriched leaders who drives the management of the company strategically. The Board 
composition comprises of Six Directors consisting of One Executive Director, Two Non-Executive and Three 
independent directors including one woman director. The composition of the Board was in accordance with 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as “Listing 
Regulations”) and Companies Act, 2013. The Board Members are not related to each other. Number of 
Directorships held by Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors are within the permissible limits 
under Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013. The necessary disclosures regarding change in 
Committee positions, if any, have been made by all the Directors, during the year under review. None of the 
Directors hold directorship in more than 10 public limited companies nor is a Member of more than 10 
Committees or Chairperson of more than 5 Committees across all Public Companies (only Audit Committee 
and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee). 
 
Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations as amended from time to time. The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in 
compliance with the Companies Act, 2013. All Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the 
criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to 
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time and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 

The present strength of the Board reflects judicious mix of professionalism, competence and sound 
knowledge which enables the Board to provide effective leadership to the Company. The composition of 
Board is in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
The number of Directorship(s), Committee Membership(s)/Chairmanship(s) of all Directors is within 
respective limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as 
amended from time to time. This configuration is in harmony with the mandates stipulated by Regulation 17 
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  
 
At the time of this report's issuance, the details of composition of the Board as on March 31, 2025, including 
changes therein that took place during the financial year 2024-25 and other relevant particulars, are given 
below: 
 

Sr. No Name of Directors Position No. of 
directorship 

No. of other Board 
Committee(s) in which s/he 

is 

Directorship 
in Other 

Listed 
company Chairperson Member 

1.  Mr. Gagan 
Nirmalkumar 

Mittal 

Chairman & Managing 
Director 

2 0 2 0 

2.  Mr. Ritesh 
Kamalkishore 

Hada 

Non-Executive Director 
Non Independent 

Director 

2 0 1 0 

3.  Mr. 
Nirmalkumar 
Mangalchand 

Mittal 

Non-Executive Director 
Non Independent 

Director 

1 0 0 0 

4.  Ms. Sejalben 
Shantilal 
Parmar 

Non-Executive Director 
Independent Director 

2 1 2 0 

5.  Ms. Rashmi 
Otavani 

Non-Executive Director 
Independent Director 

5 0 0 4 

6.  Mr. Safalkumar 
Patel 

Non-Executive Director 
Independent Director 

2 2 1 1 

 
SKILLS/EXPERTISE/ COMPETENCIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
 The Board Members are from diversified areas having the required knowledge. Competency, skills, and 
experience to effectively discharge their responsibilities. The range of experience of the Board Members 
includes in the areas of Plastics/Agriculture, Banking &, Finance, Taxation and Legal. The broad policies are 
framed by the Board of Directors. All strategic decisions are taken by the Board after due deliberation 
between the Board Members which consists of Managing Director, Executive Directors, Non- Executive 
Director and Independent Directors. A Matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Individual 
Directors is given below: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Area of Skill/Expertise 

 Knowle Behaviora Strategic & Financial Technical Skills 
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dge l skills Decision 
Making 

Skills Specialized 
Knowledge 

1.  Mr. Gagan N. Mittal ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 
2.  Mr. Ritesh   

Kamalkishore Hada 
✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

3.  Mr. Nirmalkumar 
Mangalchand Mittal 

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

4.  Ms. Sejalben Shantilal 
Parmar 

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

5.  Ms. Rashmi Otavani ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 
6.  Mr. Safalkumar Patel ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

 
BOARD EVALUATION: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including Schedule IV) and SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board conducts a formal annual evaluation of its own performance, those of its 
Committees, and its individual Directors. The Board’s performance review includes assessments of its 
composition, effectiveness of processes, governance standards, and quality of information flow. 
Committee evaluations focus on the clarity of mandate, fulfillment of responsibilities, and the frequency 
and effectiveness of meetings. Individual Directors—including the Chairman—are evaluated on 
adherence to the Board’s Code of Conduct, participation in meetings, preparedness, and contribution 
to the strengthening of corporate governance. In line with regulatory guidance, Independent Directors 
convene separately to evaluate the performance of non-independent Directors, the Board as a whole, 
and the Chairperson; while the Board as a whole (excluding the Independent Director under review) 
evaluates Independent Directors. 
 
BOARD AGENDA:  
 
The annual calendar of Board and Committee Meetings is agreed upon at the beginning of each year. 
Meetings are governed by a structured Agenda and a Board Member may bring up any matter for 
consideration of the meeting in consultation with the Chairman. Agenda papers are generally circulated 
to the Board Members at least 7 working days in advance. In addition, for any business exigencies the 
resolutions are passed by circulation and later placed at the subsequent Board or Committee Meeting 
for ratification/ approval. Detailed presentations are made at the meetings on all major issues to enable 
the Board to take informed decisions.  
 
NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS: 
 
The Board and its Committees convene at pre-scheduled intervals, aligned with the availability of 
Directors and Committee members, with Committee meetings typically held just prior to the Board 
meeting. Recommendations from these Committees are presented to the Board for approval or noting. 
The gap between two consecutive Board meetings consistently remained well within the regulatory 
maximum of 120 days. Meeting notices are dispatched within the timelines prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations.  
 

All meetings are conducted in person at the Company’s registered office, with agendas, comprehensive 
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background notes, and explanatory material circulated in advance. In exceptional cases, supplementary 
items may be added to the agenda. The agenda is prepared by the Company Secretary in consultation with 
the Managing Director and Chairman. Core statutory and material matters—as outlined in Part A of Schedule 
II of SEBI (LODR)—along with compliance updates, and Minutes of Board Committee meetings, are tabled 
for consideration. 
 
 Additionally, the Managing Director and/or CFO deliver operational presentations during these sessions. 
Post-meeting, key decisions are promptly communicated to relevant departments. In line with Secretarial 
Standards, draft and signed minutes are circulated within 15 days of the meeting’s conclusion, with Director 
feedback incorporated into final versions as needed. 
 
During the financial year under review, 09 (Nine) Board Meetings were held on the following dates and 
Quroum was present throughout in all the board meetings. 

 

Dates of Board Meetings Total Number of Directors 
associated as on the date of 

meeting 

Attendance 

Directors 
Present 

% of Attendance 

25.05.2024 6 6 100% 

14.08.2024 6 6 100% 

03.09.2024 6 6 100% 

14.11.2024 6 6 100% 

21.12.2024 6 6 100% 

12.02.2025 6 6 100% 

05.03.2025 6 6 100% 

22.03.2025 6 6 100% 

28.03.2025 6 6 100% 

 
The attendance of Directors at last 14th Annual General Meeting (AGM), along with number of shares held, 
are detailed in the table: 

 

Sr. No. Name of Director(s) Attendance in 14th 
AGM 

No. of Shares 
held as on 
31.03.2025 

1.  Mr. Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal Yes 32,96,850 

2.  Mr. Ritesh Kamalkishore Hada Yes 7,500 

3.  Mr. Nirmalkumar Mangalchand Mittal Yes 40,46,250 

4.  Ms. Sejalben Shantilal Parmar Yes NIL 

5.  Ms. Rashmi Otavani Yes NIL 

6.  Mr. Safalkumar Patel Yes NIL 

 
INVITEES & PROCEEDINGS: 

 
 Apart from the Board Members, the Company Secretary, the Heads of Manufacturing and Marketing are 
invited to attend all the Board Meetings. Other senior management executives are called as and when 
necessary, to provide additional inputs for the matters being discussed by the Board. The CFO makes 
presentation on the quarterly and annual operating & financial performance and on annual operating & 



          

 

Page | 54  

 

capex budget. The Managing Director and other senior executives make presentations on capex proposals & 
progress, operational health & safety and other business issues. 

 
INDUCTION & FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMS FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:  
 
 The board consist of three Independent Directors as at 31st March, 2025. On appointment, the concerned 
new Independent Director is issued a letter of Appointment setting out in detail, the terms of appointment, 
duties and responsibilities. The newly appointed Independent Directors of the Company are familiarized with 
the various aspects of the Company provided with an overview of the requisite criteria of independence, 
roles, rights, duties and responsibilities of directors, terms of appointment of the Company and policies of 
the Company and other important regulatory aspects as relevant for directors. The Business Heads, CFO, 
Compliance Officer and Executive Director update the Board on business model of the Company, the nature 
of industry and its dynamism, the roles, responsibilities and liabilities of Independent Directors, etc. Further, 
business, legal, regulatory and industry updates are made available to the Independent Directors. The details 
of Familiarization program available on below link: https://www.upgl.in/policy/familarization-program-
for-independent-directors.pdf   
 
REMUNERATION POLICY AND DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION: 
 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited has developed its Nomination & Remuneration Policy in full compliance with 
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, to ensure fair and equitable compensation 
across Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), and employees. This market-driven policy is crafted to 
attract, retain, and motivate high-performing talent by aligning compensation with individual skills, 
experience, and responsibilities. The reward structure comprises a strategic mix of fixed salary, benefits, 
perquisites, and performance-linked variable pay, reflecting prevailing industry standards and role-specific 
expectations. Our remuneration framework is performance-oriented, with periodic reviews that 
acknowledge and incentivize achievement. Executive leadership—comprising the Chairman, Managing 
Director, and Executive Directors—are remunerated through salary, benefits, and allowances. Notably, no 
pecuniary transactions occurred with Non-Executive or Independent Directors beyond approved 
remuneration and disclosures in the “Related Party Transactions.” This disciplined approach ensures that 
compensation remains transparent, merit-based, and consistent with stakeholder interests. 
The Remuneration Policy has been updated on the website of the Company at: 
https://www.upgl.in/policy/nomination-and-remuneration-policy.pdf  
 
SEPARATE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’S MEETING: 
 
In accordance with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of Independent Directors 
was held on 28th March 2025, chaired by Ms. Sejalben Shantilal Parmar following mutual consent and 
concurrence from all attendees. All three Independent Directors were present. During the session, they 
evaluated the performance of the Non-Independent Directors—including the Chairperson—and assessed 
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole. The Directors also reviewed the quality, timeliness, and adequacy 
of information flow between management, the Company, and the Board to ensure that the Board fulfils its 
oversight responsibilities effectively. 

 
● Performance evaluation criteria: 
The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own 

https://www.upgl.in/policy/familarization-program-for-independent-directors.pdf
https://www.upgl.in/policy/familarization-program-for-independent-directors.pdf
https://www.upgl.in/policy/nomination-and-remuneration-policy.pdf
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performance and that of its committees and individual Directors. Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 
states that the performance evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of 
Directors, excluding the director being evaluated. 
▪ Attendance and contribution at Board and Committee meetings 
▪ His/her stature, appropriate mix of expertise, skills, behavior, experience, leadership qualities, sense of 
sobriety and understanding of business, strategic direction to align Company’s value and standards 
▪ His/her knowledge of finance, accounts, legal, investment, marketing, foreign exchange/ hedging, 
internal controls, risk management, assessment and mitigation, business operations, processes and 
corporate governance 
▪ His/her ability to create a performance culture that drives value creation and a high quality of debate 
with robust and probing discussions 
▪ Effective decisions making ability to respond positively and constructively to implement the same to 
encourage more transparency 
▪ Recognize the role which he/she is expected to play, internal Board Relationships to make decisions 
objectively and collectively in the best interest of the Company to achieve organizational successes and 
harmonizing the Board 
▪ Quality of decision making on source of raw material/procurement of roughs, export marketing, 
understanding financial statements and business performance, raising of finance, best source of finance, 
working capital requirement, forex dealings, geopolitics, human resources etc. 
 
As part of the annual performance evaluation of the Board/individual Directors for the year under review, 
analysis of the skills, experience and expertise of the Directors was carried out, which brought out that the 
Board of Directors possesses the right and optimal skill sets for effective functioning of the Company. 
 
FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
The Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company along 
with necessary documents, reports and internal policies. The Company through presentations at regular 
intervals, familiarizes and updates the Independent Directors with the strategy, operations and functions of 
the Company and Agriculture Industry as a Whole and business model. The details of such familiarization 
programmes imparted to Independent Directors can be accessed on the website of the Company at 
https://www.upgl.in/policy/familarization-program-for-independent-directors.pdf .  
 
BOARD COMMITTEES: 
 
During the year under review, the Company maintained all mandatory Board Committees—Audit, 
Nomination & Remuneration, Stakeholders’ Relationship, and Corporate Social Responsibility—as well as an 
additional non-mandatory committee dedicated to overseeing routine business transactions. As the 
Company does not fall within the category of the top 1,000 listed entities, constituting a Risk Management 
Committee is not mandatory; however, a structured Risk Management policy is nonetheless in place. 

  
Each Committee operates within defined terms of reference regarding its scope, responsibilities, and 
authority. Committee decisions and recommendations are systematically presented to the Board for 
approval or noting, and the procedural norms applicable to Board meetings are largely extended to 
Committee sessions wherever feasible. Committees are empowered to engage external experts, advisors, or 
counsel at their discretion, and inviting senior function heads or officers to deliver presentations on key 
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matters enhances the effectiveness of deliberations. 
 
Draft minutes of Committee meetings are circulated promptly to members for review and feedback, and 
finalized minutes are confirmed at the subsequent meeting. The Board reviews and takes note of these 
minutes in its own meetings, ensuring transparency and continuity of governance. 
 
 Your company has constituted following committees consisting members of the board. The terms of 
reference of these committees have determined by the board from time to time: 
i. Audit Committee; 
ii.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee; 
iii.   Stakeholders Relationship Committee; 
 

i. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
Pursuant to requirement of Section 177(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has formulated Audit 
Committee. The Audit committee reports to the board. The Chairperson and the members of Audit 
Committee are financially literate and have the required accounting and financial management expertise. 
The Independent Audit Committee of United Polyfab Gujarat Limited serves as the essential liaison between 
management, internal and external auditors, and the Board. It ensures diligent oversight of the Company’s 
financial reporting process by guiding audit functions, monitoring the scope and efficacy of both internal and 
statutory audits, and ensuring disclosures are accurate, timely, and uphold the highest standards of 
transparency, fairness, integrity, and financial reporting quality. The Audit Committee considers the matters 
which are specifically referred to it by the Board of Directors besides considering the mandatory 
requirements of the Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) and Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
● BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF ROLES AND OBJECTIVES ARE AS UNDER: 
 
▪ Financial reporting- Validate accuracy, disclosures, and compliance of financial statements 
▪ Audit Oversight- Appoint, monitor, and assess internal and statutory auditors 
▪ Fund & Investment Oversight- Ensure correct fund usage and scrutinize related party transactions 
▪ Risk & Control Governance- Evaluate internal controls, risk frameworks, fraud responses 
▪ Whistleblower Mechanism- Review and ensure the efficacy of ethical reporting channels 
▪ External Expertise & Investigation- Engage experts and auditors as required for thorough reviews. 
▪ Reviewing- The annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval, with particular 
reference to;  

 
a. matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 ;  
b. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices along with reasons for the same;  
c. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 
d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;  
e. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 
f. disclosure of any related party transactions; and 
g. Qualifications in the audit report 

 
● THE AUDIT COMMITTEE SHALL MANDATORILY REVIEW THE FOLLOWING: 
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▪ management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
▪  statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), 

submitted by management; 
▪ management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
▪ internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
▪ the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor. 

 

● DATES OF MEETINGS: 
During the year under review the Audit Committee met 04 (Four) times i.e. on following dates: 
1. 25.05.2024 
2. 14.08.2024 
3. 21.12.2024 
4. 12.02.2025 
 
● COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE: 
The Composition of Audit Committee as on 31st March, 2025 and the attendance of members at the above 
Audit Committee meetings during the year were as follows: 

 
  
The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, 
and as permitted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to 
time. The necessary quorum was present for all the said Audit Committee Meetings. The Chief Financial 
Officer and Company Secretary are the regular invitees to attend the Committee meetings. The Audit 
Committee also invites such other executives as it considers appropriate to be present at the meetings of 
the Committee. 
 

ii. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:  
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s (NRC) constitution and terms of reference are in 
compliance with provisions of the Section 178(1) Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR). 

 
● Brief description of roles and responsibilities of the NRC are as under: 
▪ Develop criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of directors. 
▪ Review and suggest revision of the total remuneration package of the Executive Directors keeping in 
view the performance of the Company, standards prevailing in the industry, statutory guidelines etc. 
▪ Identify individuals qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management, in 
accordance with the criteria laid down. 
▪ Recommend to the Board their appointment and removal 
▪ Formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board of Directors. 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director Nature of Directorship Position in 
Committee 

Attendance at the 
Committee Meeting 

1.  Mr.Safalkumar 
Hasmukhbhai Patel 

Independent Director Chairperson 100% 

2.  Ms. Sejalben Shantilal 
Parmar 

Independent Director Member 100% 

3.  Mr. Gagan N. Mittal Executive Director Member 100% 
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▪ Recommend to the Board, whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent 
director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 
▪ Devise a policy on diversity of the Board of Directors 
 
● DATES OF MEETINGS: 
During the year under review the Nomination and Remuneration committee met 02 (TWO) time i.e. on 
following dates: 
1. 03.09.2024 
2. 28.03.2025 
 
● COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE:  
The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31st March, 2025 and the attendance 
of members at the above Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings during the year were as 
follows: 

 
The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, 
and as permitted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to 
time. The necessary quorum was present for all the said Audit Committee Meetings. The Chief Financial 
Officer and Company Secretary are the regular invitees to attend the Committee meetings.  
 

iii.STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
Pursuant to requirement of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has formulated 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 
 
● Brief description of roles and responsibilities of the SRC are as under: 

 
▪ Allotment, transfer of shares including transmission, splitting of shares, changing joint holding into 
single holding and vice versa, issue of duplicate shares in lieu of those torn, destroyed, lost or defaced or 
where the cages in the reverse for recording transfers have been fully utilized. 
▪ Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/consolidation/renewal, etc. 
▪ Non-receipt of share certificate(s), non-receipt of declared dividends, nonreceipt of interest/dividend 
warrants, non-receipt of annual report and any other grievance/complaints with Company or any officer of 
the Company arising out in discharge of his duties 
▪ Oversee the performance of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and also review and take note of 
complaints directly received and resolved them. 
▪ Oversee the implementation and compliance of the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company for 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director Nature  of 
Directorship  

Position in 
Committee 

Attendance at the 
Committee 
Meeting 

1.  Mr. Safalkumar 
Hasmukhbhai Patel 

Independent 
Director 

Chairperson 100% 

2.  Ms. Sejalben Shantilal 
Parmar 

Independent 
Director 

Member 100% 

3.  Mr. Ritesh Kamalkishore 
Hada 

 Non-Executive 
Director 

Member 100% 
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prevention of Insider Trading for Listed Companies as specified in the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulation, 2015, as amended from time to time. 
▪ Any other power specifically assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time by 
way of resolution passed by it in a duly conducted Meeting. 

 
● Dates of meetings:  
During the year under review the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met 04 (Four) time on the following 
dates: 
1. 25.05.2024 
2. 14.08.2024 
3. 14.11.2024 
4. 05.03.2025 
 
● Composition of Committee: 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Nature of 
Directorship 

Position in 
Committee 

Attendance at the 
committee meeting 

1.  Ms.Sejalben Shantilal Parmar Independent 
Director 

Chairperson 100% 

2.  Mr.Safalkumar Hasmukhbhai 
Patel 

Independent 
Director 

Member 100% 

3.  Mr. Gagan N. Mittal Executive Director Member 100% 

 
The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, 

and as permitted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to 

time. The necessary quorum was present for all the said Audit Committee Meetings. The Chief Financial 

Officer and Company Secretary are the regular invitees to attend the Committee meetings. 

● Name & Designation and address of the Compliance Officer: 

CS Vidya Baghel 

Survey no. 238, 239, Shahwadi, Opp. New Aarvee denim, Narol-Surkhej Highway 

 Ahmedabad - 382 405 

 

● Status of Complaints pending, received, disposed and unresolved: 

Pursuant to the Regulation 13(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015; the details regarding investor’s complaints during the Financial 2024-25 are as follows: 

 

Number of Shareholders’ Complaints Pending at the end of the year NIL 

Number of Shareholders’ Complaints received during the year NIL 

Number of Shareholders’ Complaints disposed during the year NIL 

Number of Shareholders’ Complaints remain unresolved during the year NIL 
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● Email IDs for investors: 

Your Company has a designated e-mail ID, info@unitedpolyfab.com for the redressal of any Stakeholders’ 

related grievances exclusively for the purpose of registering complaints by Members/stakeholders. Investor 

can also contact share Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company on their email 

id:info@satellitecorporate.com. Your Company has also displayed other relevant details prominently for 

creating investor/stakeholder awareness under the investors section at its website www.upgl.in. 

 

● SEBI SCORES: 

SEBI vide circular July 31, 2023 and subsequent circular dated December 20, 2023, read with Master Circular 

dated August 11, 2023, has specified that a shareholder shall first take up his/her/their grievance with the 

listed entity/RTA by lodging a complaint directly with the concerned listed entity/RTA and if the grievance is 

not redressed satisfactorily, the shareholder may, in accordance with the SCORES guidelines, escalate the 

same through the SCORES Portal in accordance with the process laid out therein. Only after exhausting all 

available options for resolution of the grievance, if the shareholder is not satisfied with the outcome, he/she/ 

they can initiate dispute resolution through the Online Dispute Resolution (“ODR”) Portal. Shareholders are 

requested to take note of the same. Link to the ODR Portal is also available on the Company’s website at 

https://www. upgl.in/investor-relations/ 

 

● Governance to Shareholders: 

1. General Body Meetings: 

a) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”): 

Annual General Meetings of earlier three years: 

 

Financial  Year AGM Date & Time Summary of Special 

Resolution(s) passed 

Venue 

2024-2023 14th  September 27, 

2024 at 04:30 

P.M. 

1.Approval For Sell, Lease or 

Otherwise Dispose Of The 

Whole or Substantially The 

Whole Of The Undertaking Of 

The Company or Where The 

Company Owns More Than 

One Undertaking, of The Whole 

or Substantially The Whole of 

Such Undertakings. 

2.Approval For Authority To 

Borrow Money In Excess of 

Paid-Up Share Capital And Free 

Reserves of The Company 

Under Section 180(1)(C) Of The 

Companies Act, 2013 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”) / Other 

Audio Visual 

Means 

(“OAVM”) via 

Zoom 

platform at 

Registered 

office 

mailto:info@unitedpolyfab.com
mailto:info@satellitecorporate.com
http://www.upgl.in/
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3.Approval Of Loans, 

Guarantee Or Security Under 

Section 185 Of Companies Act, 

2013 

4.Approval For Granting Power 

To The Board Of Directors 

Under Section 186 Of The 

Companies Act, 2013 

2023-2022 13th  September 29, 

2023 at 04.30 

P.M. 

1.Approval Of Loans, 

Guarantee Or Security under 

Section 185 of Companies Act, 

2013. 

2. Approval of remuneration of 

Mr. Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal 

(DIN: 00593377) as Chairman & 

Managing Director of the 

company. 

3. Ratification of Remuneration 

payable to Cost Auditor for the 

Financial Year 2023-24. 

4. Ratification of material 

related party transaction(s) 

entered with United Polyfab 

Private Limited. 

5. Ratification Of Material 

Related Party Transaction(S) 

Entered with United Techfab 

Private Limited. 

6. Approval of material related 

party transaction(s) with 

United Polyfab Private Limited 

for FY. 2023-24. 

7. Approval of material related 

party transaction(s) with 

United Techfab Private Limited 

for FY. 2023-24. 

8. Approval of material related 

party transaction(s) with 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”) / Other 

Audio Visual 

Means 

(“OAVM”) via 

Zoom 

platform at 

Registered 

office 
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United Cotfab LLP for FY. 2023-

24. 

2022-2021 12th September 30, 

2022; 04.34 P.M 

1.Appointment of Ms. Rashmi 

Kamlesh Otavani (DIN: 

06976600) as an Independent 

Director of the company 

2. Appointment of Mr. 

Safalkumar Hasmukhbhai Patel 

(DIN: 08107710) as an 

Independent Director of the 

company. 

3. Alteration in the object 

clause of Memorandum of 

Association 

4. Adoption of New Set of 

Articles of Association of the 

company 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”) / Other 

Audio Visual 

Means 

(“OAVM”) via 

Zoom 

platform at 

Registered 

office 

 

b) Extra-Ordinary General Meetings (EGM): 

 During the year under review , pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, the SEBI listing Regulations 

and relevant circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs there was no EGM held. 

 

c) Postal Ballot: 

During the year under review , pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, the SEBI listing Regulations 

and relevant circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs Company has not sought any approval of 

shareholders through Postal Ballot. 

 

● MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

The communication is the key element of the overall Corporate Governance framework. Your Company 

constantly interacts with Shareholders through multiple channels of communication such as result 

announcement, annual report, Company’s website, stock exchange submissions, social media 

announcements, Newspaper publications and other specific communications, as applicable. 

 

1. Quarterly and Annual Financial Results: 

 

During the year, Company has declared all financials results within the stipulated time provided under the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. During the year, Half Yearly 

Unaudited Financial Results with Limited Review Report and Annual Audited Financial Results (both 

standalone and consolidated) of the Company with Auditors’ Report thereon are submitted to the stock 

exchanges on their respective web portals i.e. “NEAPS”, within the prescribed timelines. These results are 
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also published in the newspapers, majorly in ‘Financial Express’ both English & Gujarati edition newspaper. 

Simultaneously, the results are also hosted on the Company’s website on: 

https://www.upgl.in/investors.html 

 

The Company has not made any presentations to the institutional investors or to the analysts during the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2025. 

 

2. Electronic Circulation of Annual Reports & AGM Notifications: 

 

In compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, relevant MCA Circulars (dated April 8, 
April 13, and May 5, 2020) and the SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, United Polyfab Gujarat Limited has 
transitioned to electronic dissemination of its Annual Report for the financial year 2024–25 to its 
shareholders who have opted for communications in electronic mode. Physical copies were discontinued in 
response to the exceptional challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Additionally, the Annual Report for both FY 2023–24 and FY 2024–25 is accessible on the Company’s official 
website, ensuring full transparency and ease of access to all stakeholders. 
 
3. Shareholder Communication and Digital Transition: 
 
In adherence to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and in alignment with the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) General Circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, and May 5, 2020, as well as the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular dated May 12, 2020, United Polyfab Gujarat Limited has adopted 
electronic communication as the primary mode for disseminating shareholder communications, including 
Annual Reports, Notices, Dividend Payment Advices, and other pertinent information. 
For shareholders who have registered their email addresses with the Company, all communications are sent 
electronically. For those who have not registered their email addresses, the Company ensures compliance 
by publishing the relevant information in widely circulated newspapers, ‘Financial Express’ both English & 
Gujarati edition, thereby fulfilling the requirements set forth by the aforementioned MCA and SEBI Circulars. 
 
Embracing technological advancements, the Company is committed to a paperless communication approach, 
thereby conserving resources and reducing environmental impact. Shareholders who have not yet registered 
their email addresses are encouraged to do so by contacting the Company directly or through their respective 
depositories. 
 
4. Website: 
 

United Polyfab Gujarat Limited is committed to transparent and efficient communication with its 
shareholders. To facilitate this, the Company maintains a dedicated Investor Relations section on its 
official website, www.upgl.in, where shareholders can access a comprehensive range of information. 
This includes: 

• Half-yearly and annual financial results 
• Notices of Board Meetings and outcomes 
• Annual Reports 
• Shareholding patterns 
• Corporate policies 
• Announcements and news 

https://www.upgl.in/investors.html


          

 

Page | 64  

 

• Stock exchange filings 
This centralized platform ensures that all relevant information is readily accessible to shareholders, 
promoting transparency and informed decision-making. 
 
5. Compliance Filings via NEAPS: 
 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited utilizes the National Stock Exchange’s (NSE) NEAPS (NSE Electronic 
Application Processing System), a secure web-based platform designed for listed companies to submit 
periodic compliance filings in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements (LODR) Regulations. Through NEAPS, the Company electronically 
files key disclosures, including: 
• Shareholding Patterns 
• Corporate Governance Reports 
• Financial Results 
• Investor Complaints 
• Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Reports 
• Other Corporate Announcements 
 
These filings are made in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the 
rules made thereunder, read with General Circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, and May 5, 2020, 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, and Circular dated May 12, 2020, issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India. 
 
6. DIVIDEND PAYMENT HISTORY (including the year under review): 
 
The company has not paid any dividend since its incorporation. 
 
(a) TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND: 
 
In accordance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) 
read with Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 
(hereinafter referred to as the “IEPF Rules”), all unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the 
Company to the IEPF, after completion of seven (7) years. Further, according to IEPF Rules, the shares on 
which dividend has not been claimed by the shareholders for seven (7) consecutive years or more shall be 
transferred to the de-mat account of the IEPF Authority. 
 
(b) GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 
 

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) L18109GJ2010PLC062928 

Registered Office Survey No. 238, 239, Shahwadi, Opp. New 
Aarvee Denim, Narol-Sarkhej Highway, 
Ahmedabad – 382405 

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) INE368U01029 

Listed on Stock Exchanges The National Stock Exchange of India (NSE) (Main 
board). 

Trading Symbol NSE- UNITEDPOLY 
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      15th Annual General Meeting: 

Day, Date and Time  Venue 

Tuesday, 30th September, 2025 at 04:30 P.M VC/OVM mode (Virtual Mode) 

 
Financial Calendar:  
The Financial year of the company is for period of 12 months from 1st April to 31st March. The financial result 
of the company is scheduled to be published in the Annual Report. 
 
 Dematerialization Of Shares: 
All the shares of the company are in Demat form. There are no Physical shares in existence. 
 
Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants Or Any Convertible Instruments: 
There are no outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / Convertible Instruments of the Company and hence, the 
same is not applicable to the Company. 
 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (‘RTA’):  
All work related to Share Registry are handled by the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Satellite 
Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. The communication address of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent is given 
hereunder: 
 
Satellite Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 
A/106-107, Dattani Plaza,  
East West Indl. Compound, 
Andheri Kurla Road,  
Safed Pool,Sakinaka,  
Mumbai-400072. 
E-mail: service@satellitecorporate.com 
Tel no.28520461-62 
 
Address for Correspondence:  
Shareholders can also send their correspondence to the Company with respect to their shares, dividend, 
request for annual reports and other grievances. The contact details are provided below: 
 
Ms. Vidya Baghel 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer  
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited  

   Survey No. 238, 239, Shahwadi, Opp. New Aarvee Denim, 
Narol-Sarkhej Highway, Ahmedabad – 382405 
Email: info@unitedpolyfab.com 
Website: www.upgl.in 

 
Market Price Data: 
 
Details of high and low price and the number of shares traded during each month in the last financial year 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) are as under: 

 

mailto:service@satellitecorporate.com
mailto:info@unitedpolyfab.com
http://www.upgl.in/
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Month High (`) Low (`) Volume (No. of 
Shares) 

Turnover (In Lakhs) 

Apr-24 97.65 95.05 4744 ₹ 457758.9 

May-24 91.8 85.2 19825 ₹ 1740803.35 

Jun-24 87.35 84.25 2793 ₹ 239395.63 

Jul-24 90.5 86.9 15863 ₹ 1390674.17 

Aug-24 88.3 87 3876 ₹ 338730.37 

Sep-24 140 129.59 45188 ₹ 5984034.36 

Oct-24 114.84 112 5951 ₹ 678463.31 

Nov-24 147.7 147.69 19718 ₹ 2912237.84 

Dec-24 165.25 163 10442 ₹ 1713360 

Jan-25 171.42 160 28185 ₹ 4768725.02 

Feb-25 162 145 15997 ₹ 2371524.04 

Mar-25 153 148.17 1352 ₹ 202509.26 

 

Performance in Comparison to other Indices: 

UPGL’s share price movement compared to NSE Nifty 50 (closing price on last trading day of the month): 

 

 

      The distribution of shareholding (non-PAN based) as on 31st March, 2025, is as under: 
 

No. of shares ranging  No. of 
Holders 

%  of  Total 
Holders 

No. of 
Shares 

% of Total 
Shares From To 

1 500 2741 91.61 154693 0.67 

501 1000 76 2.54 61620 0.27 

1001 2000 57 1.91 86781 0.38 

2001 3000 17 0.57 43955 0.19 
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3001 4000 12 0.4 41720 0.18 

4001 5000 8 0.27 37086 0.16 

5001 10000 21 0.7 155728 0.68 

10001 & Above 60 0.66 22369967 97.47 

Total 2992 100 22951550 100 

 

        The Category-Wise Holding As On 31st March, 2025: 

 

7. DISCLOSURES: 
 
a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with 
the interests of listed entity at large: 
All transactions entered into with the Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and do not 
attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. There were no materially significant 
transactions with Related Parties during the financial year. Related party transactions have been disclosed 
under significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the Financial Statements in accordance with 
“IND AS”. A statement in summary form of transactions with Related Parties in ordinary course of business 
and arm’s length basis is periodically placed before the Audit committee for review and recommendation to 
the Board for their approval. 
 
b) Details of material subsidiaries of the company, including the date and place of incorporation and the 
name and date of appointment of the statutory auditor of such subsidiaries: 

 During year under review i.e. FY 2024-25, the Company do not have any material subsidiary, whether listed 
or unlisted, in India or abroad. 

 

Category No. of shares % of Total 
Shares 

Promoters 11541992 50.29 

Clearing Members 1250 0.01 

Mutual Funds NIL NIL 

Central Government (IEPF) NIL NIL 

Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies NIL NIL 

Foreign Institutional Investor 1404000 6.12 

Resident Individuals holding nominal share capital up 
to/excess Rs. 2 lakhs 

4236331 18.46 

Bodies Corporate 4757165 20.73 

Other  Bodies Corporate 869024 3.79 

Non Resident Indians 141788 0.60 

TOTAL : 22951550 100 
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c) Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism Policy: 

Pursuant to Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, the 

Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors and employees to report to the 

management about the unethical behaviour, fraud or violation of Company’s code of conduct. The mechanism provides 

for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who use such mechanism and makes 

provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. None of the personnel of the 

Company have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the Company’s 

website viz. https://www.upgl.in/policy/vigil-mechanism.pdf. Weblink for the same is https://upgl.in/policy/vigil-

mechanism.pdf 

d) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

Under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,2013, following are 

the disclosures for the year under review: 

 

 Disclosures of the Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 
And Regulation 46(2): 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the SME’s are not required to mandatorily comply with the provisions as specified in regulations 17, 17A, 18, 
19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C, 
D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In 
view of better Corporate Governance point of view Company has complied with major provisions of the 
aforementioned regulations. Company has complied with all the corporate governance requirements (as far 
as were applicable to the company) as specified in the aforementioned regulations on the main board of the 
NSE. 

Compliance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“PIT Regulations”) and Code of Fair 
Practices and Disclosure (Fair Disclosure Code): 

 

The Company has formulated Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in company’s Securities (“PIT 
Code”) and Fair Disclosure Code in accordance with PIT Regulations with an objective of protecting the 
interest of Shareholders at large and preventing misuse of any Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 
(UPSI). The PIT Code aims at preventing insider trading activity by dealing in shares of the Company by its 
Designated Persons, other employees and their immediate relatives. The objective of this Fair Disclosure 
Code is to ensure timely and adequate public disclosure of UPSI no sooner than credible and concrete 
information comes into being in order to make such information generally available. The Company has 
amended PIT Code and Fair Disclosure Code in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 from time to time as per the regulations. 

The PIT Code and Fair Disclosure Codes are available on the website of the Company on www.upgl.in/. 

 

8. Mandatory/ Non-Mandatory Requirements: 

 

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements laid down by the Regulations 27 of the Listing 

Particulars FY 24-25 FY 23-24 

Number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil Nil 

Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year Nil Nil 

Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year Nil Nil 

https://www.upgl.in/policy/vigil-mechanism.pdf.
https://www.upgl.in/policy/vigil-mechanism.pdf.
https://www.upgl.in/policy/vigil-mechanism.pdf.
http://www.upgl.in/
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Obligations and Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015. The non-mandatory requirements complied 
with wherever requires and same has been disclosed at the relevant places. 

Reporting of Internal Auditor: 

The Internal Auditors M/s  K Tibrewalla & Co., Chartered Accountant have reported directly to the Audit 
Committee of the Company. 
 

 Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                     For and on behalf of Board of Directors,  

 Date: September 06, 2025                                                                                     United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

                                                                                                                                                                                    Sd/- 

                                                                                                                                               Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal 

                                                                                                                                   Chairman and Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                                  DIN: (00593377) 
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                                                                        ANNEXURE-H 

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

 

To, 
The Members of 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by United Polyfab Gujarat 

Limited for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 as stipulated in relevant regulations of Listing Regulation 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. The compliance of conditions 
of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company. 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify 
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-
mentioned SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

 

JITENDRAKUMAR REWASHANKAR RAWAL 
COMPANY SECRETARY 

Place: 
Date: 

Surat 
03.09.2025 

C.P. NO. 20283   
MEM. NO. A54651   
UDIN: A054651G001155212   
PEER REVIEW NO. 2302/2022   
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ANNEXURE – I 
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To, 
The Members of 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 

Directors of United Polyfab Gujarat Limited CIN L18109GJ2010PLC062928 and having registered office 

at Survey No. 238, 239, Shahwadi, Opp. New Aarvee Denim,Narol-Surkhej Highway, Ahmedabad – 382 

405, Gujarat, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company 

for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-

C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary 

and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the 

Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 

2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 

companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 

other Statutory Authority. 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director and Designation DIN Date of appointment in 

Company* 

1.  Gagan N Mittal- Chairman & Managing 

Director 

00593377 16/11/2010 

2.  Nirmalkumar M. Mittal- Non-Executive 

Director 

  

3.  Ritesh K. Hada- Non-Executive Director 01528758 22/11/2021 

4.  Sejalben S. Parmar-Independent 

Director 

01919749 16/11/2010 

5.  Mr. Safalkumar Hasmukhbhai Patel – 

Independent Director 
07401639 12/01/2016 

6.  Mrs. Rashmi Kamlesh Otavani – 

Independent Director 

08107710 31/08/2022 

 

*The date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

http://www.mca.gov.in/
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Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company. 
 

JITENDRAKUMAR REWASHANKAR RAWAL 
COMPANY SECRETARY 

Place: 
Date: 

Surat 
03.09.2025 

C.P. NO. 20283   
MEM. NO. A54651   
UDIN: A054651G001155190   
PEER REVIEW NO. 2302/2022   
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ANNEXURE – J 

                                                         DECLARATION REGARDING CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
 

All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have, for the year ended 31st March, 2025 have 
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct laid down by the Board of Directors in terms of Regulation 17 
(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                      For and on behalf of Board of Directors,  

Date: September 06, 2025                                                                                       United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

                                                                                                                                                                                    Sd/- 

                                                                                                                                              Gagan Nirmalkumar Mittal 

                                                                                                                                   Chairman and Managing Director 

                                                                                                                                                                  DIN: (00593377) 
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ANNEXURE – K 

  CFO CERTIFICATION 

Certificate in terms of Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

To, 
The Members of 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

In accordance with Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we certify that: 

a) we have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on 31st March, 
2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during 
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct. 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that 
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial 
reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or 
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to 
take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee: 

i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements; and 

iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting 

 
                                                                                                 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors 

Place:  Ahmedabad                                                                                                Mahesh Gupta  
Date:  May 26, 2025                                                                                    (Chief Financial Officer) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 

To the Members of  
United POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED         
    
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of 
Cash Flows, the statement of changes in equity and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  
 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of 
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
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are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the 
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the financial statements 

 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its Profit/Loss and its Cash Flow for the year ended on that date. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 

A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books; 

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 

are in agreement with the books of account 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 

section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record 

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed 

as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses.  
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 

 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 

in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) 

or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

  

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 

in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 

 

v.   The company has not declared any dividend during the year as per section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

vi. The company has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all 

transactions recorded in the software and audit trail feature has not been tampered with and the audit trail 

has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.  

 
                                                                                                                                                           For and on behalf of  
                                                                                                                                                     Rajiv Shah & Associates 
                                                                                                                                                       Chartered Accountants  
 

                                                                                                                                                         Rajiv C Shah (Partner) 

         Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                                         M. No.: 043261 
         Date: 26/05/2025                                                                                                                 FRN No.: 108454W            
                                                                                                                                         UDIN: 25043261BMKYZA6293   
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

 
Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report 
of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025: 
 

1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plants and Equipments; 

 
(b) The Property Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the management in a phased 

manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion 
of the fixed asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material 
discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed. 
 

(c) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the record 
of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 
 

(d) The company has not revalued all its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Leasehold assets) through 
registered valuer. 
 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under, thus 
reporting under clause 3(i)(e). 
 
 

2) a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals. No 
discrepancies in of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed. 
 
b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, 

from banks on the basis of security of current assets; The company has been regularly submitting  
Stock/Book-Debt statement to such bank. According to information and explanation given to us and 
as disclosed in the financial statement, prepared in accordance with Schedule III of the companies Act, 
2013 and rules amended there under, there is no material discrepancies in the books of accounts as 
compared with returns submitted to bank. 

 
3) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has, during the year the company has 
granted loans or advances in the nature of unsecured loans to companies. 
 
(i) According to information and explanation given to us, the company has advanced following amount: 

 
                                                                                             (Amount in Rs.) 

 Loans 

Aggregate amount Granted during the year, to; 
- Subsidiaries 
- Other 

 
11,00,000 

9,66,83,574 
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Balance Outstanding at Balance Sheet date in the following 
classes: 

- Subsidiary 
- Others 

 
 

20,610 
- 

 
(ii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions 
of loans provided are not prejudicial to the interest of the company,  
 
(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the loan repayment schedule is not stipulated. 
Although rate of interest on the loan has been stipulated. The repayment receipts are regular in nature, 
 
(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no overdue for the company and thus 
reporting under clause 3(iii)(d) is not applicable, 
 
(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fresh loans have been extended for renewal 
of overdue amount and thus reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) is not applicable, 
 
(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, following are the details of loans; 
 

                                                                                                              (Amount in Rs.) 

 All Parties 

Aggregate amount of loans and advances in the nature of loans- 
- Repayable on Demand 
- Advance done in absence of agreement 

 
 

9,66,83,574 
 

Total 9,66,83,574 

Percentage of loans/advances in the nature of loans to the total 
loans  

100 % 

 
All the advances in the nature of loan are received by the company in the same year. 
 

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied 
with the provisions of section 185 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, 
investments, guarantees and securities.  
 

5) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance 
of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

 
6) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the company is required to maintain the Cost 

Records pursuant to rules made by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, 
in respect of the activities carried on by the company. The company maintains cost records and accounts as 
per Companies Act, 2013 and rules amended there under. The company has appointed cost auditor vide 
filing of Form CRA-2. 
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7) a)  According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory 
dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess or GST and any other statutory dues with the appropriate 
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the 
date on which they become payable. 
 
b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or GST as at  March 31, 2025. 
 

Tax Deducting at source (TDS): 

 

Sr. No Particulars Total Default(in Rs.) 

1. F.Y.: 2013-14 11,420 

 

2. F.Y.: 2018-19 1,160 
 

3. F.Y.: 2019-20 800 

 

4. F.Y.: 2020-21 

 

10,300 

 

5. F.Y.: 2021-22 

 

390 

6. F.Y.: 2024-25 

 

1,19,300 

 
Direct Tax : 
 

Name of the 
Statute 

Nature of the 
Dues 

Amount (in 
Rs.) 

Period to 
which an 
amount 
relates 
(Financial 
Year) 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

Remarks, 
if any 

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Tax Demand 2,872 2019-20 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 

- 

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Tax Demand 3,52,290 2017-18 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 

- 
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8) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any   
transactions not recorded in the books of account, which need to be surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).  

 
9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the company  
 
(a) has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon 

to any lender. 
 
(b) the company is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 
 
(c) the term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained 
 
(d) funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes, 
 
(e) the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 

obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, 
 
(f) the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 

joint ventures or associate companies 
 

10) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
including debt instruments. 
 
(b) On the basis of information and explanations given by the management, the company has made 
allotment of equity shares during the year pursuant to conversion of equity share warrants. The said 
allotment was in conformity with section 42 and62(1)(c) and other applicable rules, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The funds raised by the company have been utilized for the purpose for they were 
raised. 

  
11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during the year. On general examination of records of the company, we 
have not received any whistle blower complaints of the company. 
 

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements in Note:28 as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 
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14) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 
 
(b) Based on the records of the company, provision of section 138 of Companies Act are applicable to the 
company where the company needs to carry out internal audit as per Company Rules, 2014. We have 
considered the internal audit reports of the 
company issued till date, for the period under audit.  
 
15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon. 
 
16) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon. 
 
17) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not made any cash loss during the year. 
                                                                         
18) There has been no resignation of the auditor during the year. 
 
19) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, Financial Ratios along with detailed working as on the date of balance sheet is provided on 
notes of the financial statement issued by the management of the company is found satisfactorily. Further 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans, have been verified by us and we report that no material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that company is they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
Although we do not provide any guarantee for realization of liabilities.  
 
20) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation provided to us, as per section 135 of 
the companies act, 2013, there is no unspent amount of Corporate Social Responsibility of company. 
 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanation provided to us, there are no any adverse 
comments as per the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020. 

 
                                                                                                                                                               For and on behalf of  
                                                                                                                                                           Rajiv Shah & Associates 
                                                                                                                                                            Chartered Accountants  

 

                                                                                                                                                              Rajiv C Shah (Partner) 
Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                                          M. No.: 043261   

              Date: 26/05/2025                                                                                                 FRN No.: 108454W            
                                                                                                                                  UDIN: 25043261BMKYZA6293 
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013  
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT 
LIMITED as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company. 
Considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the “Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2025, based  internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

 
                                                             For and on behalf of  

                                                                                                                                                           Rajiv Shah & Associates 
                                                                                                                                                            Chartered Accountants  
                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                              Rajiv C Shah (Partner) 
              Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                                          M. No.: 043261 

Date: 26/05/2025                                                                                                                     FRN No.: 108454W 

                                                                                                                                                UDIN: 25043261BMKYZA6293 
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT  31 MARCH, 2025 

 

UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED   

 (CIN - L18109GJ2010PLC062928)  

 Balance Sheet as at  31 March, 2025  

         (Rs. In Lakhs)  

 Particulars    Note 
No.  

 As at 31 March, 
2025  

 As at 31 March, 
2024  

 
 ASSETS        

              
(1) 

 NON-CURRENT ASSETS        

   (a) Property, plants and equipment  

            
1.1  

                   9,378.15  
                     

7,972.94  

   (b) Capital work-in-progress  
                         14.91  

                     
2,465.26  

   (c) Investment property              
1.4  

                                -                              35.22  

   (d) Financial assets                                    -                                     -    

          (i) Investment                 
2  

                         10.00                            10.00  

          (ii) Loans                 
8  

                           1.54                              1.54  

   (iii) Trade Receivables                 
5  

                         15.74                            13.95  

          (iv) Other financial assets                 
3  

                           0.35                              2.96  

   (e) Deffered tax assets(net)                                    -                                     -    

   (f) Other non-current assets                 
9  

                         30.23                              0.24  

   Total Non-Current Assets                       9,435.18                    10,488.16  

              
(2) 

 Current assets                                    -                                     -    

   (a) Inventory                 
4  

                   4,457.31                       
2,552.70  

   (b) Financial assets                                    -                                     -    

   (i) Investment                                    -                                     -    

   (ii) Trade receivable                 
5  

                   9,675.57                       
9,818.76  

   (iii) Cash & cash equivalents                 
6  

                         19.56                              5.04  

   (iv) Other balances with banks                 
7  

                       466.10                          468.23  

   (v) Loans                 
8  

                           6.22                            34.21  

   (vi) Other financial assets                 
2  

                         48.01                            22.86  
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   (c) Current tax assets(net)                                    -                                     -    

   (d) Other current assets                 
9  

                       459.85                          876.36  

   Total Current Assets                     15,148.36                    13,792.11  

   Asset held for Sale                             34.13                                   -    

    
Total  Assets  

                   24,617.67                    24,280.27  

   EQUITY AND LIABILITIES                                    -                                     -    

   EQUITY                                     -                                     -    

   (a) Equity Share Capital               
10  

                   2,295.16                       
2,295.16  

   (b) Other Equity               
11  

                   7,437.51                       
5,668.00  

    
Total Equity  

                     9,732.66                      7,963.15  

    
LIABILITIES  

                                  -                                     -    

              
(1) 

 Non-Current Liabilities                                    -                                     -    

   Financial  Liabilities                                    -                                     -    

        Borrowings               
12  

                   4,938.41                       
7,082.67  

        Lease Liablilities                                    -                                     -    

   Other Financial Liabilities                                    -                                     -    

   Provision                             63.26                            49.91  

   Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)                           591.58                          770.54  

   Other non-Current liabilites                                    -                                     -    

    
Total Non-current liabilities  

                     5,593.24                      7,903.12  

              
(2) 

  
Current liabilities  

                                  -                                     -    

   Financial  Liabilities                                    -                                     -    

            Borrowings               
12  

                   6,899.24                       
5,466.40  

            Lease liabilities                                    -                                     -    

           Trade Paybles                                    -                                     -    

           (a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprise                        1,732.58                                   -    

           and small enterprise         

           (b) total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other                                     -                                     -    

           than micro enterprise and small enterprise                
13  

                         67.73                       
2,217.37  

           Other financial liabilities.               
14  

                       315.88                          488.67  

   Other Current Liabilities               
15  

                         15.40                            24.69  
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   Provision               
16  

                       166.32                            98.12  

   Current Tax Liabilities(net)                             18.61                          118.75  

    
Total Current Liabilities  

                     9,215.76                      8,414.00  

    
Liability Related to "Asset held for Sale"  

                           76.00                                   -    

    
Total Liabilities  

                   14,885.01                    16,317.12  

    
Total Equity & Liability  

                   24,617.67                    24,280.27  

  
 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

  As per our report of even date  
 

 United Polyfab Gujarat Limited  

  For Rajiv Shah & Associates  
  

  

  Chartered Accountants  
  

  
  

  
 Gagan Mittal   Nirmal Mittal  

  
  

 (Managing 
Director)  

 ( Director)  

       CA. Rajiv Shah  
 

 (DIN- 00593377)   (DIN- 01528758)  

 

      (Partner) 
     

      M.No. 043261  
  

  

      Firm Regn. No. 108454W  
  

  

      UDIN:  25043261BMKYZC9005 
  

 Mahesh Gupta  

     Place : Ahmedabad  

 
 (CFO)  

      Date : 26.05.2025       
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STANDALONE PROFIT & LOSS AS ON 31ST MARCH,2025 
UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED   

 (CIN - L18109GJ2010PLC062928)  
 Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended 31 March, 2025  

 Particulars  
 Note No.  

 For the year ended  
31 March, 2025  

 For the year ended  
31 March, 2024  

                                             -                                           -    

   Income        

   Revenue from operation               17                              60,221.77                          90,847.72  

   Other income               18                                    100.71                                283.71  

   Total Income                                60,322.48                          91,131.43  

   Expense                                               -                                           -    

   Cost of Material Consumed                19                              53,647.22                          84,012.30  

   Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, 
WIP and Waste Product  

             20                              (1,775.77)                             (590.52) 

   Employee benefit expense               21                                1,081.78                                976.37  

   Finance cost               22                                    966.03                                903.59  

   Depreciation and amortisation expense               23                                1,300.26                            1,280.25  

   Other expense               24                                2,977.68                            3,318.29  

   Total Expense                                58,197.20                          89,900.27  

   Profit/(Loss) before tax                                  2,125.28                            1,231.16  

   Tax expense                                               -                                           -    

          Current tax                                      535.04                                215.11  

          Deferred tax                                   (178.96)                               354.71  

          Add/Less : Excess/Short Provision of 
Income Tax  

                                             -                                       0.42  

   Total Tax Expense                                      356.08                                570.24  

   Profit for the period /year                                  1,769.21                                660.92  

   Iteams that will not be subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss  

                                             -                                           -    

   Change in fair value of investment carried at 
fair value through other comprehensive 
income  

                                             -                                           -    

   Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined 
benefit plans  

                                        0.41                                     3.88  

   Less: Income tax impact on above                                        (0.10)                                 (0.68) 

   Restated other comprehensive income for 
the period/year  

                                        0.31                                     3.21  

   Restated total comprehensive income/(loss) 
for the period/year  

                                1,769.51                                664.13  

   Restated Earning/(loss) per Equity Share 
(Face value of Rs. 10/- each)  

      

    Basic(in Rs.)                                          7.71                                     3.09  

        Diluted(in Rs.)                                           7.71                                     3.09  

  As per our report of even date  
 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

  For Rajiv Shah & Associates  
 

 United Polyfab Gujarat Limited  

  Chartered Accountants  
  

  

 CA. Rajiv Shah (Partner)  
 

 Gagan Mittal   Nirmal Mittal  

  M.No. 043261  
 

 (Managing Director)   ( Director)  

  Firm Regn. No. 108454W  
 

 (DIN- 00593377)   (DIN- 01528758)  

 UDIN: 25043261BMKYZC9005 
  

  

  Place : Ahmedabad  
  

Mahesh Gupta  

 Date :  26.05.2025   (CFO) 
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS ON 31ST MARCH,2025 

UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED  

 (CIN - L18109GJ2010PLC062928)   

 CASH FLOW STATEMENT  

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025  

    (Rs. In lakhs) 

 Particulars   For the year ended 
31.03.2025                          

(Amt in Rs. )  

 For the year ended 
31.03.2024                           

(Amt in Rs. )  

 Cash flow from operating activities :      

 Profit/(Loss) before tax                             2,125.28                            1,231.16  

 Adjustments for non-cash and non operating expenses:                                         -                                             -    

 Depreciation                              1,300.26                            1,280.25  

 Interest and finance expenses                                966.03                                903.59  

 Effect of Remeasured of Defined Liabilities                                     0.41                                    3.88  

 Profit from Sale of Asset                                   (0.19)                            (123.20) 

 Operating profit before working capital changes                             4,391.79                            3,295.68  

 Movement in working capital:                                         -                                             -    

 Increase/(decrease) in trade Payable                               (417.06)                           1,246.26  

 Increase/(decrease) in provisions                                   81.55                               (21.76) 

 Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities                                 (96.79)                                 69.95  

 Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities                                   (9.29)                                (4.37) 

 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables                                141.39                          (2,691.97) 

 (Increase)/decrease in inventories                            (1,904.60)                         (1,013.77) 

 (Increase)/decrease in short-term loans and advances                                   27.99                               (28.00) 

 (Increase)/decrease in other current assets                                386.51                             (240.80) 

 (Increase)/decrease in other financial assets                                 (20.41)                            (357.80) 

 Cash generated from/(used in) operations                             2,581.08                                253.42  

 Direct taxes paid                               (635.28)                              (97.04) 

 Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities                              1,945.80                                156.38  

 Cash flow from investing activities :                                         -                                             -    

 Purchase of fixed assets (including intangible,CWIP & 
Advances)  

                             (255.05)                         (2,607.13) 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Long-Term Loans and Advances                                         -                                 204.14  

 Investment                                          -                                 (10.00) 

 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets                                     1.22                                343.60  

 Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities                               (253.83)                        (2,069.39) 

 Cash flow from financing activities :                                         -                                             -    

 Proceeds from issue of shares/share warrants                                         -                                  930.00  

 Redemption of Long Term Loan long-term borrowings                            (2,144.26)                            (442.20) 

 Proceeds from short-term borrowings                             1,432.84                            1,582.77  

 Interest paid                               (966.03)                            (903.59) 
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 Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities                           (1,677.46)                           1,166.98  

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 
(A)+(B)+(C)   

                                 14.52                             (746.03) 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                                     5.04                                  51.07  

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                                  19.56                                    5.04  

 Summary of significant accounting policies (note 2)                                         -                                             -    

 Cash & Cash Equivalent                                   19.56                                    5.04  

 Bank Balance with Scheduled Bank   
  

 -                                          -    

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 
 
 
Gagan Mittal                                    Nirmal Mittal 
(Managing Director)                          (Director) 
(DIN: 00593377)                           (DIN- 01528758) 
 
 
                                                         Mahesh Gupta 
                                                                (CFO) 
 
 
 

As per our report of even date 

 For Rajiv Shah & Associates  

 Chartered Accountants  

 

CA. Rajiv Shah 

(Partner) 

M.No. 043261 

Firm Regn. No. 108454W 

UDIN:  25043261BMKYZC9005 

Place : Ahmedabad 

Date : 26.05.2025 

 

 
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE  YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH,2025 
 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
Particulars 31st March, 2025 `in 

Lakhs 
31st March, 2024 

` in Lakhs 

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 2295.16 2095.16 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - - 

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 2295.16 2095.16 

Changes in equity share capital during the current year - - 

Balance at the end of the current reporting period 2295.16 2295.16 

 
 

B. OTHER EQUITY 
Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 (a) Reserve & Surplus:    

 (i) Securities Premium     

 Opening Balance  2577.34 1537.34 

 Add/Less during the year *  - 1040.00 

 Closing Balance  2577.34 2577.34 

  (ii) Retained earnings     

 Opening Balance  3086.89 2414.24 

 Add: Profit/(loss) for the year  1757.93 660.92 
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 Add/(Less): Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income  - 11.72 

 Closing Balance  4844.82 3086.89 

 (iii) General Reserve    

 Opening Balance  0.00011 0.00011 

 Add: During the year  - - 

   Closing Balance  0.00011 0.00011 

 (b) Other comprehensive income    

 Opening Balance  3.77 12.28 

   Add/(Less): Transfer to Reserves and Surplus  - -11.72 

 Add: Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefit plans   3.21 

Closing Balance 4.07 3.77 

(c ) Money Received Against Share Warrants * - - 

  
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

 As per our report of even date  
 
 United Polyfab Gujarat Limited  

For Rajiv Shah & Associates  
  

  
Chartered Accountants  

  
    

 Gagan Mittal   Nirmal Mittal    
 (Managing Director)   ( Director)  

CA. Rajiv Shah  
 

 (DIN- 00593377)    

(Partner) 
     
M.No. 043261  

  
  

Firm Regn. No. 108454W  
  

  

UDIN:  25043261BMKYZC9005 
  

 Mahesh Gupta  

Place : Ahmedabad  

 
(CFO) 

Date : 26.05.2025       
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST 

MARCH, 2025 
 
NOTE 1.1: Property , Plant & Equipment: 
 
As  on Year Ended 31/03/2025 
 

Name of 
the assets 

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 

01/04/2024 addition Deduction/ 
transfer 

31/03/2025 01/04/2024 addition 31/03/2025 31/03/2025 31/03/2024 

Factory 
Land 

                                 
63.00  

                             
-    

- 
                            
63.00  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                        
63.00  

                                
63.00  

Plant & 
Machinery  

                          
11,854.98  

                        
29.39  

- 
                     
11,884.36  

                 
6,921.89  

                  
1,095.69  

                    
8,017.58  

                                   
3,866.79  

                           
4,933.09  

Factory 
Building 
and 
Working 
Colony 

                            
2,267.50  

                             
-    

- 
                       
2,267.50  

                    
426.95  

                       
71.80  

                       
498.76  

                                   
1,768.75  

                           
1,840.55  

Electric 
Installation 

                               
477.08  

                             
-    

- 
                          
477.08  

                    
182.70  

                       
30.22  

                       
212.92  

                                      
264.17  

                              
294.38  

Air 
Condition 

                                   
9.93  

                             
-    

- 
                             
9.93  

                        
5.58  

                         
0.94  

                           
6.52  

                                         
3.41  

                                 
4.36  

CC TV 
Camera 

                                 
12.11  

                             
-    

- 
                            
12.11  

                        
5.58  

                         
2.25  

                           
7.83  

                                         
4.28  

                                 
6.53  

Computer 
& Printers 

                                   
7.11  

                             
-    

- 
                             
7.11  

                        
4.76  

                         
0.87  

                           
5.63  

                                         
1.48  

                                 
2.35  

Furniture 
& Fixtures 

                                 
58.88  

                             
-    

- 
                            
58.88  

                      
31.07  

                         
5.28  

                         
36.36  

                                        
22.52  

                                
27.81  

Factory 
Equipment 
(Including 
Fire 
Safety) 

                                   
7.12  

                             
-    

- 
                             
7.12  

                        
2.91  

                         
0.47  

                           
3.38  

                                         
3.74  

                                 
4.21  

Water 
Cooler 

                                   
3.99  

                         
0.93  

- 
                             
4.91  

                        
2.15  

                         
0.38  

                           
2.53  

                                         
2.38  

                                 
1.83  

Vehicles  
                               
167.95  

                             
-    

- 
                          
167.95  

                      
80.83  

                       
18.30  

                         
99.13  

                                        
68.82  

                                
87.12  

Weight 
Scale 

                                   
8.34  

                             
-    

- 
                             
8.34  

                        
2.06  

                         
0.41  

                           
2.48  

                                         
5.86  

                                 
6.27  

Office 
Equipment 

                                   
4.46  

                         
0.51  

1.03 
                             
3.94  

                        
1.63  

                         
0.57  

                           
2.20  

                                         
1.74  

                                 
2.83  

Solar 
Power 
Plant 

                               
689.72  

                             
-    

- 
                          
689.72  

                      
34.83  

                       
32.76  

                         
67.59  

                                      
622.13  

                              
654.89  

Working 
Colony 
(Part I) 

                                 
52.62  

                        
87.57  

- 
                          
140.18  

                        
8.89  

                         
4.21  

                         
13.10  

                                      
127.08  

                                
43.73  

Wind 
Power 
Project 

                                      
-    

                   
2,587.02  

- 
                       
2,587.02  

                           
-    

                       
35.01  

                         
35.01  

                                   
2,552.00  

                                     
-    

          

Total (A) 15684.77 2705.40 1.03 18389.15 7711.83 1299.17 9011.00 9378.15 7972.94 
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Work in 
Progress 

         

Working 
Colony 
(Part-II) 

                                 
86.75  

                         
0.81  

                           
87.57  

                                 
-    

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                             
-    

                                
86.75  

Windmill 
                            
2,378.50  

                      
208.51  

                      
2,587.02  

                                 
-    

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                             
-    

                           
2,378.50  

Ground 
Mounted 
Solar 
project 

                                      
-    

                        
14.91  

                                
-    

                            
14.91  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                        
14.91  

                                     
-    

    Total (B) 
                            
2,465.26  

                      
224.23  

                      
2,674.58  

                            
14.91  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                        
14.91  

                           
2,465.26  

  
                                      
-    

                             
-    

                                
-    

                                 
-    

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-      

                                     
-    

Total 
(A+B) 

                          
18,150.03  

                   
2,929.64  

                      
2,675.62  

                     
18,404.05  

                 
7,711.83  

                  
1,299.17  

                    
9,011.00  

                                   
9,393.05  

                         
10,438.20  

 
As  on Year Ended 31/03/2024 

Name of 
the assets 

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 

01/04/2024 addition Deduction/ 
Transfer 

31/03/2025 01/04/2024 addition 31/03/2025 31/03/2025 31/03/2024 

Factory 
Land 

                                 
63.00  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                            
63.00  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                        
63.00  

                                
63.00  

Plant & 
Machiney  

                          
11,929.69  

                      
142.26  

                         
216.98  

                     
11,854.98  

                 
5,778.67  

                  
1,143.21  

                    
6,921.89  

                                   
4,933.09  

                           
6,151.01  

Factory 
Building 
and 
Working 
Colony 

                            
2,267.50  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                       
2,267.50  

                    
384.08  

                       
42.87  

                       
426.95  

                                   
1,840.55  

                           
1,883.42  

Electric 
Installation 

                               
477.08  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                          
477.08  

                    
152.40  

                       
30.30  

                       
182.70  

                                      
294.38  

                              
324.68  

Air 
Condition 

                                   
9.65  

                         
0.28  

                                
-    

                             
9.93  

                        
4.65  

                         
0.93  

                           
5.58  

                                         
4.36  

                                 
5.00  

CC TV 
Camera 

                                   
4.99  

                         
7.11  

                                
-    

                            
12.11  

                        
4.82  

                         
0.76  

                           
5.58  

                                         
6.53  

                                 
0.18  

Computer 
& Printers 

                                   
4.99  

                         
2.12  

                                
-    

                             
7.11  

                        
4.09  

                         
0.67  

                           
4.76  

                                         
2.35  

                                 
0.90  

Furniture & 
Fixtures 

                                 
58.88  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                            
58.88  

                      
25.69  

                         
5.38  

                         
31.07  

                                        
27.81  

                                
33.19  

Factory 
Equipments 
(Including 
Fire Safety) 

                                   
7.12  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                             
7.12  

                        
2.44  

                         
0.47  

                           
2.91  

                                         
4.21  

                                 
4.68  

Water 
Cooler 

                                   
2.64  

                         
1.35  

                                
-    

                             
3.99  

                        
2.00  

                         
0.16  

                           
2.15  

                                         
1.83  

                                 
0.64  

Vehicles  
                               
164.05  

                         
3.90  

                                
-    

                          
167.95  

                      
62.35  

                       
18.48  

                         
80.83  

                                        
87.12  

                              
101.70  

Weight 
Scale 

                                   
4.84  

                         
5.62  

                             
2.13  

                             
8.34  

                        
1.75  

                         
0.31  

                           
2.06  

                                         
6.27  

                                 
3.09  

Office 
Equipments 

                                   
2.01  

                         
2.45  

                                
-    

                             
4.46  

                        
1.27  

                         
0.36  

                           
1.63  

                                         
2.83  

                                 
0.74  

Solar 
Power 
Plant 

                               
689.72  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                          
689.72  

                        
1.97  

                       
32.85  

                         
34.83  

                                      
654.89  

                              
687.74  
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Working 
Colony 
(Part I) 

                                 
52.62  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                            
52.62  

                        
7.22  

                         
1.67  

                           
8.89  

                                        
43.73  

                                
45.40  

Total (A) 
                       
15,738.78  

                    
165.10  

                       
219.10  

                  
15,684.77  

               
6,433.41  

                
1,278.42  

                  
7,711.83  

                                
7,972.94  

                        
9,305.37  

Work in 
Progress 

         

Working 
Colony 
(Part-II) 

                                 
23.23  

                        
63.53  

                                
-    

                            
86.75  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                        
86.75  

                                
23.23  

Windmill 
                                      
-    

                   
2,378.50  

                                
-    

                       
2,378.50  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                   
2,378.50  

                                     
-    

    Total (B) 
                               
23.23  

                
2,442.03  

                                
-    

                    
2,465.26  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                
2,465.26  

                              
23.23  

  
                                      
-    

                             
-    

                                
-    

                                 
-    

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-      

                                     
-    

    Total 
(A+B) 

                       
15,762.01  

                
2,607.13  

                       
219.10  

                  
18,150.03  

               
6,433.41  

                
1,278.42  

                  
7,711.83  

                              
10,438.20  

                        
9,328.60  

 
Note 1.2 Ageing of Capital Work-in-Progress 
 

Project in Progress Amount in CWIP for a period of Total 

 
Less than 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

years 
 

Working Colony - - - - - 

Windmill Project - - - - - 

Ground Mounted Solar project 14.91 - - - 14.91 

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - - 

 
Note 1.3 Title Deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the company: 
 

Relevant Line 
items in the 
balance sheet 

Description of 
item of property 

Gross Carrying 
value 

Title Deeds 
held in the 
name of 

Whether title deed 
holder is a 
promoter,director or 
relative of 
Promoter/Director or 
employee of 
promoter/director 

Property held 
since which 
date 

Reasons for 
not being 
held in the 
name of 
the 
company 

Factory Land 
(Timba Block 
No. 188)  Land & Building  

                        
63.00   Gagan Mittal   Director   -    

 
NOTE 1.4 Investment Property 
 

Investment property As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Shops on rent (Gross value) - 58.81 

Less:- Gross Depreciation  - -23.59 

Net Written Down Value  - 35.22 

 
NOTE 2: Investment 
 

Particular As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 (i) Non-Current (At Cost)      



          

 

Page | 95  

 

 Investment in Shares Spinning 
Association  

0.005 0.005 

 Investment in Equity Shares of United 
Green Distelleries Private Limited  

10.000 10.000 

 Total (i)  10.005 10.005 

  - - 

 (ii) Current  - - 

Total (i+ii) 10.005 10.005 

 
NOTE 3:   Other Financial Assets 
 

Particular As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

(i) Non-current     

Advance for Capital Goods 0.35 2.96 

  - - 

Total (i) 0.35 2.96 

(ii) Current - - 

Interest accrued but not due on Fixed 
Deposits 48.01 22.86 

Total (ii) 48.01 22.86 

  - - 

Total (i+ii) 48.36 25.82 

 
NOTE 4: Inventories 
 

Particulars As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2025 

 Raw Material  1,184.63 1,075.04 

 Store & Spare  24.66 10.35 

 Work in Progress   968.35 551.56 

 Finished Goods  2,268.08 906.78 

 Packing Material  11.59 8.97 

 Total  4,457.31 2,552.70 

 
 
NOTE 5: Trade Receivable 
 

Particulars As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2025 

 (i) Non-Current      

 Unsecured, considered good  108.62 63.86 

 Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 
due to increase in credit risk("ECL")  

(92.88) (49.92) 

  15.74 13.95 

  - - 

 (ii) Current  - - 

Unsecured, considered good 9,712.97 9,821.41 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 
due to increase in credit risk("ECL") 

(37.40) (2.66) 

Net Trade Receivables 9,675.57 9,818.76 

  - - 

Total 9,691.31 9,832.70 

 
NOTE 5.1 Ageing of Trade Receivable 
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Particulars ( outstanding from due date 
of payment /from date of transaction) 

As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2025 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable-
considered good     

Less than 6 months 9,525.98 9,808.14 

6 months- 1 year 186.99 13.28 

1-2 years 31.48 27.89 

2-3 years 77.14 35.97 

More than 3 years - - 

Total (i) 9,821.59 9,885.27 

  - - 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable-which 
have significant increase in credit risk - - 

Less than 6 months - - 

6 months- 1 year - - 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years - - 

More than 3 years - - 

Total (ii) - - 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivable-
considered good - - 

Less than 6 months - - 

6 months- 1 year - - 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years - - 

More than 3 years - - 

Total (iii) - - 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable-which 
have significant increase in credit risk - - 

Less than 6 months - - 

6 months- 1 year - - 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years - - 

More than 3 years - - 

Total (iv) - - 

  - - 

(v) Unbilled dues - - 

Less than 6 months - - 

6 months- 1 year - - 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years - - 

More than 3 years - - 

Total (v) - - 

Total 9821.59 9885.27 

 
5.2 Debts due by Directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts 
due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member should be separately 
stated. 
 

Name of the Company/party March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 United Cotfab Limited  149.90 934.85 

 United Polyfab Private Limited  370.79 12.15 

 United Techfab Limited  - 185.93 

 Vinod Cotfab Private Limited  28.49 57.91 
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 Vinod Spinners Private Limited  1,330.11 991.52 

 Vishan International LLP  477.54 22.74 

 Vinod Texspin LLP  - 31.24 

 
NOTE 6: Cash and Cash equivalents 
 

Particulars As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Balance with banks in current accounts 16.24 1.54 

Cash on hand 3.32 3.50 

Total 19.56 5.04 

 
NOTE 7: Other balance with banks 
 
 

Particular 
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

Balance held as margin money against Credit Facility    
  

SBI (Against Bank Guarantee) 99.78 69.45 

PNB 17.47 56.03 

HDFC (Against Windmill) 348.85 342.75 

Total 466.10 468.23 

 
NOTE 8: Loans 

Particulars As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

i. Non-current     

(Unsecured, considered good)     

 Other Business Advances  1.54 1.54 

 Total (i)  1.54 1.54 

ii.Current - - 

(Unsecured, considered good) - - 

 Amay Spincot Private Limited   - 23.91 

 United Green Distilleries Private Limited  0.21 - 

 Staff Advances (Including Advances to KMP)  6.02 10.30 

 Total (ii)  6.22 34.21 

 
NOTE 8.1: Disclosure in respect of Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, directors, KMP's and related 
parties: 
 

Type of Borrower As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Mahesh Gupta (CFO) - 0.50 

Total  0.50 

 
NOTE 9: Other Assets 
 

Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

i.Non-current     

      

Deposits                             6.23                              0.24  
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SEBI Penalties paid against Order 24.00 - 

Total (i) 30.23 0.24 

ii.Current - - 

  - - 

Advance to Sundry Creditors 23.86 23.94 

Deposit - - 

GST Receivable 166.17 323.13 

SGST Refund Receivable 214.93 501.73 

Prepaid Expenses 41.89 27.55 

Preliminary Expenses 13.00 - 

Total (ii) 459.85 876.36 

Total  490.08 876.59 

 
NOTE 10: Share Capital 
10.1: Equity Share Capital 

Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 Authorised      

 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each  2,500.00 2,500.00 

  2,500.00 2,500.00 

    

 Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up    

 2,29,51,550 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up  2,295.16 2,295.16 

  - - 

  2,295.16 2,295.16 

 
10.2:  Reconciliation of number of equity share 

Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 Balance at the beginning of the year  2,29,51,550 2,09,51,550 

 Add: Issued for Cash Considerations  - 20,00,000 

 Add: Issued for consideration other than cash  - - 

 Balance at the end of the year  2,29,51,550 2,29,51,550 

 Add: Issued for Cash Considerations  - 20,00,000 

 Add: Issued for consideration other than cash  - - 

 Balance at the end of the year  2,29,51,550 2,29,51,550 

 
10.3 Reconciliation of number of instruments entirely equity in nature 
A. Fully Convertible Share Warrants 

Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 Balance at the beginning of the year                                            -                                20,00,000  

 Add: Issued during the year                                            -                                            -    

 Less: Converted into Share Capital (Owing to Exercise of the 
options/warrants)                                            -                               -20,00,000  

 Balance at the end of the year                                            -                                            -    

 Balance at the beginning of the year                                            -                                20,00,000  

 Add: Issued during the year                                            -                                            -    

 Less: Converted into Share Capital (Owing to Exercise of the 
options/warrants)                                            -                               -20,00,000  

 
10.4 Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares 

Name of shareholder As at march 31,2025 As At March 31,2024 

 No. of shares                Percentage of Holding   No. of shares                Percentage of Holding  

 Gagan Mittal  32,96,850 14.36% 35,83,650 15.61% 
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 Gagan N Mittal HUF  10,47,000 4.56% 16,59,000 7.23% 

 Nirmal Mittal  40,46,250 17.63% 43,16,000 18.80% 

 Shilpa Gagan Mittal  10,82,400 4.72% 10,82,400 4.72% 

 Amay Spincot Pvt Ltd  15,00,049 6.54% 15,72,682 6.85% 

 Amaysha Textiles Private 
Limited                                             

29,78,728 12.98% 
30,49,821 

13.29% 

 
10.5 Details of shareholding of promoters* 
 

Name of Promoters As at march 31,2025 As At March 31,2024 

 No. of shares                Percentage of Holding   No. of shares                Percentage of Holding  

 Gagan Mittal  32,96,850 14.36% 35,83,650 15.61% 

 Nirmal Mittal  40,46,250 17.63% 43,16,000 18.80% 

 Gagan N Mittal HUF  10,47,000 4.56% 16,59,000 7.23% 

 
10.6 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions Attached to Shares: 
(i) The Company has only one class of shares i.e. Equity Shares having par value of Rs 10 each. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled 
to one vote per share. 
(ii) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders. 
 
NOTE 11: Other equity 
 

Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 (a) Reserve & Surplus:    

 (i) Securities Premium     

 Opening Balance  2,577.34 1,537.34 

 Add/Less during the year *  - 1,040.00 

 Closing Balance  2,577.34 2,577.34 

  (ii) Retained earnings   - - 

 Opening Balance  3,086.89 2,414.25 

 Add: Profit/(loss) for the year  1,757.93 660.92 

 Add/(Less): Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income  - 11.72 

 Closing Balance  4,844.82 3,086.89 

 (iii) General Reserve  - - 

 Opening Balance  0.00011 0.00011 

 Add: During the year  - - 

 Closing Balance  0.00011 0.00011 

 (b) Other  comprehensive income  - - 

 Opening Balance  3.77 12.28 

 Add/(Less): Transfer to Reserves and Surplus  - -11.72 

 Add: Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefit plans  0.31 3.21 

 Closing Balance  4.07 3.77 

 (c ) Money Received Against Share Warrants *  - - 

 Total 7426.23 5668.0 

*[Read with Note 9.4 and 9.6] 
 
NOTE 12:   Borrowings 
 

Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 (i) Non- Current     

 Secured (At Amortised Cost)    
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 Loan From SBI    

 Term Loan (For Plant/Machinery, Building and Working 
Capital)  

3,053.49 4,368.57 

 Solar Term Loan   130.46 341.24 

 Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line  760.76 1,117.25 

 Loan From Punjab National Bank  - - 

 Term Loan (For Plant/Machinery, Building and Working 
Capital)  - 

-29.84 

 Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line  - 4.67 

 Loan From HDFC Bank                                                 -                                         -    

 Windmill Term Loan  1,932.17 2,153.17 

 Car Loan (Secured by Hypothecation of car)  5.88 17.01 

 Loan from Indian Bank  - - 

 Term Loan (For Plant/Machinery, Building and Working 
Capital)  - 

6.01 

 Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line  - 1.37 

 Kotak Bank (Eicher Loan)  - 4.94 

  5,882.76 7,984.40 

 Less : Current maturity of term loan disclosed under the head 
"Current Borrowing"  2,378.69 2,307.69 

  3,504.07 5,676.70 

 Unsecured at amortised cost  - - 

 Directors  91.12 91.04 

 Directors's Relative  95.40 91.46 

 Loan from Body Corporate  1,247.81 1,223.48 

 Total (i)  4,938.41 7,082.67 

 (ii) Current   - - 

 Secured - at amortised cost  - - 

 Loan from Financial Institutions  - - 

 SBI Cash Credit  1,667.66 1,894.02 

 Indian Bank Cash Credit  - 2.01 

 PNB Bank Cash Credit  - 44.98 

 Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing  2,378.69 2,307.69 

 Total  4,046.35 4,248.71 

 Unsecured   - - 

 Payment Due Against Reverse Factoring Services  - - 

 -With Bank  2,852.89 1,217.70 

 Total (ii)  6,899.24 5,466.40 

 
Note 12.1: Terms of Repayment 

 Nature of Security   Name of the Facility   Terms of Interest  

Primary Security (All Fund Based Facilities 
except Working Capital) 
 
First Charge by way of mortgage over 
factory land and building located at 
Survey No. 188 (east), Village Timba, 
Mouje Dascroi, Ahmedabad owned by 
United Polyfab Gujarat Limited, land 
admeasuring 15035 sq. mt and 
construction thereupon and 
hypothecation of entire moveable fixed 
assets spinning division. (Extension of 

SBI Term Loan 
SBI GECL 
PNB Term Loan 
PNB GECL 
SBI Solar Term Loan 
Indian Bank Term Loan 
Indian Bank GECL 

ROI (SBI Term Loan) : 8.65 % 
ROI (SBI GECL) : 8.65 % 
ROI (PNB Term Loan) : 8.50 % 
ROI (PNB GECL) : 8.65 % 
ROI (SBI Solar Term Loan) : 8.65 % 
ROI (Indian Bank Term Loan) : 9.95 %  
ROI (Indian Bank GECL) : 8.65 % 
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Second Charge by PNB and Indian Bank) 
 
First Charge by way of mortgage over 
factory land and building located at 
Survey No. 188 (west), Village Timba, 
Mouje Dascroi, Ahmedabad owned by 
United Polyfab Techfab Limited, land 
admeasuring 15934 sq. mt and 
construction thereupon and 
hypothecation of entire moveable fixed 
assets spinning division. (Extension of 
Second Charge by PNB and Indian Bank) 
 
Hypothecation of entire plant and 
machinery pertaining to the project 
purchased out of bank finance (Including 
Solar Plant). 

  

Hypothecation by way of first and 
exclusive charge on all Windmill Plant and 
Machinery 

HDFC Bank ROI: 9.00 % 

Primary Security (For Working Capital) 
 
Hypothecation of entire Stock of Raw 
Materials, Stock-in-Process, Stores and 
Spares, Packing Material, Finished Goods , 
Book Debts and entire other current 
assets of the company (Spinning Unit) 
present and future. The charge shall  be 
shared on 1st Pari Passu basis with State 
Bank of India and Indian Bank. 

SBI 
PNB 

Indian Bank 

ROI (PNB): 8.65 % 
ROI (SBI) : 8.65 % 

ROI (Indian Bank): 10.20 % 

   

 
NOTE 12.2: Details of Collateral Security 

Property of Collateral Owner of asset Bank to whom security Is given 

Mortgage over all that piece and parcel of 
immovable property bearing unit No. A-
38, admeasuring 571 sq ft on ground floor 
in the scheme known as Sumel Business 
Park-IV, on land bearing city survey No. 
2453, 2740 alloted in lieu of Survey No. 
172/1 Paiki and 173 Paiki, Sub Plot No. 1 
of Final Plot No. 6, Town planning scheme  
No. 16 situated at village Saher Kotda, 
district Ahmedabad-7 (Odhav). Company 

SBI/PNB 

Mortgage over all that piece and parcel of 
immovable property bearing unit No. B-
09, admeasuring 571 sq ft on ground floor 
in the scheme known as Sumel Business 
Park-IV, on land bearing city survey No. 
2453, 2740 alloted in lieu of Survey No. 
172/1 Paiki and 173 Paiki, Sub Plot No. 1 
of Final Plot No. 6, Town planning scheme  
No. 16 situated at village Saher Kotda, 
district Ahmedabad-7 (Odhav). Company 

SBI/PNB 

Cash Collateral of Rs. 50,00,000 kept as 
Fixed Deposit with Bank. Company 

SBI/PNB 
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Mortgage over all that piece of parcel of 
immovable property bearing Survey No. 
372/450, Plot No. A4, Belle view Farms, 
Lapkaman village, Vadsar road, Ta.: 
Daskroi, Dist.: Ahmedabad admeasuring 
4229 sq mts/45520 sq Nilesh Hada and Ritesh Hada 

SBI/PNB 

Mortgage over immovable property 
bearing Block No. 182 paiki, 183 paiki and 
185 paiki, Plot No. 418 situated at Mouje, 
Shela, Ahmedabad admeasuring area 
1131 sq mtrs. Gagan Mittal SBI 

Mortgage over immovable property 
bearing  Survey No. 343, Flat No. A-202, 
Celesta Courtyard, Opp. Vikram Nagar, 
Jodhpur, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380015 Ritesh Hada SBI 

Equitable Motgage of Unit No. A-31, 
Ground Floor, Sumel Business Park-IV, 
Saher Kotda, Ahmedabad, admeasuring 
571 sq.ft. United Polyfab Private Limited PNB 

Equitable Motgage of Unit No. A-32, 
Ground Floor, Sumel Business Park-IV, 
Saher Kotda, Ahmedabad, admeasuring 
571 sq.ft. United Polyfab Private Limited PNB 

Equitable Motgage of Unit No. A-33, 
Ground Floor, Sumel Business Park-IV, 
Saher Kotda, Ahmedabad, admeasuring 
571 sq.ft. United Polyfab Private Limited PNB 

Equitable Motgage of Flat No. A-202, 
Second Charge, Celesta Courtyard, Off. 
Bopal Ambli Road, Jodhpur, Ahmedabad, 
admeasuring 172.09 sq mtr. Ritesh Hada PNB 

Registered Mortgage of Block No. 182 
Paiki, 183 Paiki, and 185 of Shela Plot No. 
418, "Vraj Garden", Aakash Shela Co. 
Operative Housing Society Limited, near 
Saara City Near, Nandan Baug Society, 
Shela Road, Sardar Patel Ring Road, At 
Shela, Ta-Sanand, Dist- Ahmedabad Gagan Mittal Indian Bank 

Pledge of FDR in the name of the 
Company. (Now Invoked due to take over 
of loan by SBI) Company Indian Bank 

Fixed Deposit for 15% of the sanctioned 
Term Loan (limited to the amount of 
disbursement) with HDFC Company HDFC Bank 

 
 NOTE 12.3: Details of Personal and Corporate Guarantee 

Name of the Guarantors Relation with Company 

 Gagan Mittal   Director  

 Ritesh Hada   Director  

 Neeti Hada   Relative of the Director  

 United Techfab Limited   Entities in which Director is interested  

 Shilpa Mittal   Relative of the Director  

 Nirmal Mittal   Director  

 United Polyfab Private Limited   Entities in which Director is interested  

 Nilesh Hada   Relative of the Director  
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NOTE 13:  Trade Payables 

Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 Current      

 total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small 
enterprise  1,732.58 - 

 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprise and small enterprise  67.73 2,217.37 

Total 1800.31 2,217.37 

 
NOTE 13.1: Ageing of Trade Payables 

Particulars 
(outstanding from due date of 
payment/from date of transaction) 

As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2025 

 (i) MSME      

 Less than 1 year                                       1,732.58                                       -    

 1-2 year                                                 -                                         -    

 2-3 year                                                 -                                         -    

 More than 3 year                                                 -                                         -    

 (ii) Others                                                 -                                         -    

 Less than 1 year                                            63.67                             2,217.37  

 1-2 year                                                 -                                         -    

 2-3 year                                              4.06                                       -    

 More than 3 year                                                 -                                         -    

 (iii) Disputed dues -MSME                                                 -                                         -    

 Less than 1 year                                                 -                                         -    

 1-2 year                                                 -                                         -    

 2-3 year                                                 -                                         -    

 More than 3 year                                                 -                                         -    

 (iv) Disputed dues -Others                                                 -                                         -    

 Less than 1 year                                                 -                                         -    

 1-2 year                                                 -                                         -    

 2-3 year                                                 -                                         -    

 More than 3 year                                                 -                                         -    

 (v) Accruals                                                 -                                         -    

 Less than 1 year                                                 -                                         -    

 1-2 year                                                 -                                         -    

 2-3 year                                                 -                                         -    

 More than 3 year                                                 -                                         -    

 
NOTE 14: Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 (i) Non-current  - - 

Total - - 

(ii) Current - - 

 Oustanding Expenses for other materials  241.77 409.14 

 Outstanding Salary Expenses  74.11 79.54 

Total 315.88 488.67 

Total (i+ii) 315.88 488.67 

 
NOTE 15:  Other Current liabilities 

Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 (i) Non-current  - - 
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 Total  - - 

 (ii) Current  - - 

 Statutory Dues   - - 

 TDS  14.30 22.91 

 Outsanding Employee Benefit Contribution  1.10 1.28 

 Advance from Customers  - 0.50 

 Total  15.40 24.69 

  15.40 24.69 

 
NOTE 16:  Provisions 

Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 (i) Non-current    

 Provision for Gratuity  63.26 49.91 

 Total  63.26 49.91 

 (ii) Current  - - 

 Provision for Expenses  152.98 89.18 

 Provision for Gratuity *  13.35 8.94 

 Total  166.32 98.12 

  229.58 148.03 

 
NOTE 17:  Revenue From Operations 

Particulars For the Year Ended 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Sales   

 (i) Yarn Sales  58,540.90 84,369.31 

 (ii) Cotton By-Product Sale  1,680.87 6,476.89 

Revenue from sale of products & services - - 

 (iii) Other Operating Income  - 1.52 

Total 60,221.77 90,847.72 

 
NOTE 18:  Other income 

Particulars For the Year Ended 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 Interest income on:      

 (i) Bank Deposites  37.12 23.08 

 Rent Income  2.03 2.80 

 Interest Income  50.92 79.68 

 Insurance Claim  - 5.57 

 Other non operating Income(Excess provision written back/ 
Balance written off)  

10.45 1.02 

 Reversal of Expected Credit Loss  - 48.37 

 Profit on sale of Fixed asset  0.19 123.20 

 Total  100.71 283.71 

 
NOTE 19:  Cost of raw material and components consumed 

Particulars For the Year Ended 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,036.34 610.13 

 Add: Purchases - Raw Material  53,759.13 84,438.51 

 Less: Closing stock - Raw Material  1,148.24 1,036.34 

 Total  53,647.22 84,012.30 

 
NOTE 20: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Waste Product 

Particulars For the Year Ended 



          

 

Page | 105  

 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 Inventories at the end of the year:      

 Finished Goods  2,268.08 906.78 

 Work-in-Progress  968.35 551.56 

 Cotton Waste (Spinning)  36.38 38.70 

 Total  3,272.82 1,497.05 

 Inventory at the beginning of the year  - - 

 Finished Goods  906.78 205.13 

 Work-in-Progress  551.56 559.41 

 Cotton Waste (Spinning)  38.70 141.99 

 Total  1,497.05 906.53 

Net (increase) / decrease (1775.77) (590.52) 

 
NOTE 21:  Employee Benefit Expenses 
 

Particulars For the Year Ended 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Salary, Wages, Allowances & Bonus 989.59 899.00 

Provision for Gratuity ** 18.16 17.27 

Staff Walfare 53.71 39.78 

Employers Contribution to Provident Fund ** 0.52 0.52 

Directors Sitting Fee 1.80 1.80 

Director Remuneration 18.00 18.00 

Total 1,081.78 976.37 

*[Read with Note 9.4 and 9.6] 
 
NOTE 22:  Finance Cost 

Particulars For the Year Ended 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Bank Charges 100.30 24.45 

Interest Expenses - - 

Interest on Bank Term Loan 496.02 688.33 

Interest on Working Capital 107.13 73.48 

Interest on Reverse Factoring Services 176.48 28.13 

Interest on Unsecured Loans 85.03 86.85 

Interest on Vehicle Loan 1.06 2.35 

Total 966.03 903.59 

 
NOTE 23: Depreciation and amortization expense 

Particulars For the Year Ended 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Depreciation on Property, Plants and Equipment (Refer Note ) 1,299.17 1,278.42 

Depreciation on Investment Property 1.09 1.83 

Total 1,300.26 1,280.25 

 
NOTE 24: Other Expense 

Particulars For the Year Ended 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Other Operating & Manufacturing Expense: 
  

Cartage Expenses 2.90 13.63 

Electricity Expenses (Net off Subsidy) 1,789.13 2,101.37 

Insurance Expenses 32.33 31.37 

Loading & Unloading Expenses 7.69 12.63 
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Freight Inwards 0.38 104.16 

Repairs & Maintenance – Machinery 24.67 36.12 

Repairs & Maintenance - Building & Others 25.87 69.76 

Labour / Contractor  Charges 99.18 79.95 

Folding, Packing & Testing Charges 82.24 62.11 

Stores & Spares Consumption 264.89 240.46 

Packing Material Consumption 215.83 230.78 

Jobwork Charges 42.88 43.16 

Interest paid to vendors for late payment 75.67 70.61 

Factory Expenses 20.19 15.43 

Total 2,683.85 3,111.52 

Administrative Expenses : - - 

Audit Fee 5.75 5.75 

Donation 0.21 0.11 

Legal Professional & Consultancy Exps 28.37 25.16 

Membership Fees & Subscription 8.52 3.53 

Office  Expenses 9.69 8.73 

Rent, Rates and Taxes 7.93 7.77 

Traveling Exps. 39.35 10.14 

Petrol & Diesel Exp 7.98 9.81 

Office Repairs and Maintenance 1.69 1.64 

Prior period expenses 5.15 - 

Total 114.64 72.63 

Statutory Expenses - - 

Interest on Late payment to Govt. Authorities 11.65 0.03 

Import Duties - 6.48 

CSR Expenses 21.04 15.36 

Total 32.69 21.87 

Selling and Distribution Expenses - - 

Commission & Brokerage 11.65 44.32 

Advertisement Exp 0.74 0.31 

Sales Promotion Exp 2.37 7.26 

Freight Outwards 48.62 56.65 

Repairs and Maintenance – Vehicles 5.43 3.71 

Total 68.80 112.26 

Expected Credit Loss 77.71 - 

Total 2,977.68 3,318.29 

 
Note 25: Ratios 

 Sr. 
No.   

 Ratios   Numerator   Denominator  
 Current 
Reporting 
Period  

 Previous 
Reporting 
Period  

 % of 
Change  

 Reasons for Change  

1 Current Ratio 1514836025.39 921576281.22                                           1.64 0.28%   
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1.64  

2 Debt Equity Ratio 1183764631.75 973266168.37 
                                          
1.22  

1.58 -22.82%   

3 
Debt Service 
coverage ratio 

439156673.04 1183764631.75 
                                          
0.37  

0.27 36.33% 
Due to Increase in Current 
year profit compare to 
previous year. 

4 
Return on Equity 
Ratio 

176920501.32 973266168.37 18.18% 8.30% 119.02% 
Due to Increase in Current 
year profit compare to 
previous year. 

5 
Inventory 
Turnover Ratio 

5187145554.76 350500506.00 
                                         
14.80  

40.78 -63.71% 
Due to Increase in 
Inventory compare to last 
year. 

6 
Trade 
Receivables 
turnover ratio 

6022177027.46 976200866.71 
                                          
6.17  

10.70 -42.37% 
Due to Decrease  in 
Turnover compare to last 
year. 

7 
Trade payables 
turnover ratio 

5375912775.76 200884194.00 
                                         
26.76  

52.96 -49.47% 
Due to Decrease  in 
Purchases compare to last 
year. 

8 
Working capital 
turnover ratio 

6022177027.46 565535378.82 
                                         
10.65  

17.90 -40.50% 
Due to Decrease  in 
Turnover compare to last 
year. 

9 Net profit ratio 176920501.32 6022177027.46 2.94% 0.73% 303.82% 
Due to Increase in Current 
year profit compare to 
previous year. 

10 
Return on Capital 
employed 

309131109.08 2216188768.90 13.95% 10.03% 39.07% 
Due to Increase in Current 
year profit compare to 
previous year. 

 
Note 26: Security against Current Borrowings 
 

 Quarter  

 Name Of Bank 
form which loan 
has taken  

 Particulars of 
securities 
provided    

Amount as 
per books of 
Account 
(A)  

 Amount as reported 
in the quarterly stock 
statement submitted 
to bank  
(B)  

 Percentage of 
Difference  

Q1 State of Bank of 
India, Punjab 

National Bank, 
Indian Bank 

Hypothecation of 
Book Debts and 

Stock 

Stock 2,722.02 2,691.99 1.10% 

Q2 Book Debts 8,273.09 8,275.63 -0.03% 

Q3 Stock 3,835.48 3,798.33 0.97% 

Q4 Book Debts 9,827.75 9,827.75 0.0001% 

Stock 3,719.88 3,688.27 0.85% 

Book Debts 9,669.62 9,669.68 -0.001% 

Stock 4,457.31 4,420.91 0.82% 

Book Debts 
                                    
9,821.59  

                                     
9,821.84  -0.003% 

 
* The difference provided in Note 26 are not material and are within tolerable rate of deviation. 
 
Note 27: Corporate Social Responsibility 

 Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

Amount Required to be Spent 21.04 15.36 

Amount Spent 21.04 15.36 

Shortfall (If Any) - - 

Nature of CSR 

Donation to Shaktishala Mahila 
Sangathan Samiti & Manguba Public 
Charitable Trust Donation to Karmaputra Charitable Trust 

Utlization of CSR Fund 1. Spreading the awareness for woman 1. Taking care of all the cows whether 
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rights and educating the general public 
about the social rights of women, political 
rights of women, Economic stability, 
judicial strength and all other rights of 
women and also providing training of 
various courses resulting into their 
empowerment. 
 
2. School Sanitation Unit Support 
Program. 

healthy or ill by feeding them on daily 
basis and providing them required 
medication in case if need arises. 
 
2. Distribute Sports Kits And Even Help 
Rural Students And Schools 

 
 
Note 28: Related Party Transactions 

Particulars Relationship 

Gagan N. Mittal Managing Director 

Nirmalkumar M. Mittal Director 

Ritesh K. Hada Director 

Sejalben Parmar Director 

Safalkumar H. Patel  Director 

Rashmi K. Otavani Director 

Mahesh S. Gupta Chief Financial Officer 

Dilip Matolia Company Secretary 

Shilpa G. Mittal Relative of Director 

Urmila N. Mittal Relative of Director 

Mansi N. Mittal Relative of Director 

Dropdi K. Hada Relative of Director 

Kamalkishore Hada Relative of Director 

Gagan N. Mittal HUF Director's HUF 

Unitedgreen Distilleries Private Limited Subsidiary Company 

United Eduplus Private Limited 
Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial 
Personnel  

United Polyfab Private Limited 
Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial 
Personnel  

United Techfab Limited 
Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial 
Personnel  

United Cotfab Limited 
Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial 
Personnel  

Vinod Spinners Private Limited 
Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial 
Personnel  

Vinod Cotfab Private Limited 
Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial 
Personnel  

Vishan International LLP 
Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial 
Personnel  

Vinod Texspin LLP 
Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial 
Personnel  

 
Note 29: Defined Benefit and Contribution Plans: 
(a) Defined Contribution Plans 

 Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

Contribution to Provident Fund                                 0.52                                   0.52  

Contribution to Employee State 
Insurance Corporation 

The company is not liable to contribute to ESIC as per Employee State Insurance Act, 
1948 under section 1(3) in the state of Gujarat, as the manufacturing unit is located 
in Timba, Daskroi. 

Contribution to Gratuity Fund (Plan 
Assets) 

- - 
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**The company is liable to get registered under The Employee’s Provident Fund scheme, 1952 and deduct PF of its employees and 
contribute the same to EPFO. Nevertheless, the company has not taken any Universal Account Number (UAN) for EPF contribution 
and does not conform to the requirements of the said act. 
 
(b) Defined Benefit Obligations 

 Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at 
the Beginning of the Period 58.85 45.47 

Interest Cost 4.24 3.37 

Current Service Cost 13.92 13.90 

Past Service Cost - - 

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - - 

(Benefit Paid From the Fund) - - 

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign 
Exchange Rates - - 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations  -0.41 -3.88 

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at 
the End of the Period 76.60 58.85 

 
(c) Assumptions taken for Defined Benefit Obligation 

 Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

Discount Rate 6.70% 7.21% 

Salary Escalaton Rate 6% 6% 

Attrition Rate/ Average Employee 
Turnover Rate 10% 10% 

Mortality Rate 
Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 

(Urban) 
Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 

(Urban) 

 
Note 30: Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets 

 Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

Opening Value of Deferred 
Liability/(Asset) 

770.54 415.83 

(+/-) Tax Effect on timing difference as 
per Accounting Income and Taxable 

Income 
-178.96 354.71 

Closing Value of Deferred Tax 
Liability/(Asset) 

591.58 770.54 

 
Note 31: Earning Per Share 

 Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

Net Comprehensive Income Attributable 
to Shareholders 

1,769.51 664.13 

Weighted average number of Equity 
Shares outstanding 

2,29,51,550 2,14,81,605 

Basic earnings per share (Face value of 
Rs.10 each) 7.71 

3.09 

Weighted average number of equity 
Shares (incl. dilutive) outstanding 

2,29,51,550 2,14,81,605 

Diluted earnings per share (Face value of 
Rs.10 each) 7.71 

3.09 

 
Note 32: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

 Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

(i) Contingent Liabilities   
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(A) Claims against the Group / disputed 
liabilities not acknowledged as debt  - 

(B) Guarantees   

(i) Guarantees to Banks and Financial 
Institutions against credit facilities 
extended to third parties & other 
guarantees  - 

(ii) Performance Guarantees 2,142.00 - 

(iii) Outstanding guarantees furnished to 
Banks and Financial Institutions including 
in respect of Letters of Credits * 254.74 263.51 

(C) Disputed Statutory Dues 4.99 - 

(ii) Commitments - - 

Total 2,401.72 263.51 

 
Note 32.1 : Details of Contingent Liability 
 

 Type of Bank Guarantee (BG)   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

BG against Security Deposit for UGVCL 
(SBI) 

97.23 97.23 

BG against Security Deposit for UGVCL 
(SBI) 

114.16 114.16 

BG against Security Deposit for UGVCL 
(SBI) 

43.34 45.34 

Letter of Credit against Windmill 
Loan(HDFC) 

- 6.97 

Total 254.74 263.71 

 
Details of Disputed Statutory Dues : 

(i) Tax Deducting at source (TDS) 

Sr. No   Particulars   Total Default(in Rs.)  

1 F.Y.: 2013-14 0.11 

 
2 F.Y.: 2018-19 0.01  

 
3 F.Y.: 2019-20 0.01  

 
4 F.Y.: 2020-21 0.10  

 
5 F.Y.: 2021-22 0.00  

 
6 F.Y.: 2024-25 1.19  

  
 Total                                                           1.43  

 
Direct Tax : 

 

 Name of the 
Statute  

 Nature of the 
Dues  

 Amount (in 
Rs.)  

 Period to 
which an 
amount 
relates 
(Financial 
Year)  

 Forum where 
dispute is pending  

 Remarks, if any  

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Tax Demand 0.03 2019-20 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 

  

Income Tax Tax Demand 3.52 2017-18 Commissioner of   
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Act, 1961 Income Tax 

Total   3.55       

 
Note 33 : Payment to Auditor 

 

 Nature of Payment   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

Audit Fee                                 5.75                                   5.75  

Consultancy Fee                                 0.50                                   0.40  

 
Note 34 : Non-Current Asset Held for sale 

 

 Groups of Asset held for sale    For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

Investment Property                                34.13  - 

* Liability related to Non-current asset held for sale of Rs. 76 Lakhs has been shown as Advance has been received for Investment 
property held for sale. 
Note 35: Significant Events Regarding the Legal Proceedings 

(i) The company had received an Adjudication Order Bearing No. Order/SV/VC/2023-24/30058-30065 dated February 29th, 
2024 under provisions of section 15HA of Securities and Exhange Board of India Act, 1992, for violation of the provision 
of section 12A(a),(b),(c) of SEBI Act read with Regulations 3(a),3(b),3(c),3(d) and regulations 4(1),4(2)(a), and (e) 
(Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to Securities Market) of SEBI Regulations, 2003, imposing a 
penalty of Rs. 48,00,000.  The company, along with its directors, have filed an appeal on April 15th, 2024 against the 
adjudicating officer for the amount of penalty imposed. 

(ii) The company had received Income Tax Assessment Order vide DIN: ITBA/AST/S/143(3)/2023-24/1063476558(1) on 
27/03/2024 under section 143(3) r.w.s. 144B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 which proposed an addition of Rs. 1,01,35,000 
in the total income filed as per original return. The department raised a demand of Rs. 11,510 (after MAT adjustments) 
against which the company has filed an appeal on April 18th, 2024. 

(iii) The company had received Income Tax Assessment Order vide DIN: ITBA/AST/S/147/2023-24/1063361063(1) on 
25/03/2024 under section 147 r.w.s 144B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 which proposed an addition of Rs. 1,13,41,802 in 
the total income filed as per original return. The department raised a demand of Rs. 3,52,300 (after MAT adjustments) 
against which the company has filed an appeal on April 16th, 2024 
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UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED 

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 

 

1. Corporate Information 

UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED (the company) is a public limited company and incorporated under the provision 

of Company’s Act, 2013. The company is engaged in the manufacturing of Processed Yarn at Timba, Daskroi. The 

company caters to wide domestic market and is engaged in export of yarn via third party. 

 

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis, in accordance with 

the generally accepted accounting principles (Indian GAAP) and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the Indian accounting 

standards notified under section 133 of the Company Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7m of the Companies 

(Account) Rules 2014.  

 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year. 

2.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported 

amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and 

expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period 

in which the results are known/ materialized. 

Inventories 

Items of inventories are measured at method given below after providing for obsolescence, if any Cost of 

inventories comprises of cost of purchase and all costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present 

location and condition. 

Cost has been determined as under: 

1. Raw Material at cost (on FIFO basis) 

2. Finished Goods – at cost or Net Realizable Value whichever is lower. 
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3. Stock in process- Raw material cost and proportionate conversion cost 

4. Stores, Spares and other trading goods on weighted average cost basis.  

c. Cash Flow Statement 

Company has prepared Cash Flow Statement under indirect method as per Indian Accounting Standard -7. 

d. Depreciation on Fixed Assets  

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Straight Line Method(SLM) at the rates and in the manner prescribed in 

Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.  

e. TangibleFixed Assets: 

Fixed Assets except Factory Building are stated at cost net of GST and Factory Building are stated at cost plus GST, less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including financing costs till commencement of 

commercial production, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate 

variations attributable to the fixed assets are transferred to the Statement Profit & Loss Account. 

Subsequently expenditure related to an item of fixed assets added to its book value only if it increases the future 

benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses of existing 

fixed assets, including day to day repair and maintenance expenses and cost of parts replaced are charged to the 

statement of Profit and Loss accounts for the period during which such expenses are incurred. 

 f. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 

the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the 

fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment 

inclusive of Excise Duty and net of GST returns, trade allowances, rebates, taxes and amounts collected on behalf 

of third parties and Government. 

Sale of Goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered and the titles have 

passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied: 

• The company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of the ownership of the goods; 

• The company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to degree usually associated with 

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 

• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company; and the 

costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably 

Interest Income: Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and at the 
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effective interest rate applicable. 

 g. Employee Benefits 

Short-Term Employee Benefits: 

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in 

Exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees 

render the services. 

 

Post-Employee Benefits: 

Defined Contribution Plans: The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an 

expense, when an employee renders the related service. The measurement of the contribution is done as Provident 

Fund and Miscellaneous Act, 1952.  

Defined Benefit Plans: The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of service with 

the Company at the time of resignation/ superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days basic salary for every 

completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The gratuity liability amount is not contributed to 

any approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment to the employees. The liability in respect of 

gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over 

the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services. Remeasurement gains and 

losses arising from adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur 

in Other Comprehensive Income. 

 

h. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of 

the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its 

intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Profit and Loss account. 

i. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax 

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961.  

Deferred tax resulting from “timing difference” between taxable and accounting income is accounted for using the tax 

rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognized 

and carried forward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset will be realized in future. 

j. Provisions 

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation 
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as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined 

based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each reporting 

date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

k. Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the year adjusted for bonus element in equity share. Diluted earnings per share adjust the 

figures used in determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the conversion of all dilutive potential 

equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the period unless issued at 

a later date. 

 

l. Segment reporting 

A) Primary Business Segments: 

The Company’s Operations currently comprise of one segment i.e. manufacturing of textiles. 

B) Secondary Business Segments: 

• The company operate its business at single a place and the function of company is such that the company cannot 

be classified into segments as per IND AS 108. 

 

m. Contingent Liability: 

Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 

which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 

within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable 

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of amount 

cannot be made. 

 

n. Financial Instruments  

i. Financial Assets  

A. Initial Recognition and Measurement  

All Financial Assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 

or issue of Financial Assets, which are not at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial 

recognition. Purchase and sale of Financial Assets are recognised using trade date accounting. However, trade 

receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. 

Subsequent Measurement  
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a) Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (AC)  

A Financial Asset is measured at Amortised Cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset 

in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise to cash flows on 

specified dates that represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

b) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)  

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 

collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise 

on specified dates to cash flows that represents solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding.  

c) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)  

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. Financial assets are 

reclassified subsequent to their recognition, if the Company changes its business model for managing those financial 

assets. Changes in business model are made and applied prospectively from the reclassification date following the 

changes in business model in accordance with principles laid down under Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments.  

C. Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures  

The Company has accounted for its investments in Subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at cost less impairment 

loss (if any).  

D. Other Equity Investments  

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, 

except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other 

Comprehensive Income’. However, dividend on such equity investments arerecognised in Statement of Profit and loss 

when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.  

. Impairment of Financial Assets  

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of 

Financial Assets other than those measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), limited to measurement trade 

receivables. Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount:  

• equal to 20 % of those receivables who are outstanding beyond 180 days (limited to within 365 days) of the bill date; 

•  equal to 50 % of those receivables who are outstanding beyond 365 days (limited to within 720 days) of the bill date; 

• equal to 100% of those receivables who are outstanding beyond 720 days (expected credit losses that result from all 

possible default events over the life of the financial instrument).  

For Trade Receivables the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be 

recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine 
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impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed 

and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.  

ii. Financial Liabilities  

A. Initial Recognition and Measurement  

All Financial Liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of 

recurring nature are directly recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. 

 B. Subsequent Measurement  

Financial Liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables 

maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short 

maturity of these instruments.  

iii. Derecognition of Financial Instruments  

The Company derecognizes a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the Financial Asset 

expire or it transfers the Financial Asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A Financial liability 

(or a part of a Financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the 

contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.  

Offsetting  

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and only 

when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends, either to settle them on a net 

basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

o. Non Current Asset Held for Sale 

Non current asset or disposal groups comprising of asset and liabilities are classified as 'held for sale' when all the 
following criteria are met: 
i) decision has been made to sell , 
ii) the asset are available for immediate sale in its present condition , 
iii) the asset are being actively marketed  and 
iv) sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded with in 12 months of the balance sheet. 
 

Subsequently , such non current assets and disposal groups classified as 'held for sale' are measured at the lower of its 

carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Non Current assets held for sale are not depreciated or amortised. 

 
                                                                                                                    For and on Behalf of  
                                                                                                                         Rajiv Shah & Associates 
 Rajiv C Shah( Partner)                                                                                  Chartered Accountants 
FRN No:108454W 
M.No.:043261                                                                                       UDIN:25043261BMKYZA6293                                                                                  
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date:26.05.2025



          

 

 

 

 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 

To the Members of 
United POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED         
    
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT 
LIMITED which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
statement of Cash Flows, the statement of changes in equity and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013  with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.  
 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

 



          

 

 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control 
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the financial statements 
 
Opinion 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its Profit/Loss and its Cash Flow for the 
year ended on that date. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

i. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 

“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
ii. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

 
b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books; 

 
c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account 

 
d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 



          

 

 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 

B”. 
 
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us: 
 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses.  
 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 

other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 

or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries.   

 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as 

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) 

or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 

 



          

 

 

vi.   The company has not declared any dividend during the year as per section 123 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 
vii. The company has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a 

feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year 

for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with 

and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record 

retention. 
 
 

 

                                                                                                                                               For and on behalf of  
                                                                                                                                           Rajiv Shah & Associates 
                                                                                                                                             Chartered Accountants  
                                                                                             
 

 

                                                                                                                                              Rajiv C Shah (Partner) 
Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                                  M. No.: 043261   
Date:26 /05/2025                                                                                               FRN No.: 108454W            
                                                                                                                                     UDIN: 25043261BMKYZC9005 
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

 
Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our 
report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025: 
 
On the basis of Examination of Independent Audit Reports on standalone financial statements of the 
companies (including parent and all subsidiaries with which consolidation is done) there are no adverse 
qualifications in CARO reports. 
 
 

 
 
 
                                            For and on behalf of  

                                                                                                                                         Rajiv Shah & Associates 
                                                                                                                                          Chartered Accountants  
                                                                                            
 
 

 

                                                                                                                                       Rajiv C Shah (Partner) 
   Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                          M. No.: 043261   
   Date: 26/05/2025                                                                                                        FRN No.: 108454W 

                                                                                                                UDIN: 25043261BMKYZC9005 
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of  
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013  
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT 
LIMITED as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company. 
Considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the “Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
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dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2025, based  internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

 
                                                       For and on behalf of  

                                                                                                                                                  Rajiv Shah & Associates 
                                                                                                                                                    Chartered Accountants  
                                                                                            
 
 

 

                                                                                                                                                       Rajiv C Shah (Partner) 
Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                                            M. No.: 043261   
Date: 26/05/2025                                                                                                                FRN No.: 108454W 
                                                                                                                                           UDIN: 25043261BMKYZC9005 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



          

 
 

125 | P a g e  
 
 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT  31 MARCH, 2025 
 

UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED   

 (CIN - L18109GJ2010PLC062928)  

  Consolidated Balance Sheet as at  31 March, 2025  

 

Particulars    Note 
No.  

 As at 31 
March, 2025  

 As at 31 March, 2024  

    

  ASSETS 
   

        
(1) 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
   

  (a) Property, plants and equipment 1.1 9,378.15 7,972.94 

  (b) Capital work-in-progress 14.91 2,465.26 

  (c) Investment property 1.2 - 35.22 

  (d) Financial assets 
   

  (i) Investment 2 0.01 0.01 

  (ii) Loans 8 1.54 1.54 

  (iii) Trade Receivables 5 15.74 13.95 

  (iv) Other financial assets 3 0.35 2.96 

  (e) Deffered tax assets(net) 
 

- - 

  (f) Other non-current assets 9 30.23 0.24 

  Total Non-Current Assets 
 

9,425.18 10,478.16 

        
(2) 

Current assets 
   

  (a) Inventory 4 4,457.31 2,552.70 

  (b) Financial assets 
   

  (i) Investment 
   

  (ii) Trade receivable 5 9,675.57 9,818.76 

  (iii) Cash & cash equivalents 6 29.46 15.14 

  (iv) Other balances with banks 7 466.10 468.23 

  (v) Loans 8 6.02 34.21 

  (vi) Other financial assets 2 48.01 22.86 

  (c) Current tax assets(net) 
 

- - 

  (d) Other current assets 9 459.86 876.36 

  Total Current Assets 
 

15,158.07 13,802.21 

  Asset held for Sale 
 

34.13 - 

  Total  Assets 
 

24,617.38 24,280.37 

  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
   

  EQUITY 
   

  (a) Equity Share Capital 10 2,295.16 2,295.16 

  (b) Other Equity 11 7,437.14 5,667.92 

  (c) Non-Controlling Interest 
 

0.00 0.00 

  Total Equity 
 

9,732.29 7,963.08 
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  LIABILITIES 
   

        
(1) 

Non-Current Liabilities 
   

  Financial  Liabilities 
   

  Borrowings 12 4,938.51 7,082.77 

  Lease Liablilities 
   

  Other Financial Liabilities 
   

  Provision 
 

63.26 49.91 

  Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 
 

591.44 770.51 

  Other non-Current liabilites 
   

  Total Non-current liabilities 
 

5,593.20 7,903.19 

        
(2) 

Current liabilities 
   

  Financial  Liabilities 
   

  Borrwings 12 6,899.24 5,466.40 

  Lease liabilities 
  

- 

  Trade Paybles 
   

  (a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprise 
 

1,732.58 
 

  and small enterprise 
  

- 

  (b) total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other 
   

  than micro enterprise and small enterprise 13 67.73 2,217.37 

  Other financial liabilities. 14 315.88 488.67 

  Other Current Liabilities 15 15.42 24.69 

  Provision 16 166.42 98.22 

  Current Tax Liabilities(net) 
 

18.61 118.75 

  Total Current Liabilities 
 

9,215.89 8,414.10 

  Liability Related to "Asset held for Sale" 
 

76.00 - 

  Total Liabilities 
 

14,885.09 16,317.29 

  Total Equity & Liability 
 

24,617.38 24,280.37 

 
As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

 For, Rajiv Shah & Associates  
 

 United Polyfab Gujarat Limited  

 Chartered Accountants  
  

  
 Firm Regn. No. 108454W  

  

  
  

  
Gagan Mittal  Nirmal Mittal  

  
  

(Managing Director)  ( Director)  

 CA. Rajiv Shah  
 

 (DIN- 00593377)  (DIN- 01528758)  

 (Partner) 
 

  
 M.No. 043261  

  

  
 UDIN:  25043261BMKYZC9005 

   
  

Place : Ahmedabad 

  
 Mahesh Gupta  

Date : 26.05.2025 
 
      

   (CFO)  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025 
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UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED   

 (CIN - L18109GJ2010PLC062928)  

 Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended 31 March, 2025  

 Particulars  
 

Note 
No.  

 For the year ended  
31 March, 2025  

 For the year ended  
31 March, 2024  

 
   Income         

   Revenue from operation               
17  

60,221.77 90,847.72  

   Other income               
18  

100.71 283.71  

   Total Income    60,322.48 91,131.43  

   Expense    
  

 

   Cost of Material Consumed                
19  

53,647.22 84,012.30  

   Changes in inventories of Finished 
Goods, WIP and Waste Product  

             
20  

(1,775.77) (590.52)  

   Employee benefit expense               
21  

1,081.78 976.37  

   Finance cost               
22  

966.27 903.59  

   Depreciation and amortisation expense               
23  

1,300.26 1,280.25  

   Other expense               
24  

2,977.85 3,318.39  

   Total Expense    58,197.61 89,900.38  

   Profit/(Loss) before tax    2,124.87 1,231.05  

   Tax expense    
  

 

          Current tax    535.04 215.11  

          Deferred tax    (179.07) 354.68  

          Add/Less : Excess/Short Provision of 
Income Tax  

  - 0.42  

   Total Tax Expense    355.96 570.21  

   Profit for the period /year    1,768.91 660.85  

   Iteams that will not be subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss  

  
  

 

   Change in fair value of investment 
carried at fair value through other 
comprehensive income  

  - - 
 

   Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined 
benefit plans  

  0.41 3.88  

   Less: Income tax impact on above    (0.10) (0.68)  

   Restated other comprehensive income 
for the period/year  

  0.31 3.21  

   Restated total comprehensive 
income/(loss) for the period/year  

  1,769.22 664.05  

   Of the Total Comprehensive Income 
above, 
Other comprehensive income 
attributable to:  

  
  

 

   Owners of the Parent                                     
1,769.22  

                                
664.05  

 

   Non-Controlling Interest                                           
(0.00) 

                                   
(0.00) 

 

   Restated Earning/(loss) per Equity Share 
(Face value of Rs. 10/- each)  

       

    Basic(in Rs.)                                             
7.71  

                                     
3.09  
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        Diluted(in Rs.)                                             
7.71  

                                     
3.09  

 

           

 As per our report of even date  
 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors    

 For Rajiv Shah & Associates  
 

 United Polyfab Gujarat Limited   

 Chartered Accountants  
  

   

  
   

   

  
  

 Gagan Mittal   Nirmal Mittal   

  
  

 (Managing Director)   ( Director)   

 CA. Rajiv Shah (Partner)  
 

 (DIN- 00593377)   (DIN- 01528758)   

 M.No. 043261  
  

   

 Firm Regn. No. 108454W  
  

   

 UDIN: 25043261BMKYZC9005 
   

   

  
   

 Mahesh Gupta   

 Place : Ahmedabad  
  

 (CFO)   

 Date : 26.05.2025         
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT 31ST MARCH,2025 
  

UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED  

(CIN - L18109GJ2010PLC062928) 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

     (Rs. In Lakhs)  

 Particulars   For the year ended 
31.03.2025                 

 For the year ended 
31.03.2024  

 Cash flow from operating activities :      

 Profit/(Loss) before tax  2,124.87 1,231.05 

 Adjustments for non-cash and non operating expenses:  
  

 Depreciation   1,300.26 1,280.25 

 Interest and finance expenses  966.27 903.59 

 Effect of Remeasured of Defined Liabilities  0.41 3.88 

 Profit from Sale of Asset  (0.19) (123.20) 

 Operating profit before working capital changes  4,391.62 3,295.58 

 Movement in working capital:  
  

 Increase/(decrease) in trade Payable  (417.06) 1,246.26 

 Increase/(decrease) in provisions  81.55 (21.66) 

 Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities  (96.79) 69.95 

 Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities  (9.27) (4.37) 

 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  141.39 (2,691.97) 

 (Increase)/decrease in inventories  (1,904.60) (1,013.77) 

 (Increase)/decrease in short-term loans and advances  28.19 (28.00) 

 (Increase)/decrease in other current assets  386.50 (240.96) 

 (Increase)/decrease in other financial assets  (20.41) (357.80) 

 Cash generated from/(used in) operations  2,581.13 253.26 

 Direct taxes paid  (635.28) (97.04) 

 Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities   1,945.85 156.22 

 Cash flow from investing activities :  
  

 Purchase of fixed assets (including intangible,CWIP & 
Advances)  

(255.05) (2,607.13) 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Long-Term Loans and Advances  - 204.14 

 Investment   - - 

 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  1.22 343.60 

 Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities  (253.83) (2,059.39) 

 Cash flow from financing activities :  
  

 Proceeds from issue of shares/share warrants  - 930.00 

 Redemption of Long Term Loan long-term borrowings  (2,144.26) (442.10) 

 Proceeds from short-term borrowings  1,432.84 1,582.77 

 Interest paid  (966.27) (903.59) 

 Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities  (1,677.70) 1,167.08 

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)   14.33 (736.09) 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  15.14 751.23 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  29.46 15.14 

 Summary of significant accounting policies (note 2)  
  

 Cash & Cash Equivalent  29.46 15.14 

 Bank Balance with Scheduled Bank   
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

  

   

For Rajiv Shah & Associates United Polyfab Gujarat Limited 

Chartered Accountants    

Firm Regn. No. 108454W    

     

     

CA. Rajiv Shah (Partner) Gagan Mittal  Nirmal Mittal  

M.No.: 043261 (Managing Director)  ( Director)  

UDIN: 25043261BMKYZC9005  (DIN- 00593377)  (DIN- 01528758)  

     

     

     

Date : 26.05.2025   Mahesh Gupta  

Place : Ahmedabad    (CFO)  
 

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE  YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH,2025 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
Particulars 31st March, 2025 `in Lakhs 31st March, 2024 

` in Lakhs 

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 2295.16 2095.16 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - - 

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 2295.16 2095.16 

Changes in equity share capital during the current year - - 

Balance at the end of the current reporting period 2295.16 2295.16 

 

B. OTHER EQUITY 
Particulars As At 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

 (a) Reserve & Surplus:    

 (i) Securities Premium     

 Opening Balance  2577.34 1537.34 

 Add/Less during the year *  - 1040.00 

 Closing Balance  2577.34 2577.34 

    

  (ii) Retained earnings     

 Opening Balance  3086.89 2414.24 

 Add: Profit/(loss) for the year  1757.93 660.92 

 Add/(Less): Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income  - 11.72 

 Closing Balance  4844.82 3086.89 

    

 (iii) General Reserve    

 Opening Balance  0.00011 0.00011 

 Add: During the year  - - 

   Closing Balance  0.00011 0.00011 

    

 (b) Other comprehensive income    

 Opening Balance  3.77 12.28 
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   Add/(Less): Transfer to Reserves and Surplus  - -11.72 

 Add: Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefit plans   3.21 

Closing Balance 4.07 3.77 

(c ) Money Received Against Share Warrants * - - 

 
As per our report of even date        For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

 For Rajiv Shah & Associates        United Polyfab Gujarat Limited  
 

 Chartered Accountants       
  

 Firm Regn. No. 108454W        
  

       CA. Rajiv Shah        Gagan Mittal   Nirmal Mittal  

       (Partner)        (Managing Director)   ( Director)  

       M.No.: 043261        (DIN- 00593377)   (DIN- 01528758)  

      FRN: 108454W       
  

      UDIN:  25043261BMKYZC9005      
  

      Date :  26.05.2025      
 

 Mahesh Gupta  

     Place : Ahmedabad       
 

 (CFO)  
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NOTES FORMIMG PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1.1:Property , Plant & Equipment’s 

Name of 
the assets 

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 

01/04/2024 addition Deduction/ 
transfer 

31/03/2025 01/04/2024 addition 31/03/2025 31/03/2025 31/03/2024 

Factory 
Land 

                                 
63.00  

                             
-    

- 
                            
63.00  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                        
63.00  

                                
63.00  

Plant & 
Machinery  

                          
11,854.98  

                        
29.39  

- 
                     
11,884.36  

                 
6,921.89  

                  
1,095.69  

                    
8,017.58  

                                   
3,866.79  

                           
4,933.09  

Factory 
Building 
and 
Working 
Colony 

                            
2,267.50  

                             
-    

- 
                       
2,267.50  

                    
426.95  

                       
71.80  

                       
498.76  

                                   
1,768.75  

                           
1,840.55  

Electric 
Installation 

                               
477.08  

                             
-    

- 
                          
477.08  

                    
182.70  

                       
30.22  

                       
212.92  

                                      
264.17  

                              
294.38  

Air 
Condition 

                                   
9.93  

                             
-    

- 
                             
9.93  

                        
5.58  

                         
0.94  

                           
6.52  

                                         
3.41  

                                 
4.36  

CC TV 
Camera 

                                 
12.11  

                             
-    

- 
                            
12.11  

                        
5.58  

                         
2.25  

                           
7.83  

                                         
4.28  

                                 
6.53  

Computer 
& Printers 

                                   
7.11  

                             
-    

- 
                             
7.11  

                        
4.76  

                         
0.87  

                           
5.63  

                                         
1.48  

                                 
2.35  

Furniture 
& Fixtures 

                                 
58.88  

                             
-    

- 
                            
58.88  

                      
31.07  

                         
5.28  

                         
36.36  

                                        
22.52  

                                
27.81  

Factory 
Equipment 
(Including 
Fire 
Safety) 

                                   
7.12  

                             
-    

- 
                             
7.12  

                        
2.91  

                         
0.47  

                           
3.38  

                                         
3.74  

                                 
4.21  

Water 
Cooler 

                                   
3.99  

                         
0.93  

- 
                             
4.91  

                        
2.15  

                         
0.38  

                           
2.53  

                                         
2.38  

                                 
1.83  

Vehicles  
                               
167.95  

                             
-    

- 
                          
167.95  

                      
80.83  

                       
18.30  

                         
99.13  

                                        
68.82  

                                
87.12  

Weight 
Scale 

                                   
8.34  

                             
-    

- 
                             
8.34  

                        
2.06  

                         
0.41  

                           
2.48  

                                         
5.86  

                                 
6.27  

Office 
Equipment 

                                   
4.46  

                         
0.51  

1.03 
                             
3.94  

                        
1.63  

                         
0.57  

                           
2.20  

                                         
1.74  

                                 
2.83  

Solar 
Power 
Plant 

                               
689.72  

                             
-    

- 
                          
689.72  

                      
34.83  

                       
32.76  

                         
67.59  

                                      
622.13  

                              
654.89  

Working 
Colony 
(Part I) 

                                 
52.62  

                        
87.57  

- 
                          
140.18  

                        
8.89  

                         
4.21  

                         
13.10  

                                      
127.08  

                                
43.73  

Wind 
Power 
Project 

                                      
-    

                   
2,587.02  

- 
                       
2,587.02  

                           
-    

                       
35.01  

                         
35.01  

                                   
2,552.00  

                                     
-    

Total (A) 15684.77 2705.40 1.03 18389.15 7711.83 1299.17 9011.00 9378.15 7972.94 

Work in 
Progress 

         

Working 
Colony 
(Part-II) 

                                 
86.75  

                         
0.81  

                           
87.57  

                                 
-    

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                             
-    

                                
86.75  

Windmill 
                            
2,378.50  

                      
208.51  

                      
2,587.02  

                                 
-    

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                             
-    

                           
2,378.50  

Ground 
Mounted 
Solar 
project 

                                      
-    

                        
14.91  

                                
-    

                            
14.91  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                        
14.91  

                                     
-    

    Total (B) 
                            
2,465.26  

                      
224.23  

                      
2,674.58  

                            
14.91  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                        
14.91  

                           
2,465.26  

Total                                                                                                                                                                                                            
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(A+B) 18,150.03  2,929.64  2,675.62  18,404.05  7,711.83  1,299.17  9,011.00  9,393.05  10,438.20  

 

As  on Year Ended 31/03/2024 

Name of 
the assets 

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 

01/04/2024 addition Deduction/ 
transfer 

31/03/2025 01/04/2024 addition 31/03/2025 31/03/2025 31/03/2024 

Factory 
Land 

                                 
63.00  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                            
63.00  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                        
63.00  

                                
63.00  

Plant & 
Machiney  

                          
11,929.69  

                      
142.26  

                         
216.98  

                     
11,854.98  

                 
5,778.67  

                  
1,143.21  

                    
6,921.89  

                                   
4,933.09  

                           
6,151.01  

Factory 
Building 
and 
Working 
Colony 

                            
2,267.50  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                       
2,267.50  

                    
384.08  

                       
42.87  

                       
426.95  

                                   
1,840.55  

                           
1,883.42  

Electric 
Installation 

                               
477.08  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                          
477.08  

                    
152.40  

                       
30.30  

                       
182.70  

                                      
294.38  

                              
324.68  

Air 
Condition 

                                   
9.65  

                         
0.28  

                                
-    

                             
9.93  

                        
4.65  

                         
0.93  

                           
5.58  

                                         
4.36  

                                 
5.00  

CC TV 
Camera 

                                   
4.99  

                         
7.11  

                                
-    

                            
12.11  

                        
4.82  

                         
0.76  

                           
5.58  

                                         
6.53  

                                 
0.18  

Computer & 
Printers 

                                   
4.99  

                         
2.12  

                                
-    

                             
7.11  

                        
4.09  

                         
0.67  

                           
4.76  

                                         
2.35  

                                 
0.90  

Furniture & 
Fixtures 

                                 
58.88  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                            
58.88  

                      
25.69  

                         
5.38  

                         
31.07  

                                        
27.81  

                                
33.19  

Factory 
Equipments 
(Including 
Fire Safety) 

                                   
7.12  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                             
7.12  

                        
2.44  

                         
0.47  

                           
2.91  

                                         
4.21  

                                 
4.68  

Water 
Cooler 

                                   
2.64  

                         
1.35  

                                
-    

                             
3.99  

                        
2.00  

                         
0.16  

                           
2.15  

                                         
1.83  

                                 
0.64  

Vehicles  
                               
164.05  

                         
3.90  

                                
-    

                          
167.95  

                      
62.35  

                       
18.48  

                         
80.83  

                                        
87.12  

                              
101.70  

Weight 
Scale 

                                   
4.84  

                         
5.62  

                             
2.13  

                             
8.34  

                        
1.75  

                         
0.31  

                           
2.06  

                                         
6.27  

                                 
3.09  

Office 
Equipments 

                                   
2.01  

                         
2.45  

                                
-    

                             
4.46  

                        
1.27  

                         
0.36  

                           
1.63  

                                         
2.83  

                                 
0.74  

Solar Power 
Plant 

                               
689.72  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                          
689.72  

                        
1.97  

                       
32.85  

                         
34.83  

                                      
654.89  

                              
687.74  

Working 
Colony (Part 
I) 

                                 
52.62  

                             
-    

                                
-    

                            
52.62  

                        
7.22  

                         
1.67  

                           
8.89  

                                        
43.73  

                                
45.40  

Total (A) 
                       
15,738.78  

                    
165.10  

                       
219.10  

                  
15,684.77  

               
6,433.41  

                
1,278.42  

                  
7,711.83  

                                
7,972.94  

                        
9,305.37  

Work in 
Progress 

         

Working 
Colony 
(Part-II) 

                                 
23.23  

                        
63.53  

                                
-    

                            
86.75  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                        
86.75  

                                
23.23  

Windmill 
                                      
-    

                   
2,378.50  

                                
-    

                       
2,378.50  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                   
2,378.50  

                                     
-    

    Total (B) 
                               
23.23  

                
2,442.03  

                                
-    

                    
2,465.26  

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-    

                                
2,465.26  

                              
23.23  

  
                                      
-    

                             
-    

                                
-    

                                 
-    

                           
-    

                             
-    

                              
-      

                                     
-    

    Total 
(A+B) 

                       
15,762.01  

                
2,607.13  

                       
219.10  

                  
18,150.03  

               
6,433.41  

                
1,278.42  

                  
7,711.83  

                              
10,438.20  

                        
9,328.60  

 

Note 1.2 Ageing of Capital Work-in-Progress 
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Project in progress 
 Amount in CWIP for a period of   Total 

 Less than 1 year   1-2 years   2-3 Years  
 More than 3 
years  

 

Project-in-Progress       

Working Colony - - - - - 

Windmill Project - - - - - 

Ground Mounted Solar project 14.91 - - - 14.91 

Projects temporarily suspended - - - -  
 

Note 1.3 Title Deeds Of Immovable Property not held in the name of the company 

Relevant Line items in 
the balance sheet  

 Description of item of 
property  

 Gross 
Carrying 
value  

 Title Deeds 
held in the 
name of  

 Whether title 
deed holder is a 
promoter,director 
or relative of 
Promoter/Director 
or employee of 
promoter/director  

 
Property 
held 
since 
which 
date  

 Reasons for 
not being held 
in the name of 
the company  

Factory Land (Timba 
Block No. 188)  Land & Building  

                                 
63.00   Gagan Mittal   Director   -    

 

NOTE 1.2 Investment Property 

Investment property 
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

Shops on rent (Gross value) - 58.81 

Less:- Gross Depreciation  - -23.59 

Net Written Down Value  - 35.22 

 

NOTE 2: Investment 

Particular 
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

 (i) Non-Current (At Cost)  
  

 Investment in Shares Spinning Association  0.01 0.01 

 Investment in Equity Shares of United Green Distilleries 
Private Limited  

- - 

 Total (i)  0.01 0.01 

 (ii) Current  - - 

Total (i+ii) 0.01 0.01 

 

NOTE 3:   Other Financial Assets 

Particular 
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

(i) Non-current     

Advance for Capital Goods 0.35 2.96 

  - - 

Total (i) 0.35 2.96 

(ii) Current - - 

Interest accrued but not due on Fixed Deposits 48.01 22.86 

Total (ii) 48.01 22.86 
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  - - 

Total (i+ii) 48.36 25.82 

   

NOTE 4: Inventories   

Particular 
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

 Raw Material  1,184.63 1,075.04 

 Store & Spare  24.66 10.35 

 Work in Progress   968.35 551.56 

 Finished Goods  2,268.08 906.78 

 Cotton Waste   - - 

 Packing Material  11.59 8.97 

 Total  4,457.31 2,552.70 

 
  

  

NOTE 5: Trade Receivable 
  

Particular 
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

 (i) Non-Current      

 Unsecured, considered good  108.62 63.86 

 Less: Allowance for expected credit loss due to increase in credit risk("ECL")  (92.88) (49.92) 

  15.74 13.95 
  - - 

 (ii) Current  - - 

Unsecured, considered good 9,712.97 9,821.41 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss due to increase in credit risk("ECL") (37.40) (2.66) 

Net Trade Receivables 9,675.57 9,818.76 

  - - 

Total 9,691.31 9,832.70 

   

NOTE 5.1 Ageing of Trade Receivable   

Particular  
(outstanding from due date of payment/from date of transaction) 

  As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

      

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable-considered good     

Less than 6 months 9,525.98 9,808.14 

6 months- 1 year 186.99 13.28 

1-2 years 31.48 27.89 

2-3 years 77.14 35.97 

More than 3 years - - 

Total (i) 9,821.59 9,885.27 

    
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable-which have significant increase in credit 
risk   

Less than 6 months - - 

6 months- 1 year - - 

1-2 years - - 
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2-3 years - - 

More than 3 years - - 

Total (ii) - - 

    

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivable-considered good   

Less than 6 months - - 

6 months- 1 year - - 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years - - 

More than 3 years - - 

Total (iii) - - 

    
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable-which have significant increase in credit 
risk   

Less than 6 months - - 

6 months- 1 year - - 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years - - 

More than 3 years - - 

Total (iv) - - 

    

(v) Unbilled dues   

Less than 6 months - - 

6 months- 1 year - - 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years - - 

More than 3 years - - 

Total (v) - - 

    

 Total  9,821.59 9,885.27 

   
 5.2 Debts due by Directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due 
by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member should be separately stated. 

 Name of the Company/Party   March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

 United Cotfab Limited  149.90 934.85 

 United Polyfab Private Limited  370.79 12.15 

 United Techfab Limited  - 185.93 

 Vinod Cotfab Private Limited  28.49 57.91 

 Vinod Spinners Private Limited  1,330.11 991.52 

 Vishan International LLP  477.54 22.74 

 Vinod Texspin LLP  - 31.24 

   

NOTE 6: Cash and Cash equivalents   

Particular 
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

Balance with banks in current accounts 26.14 11.64 

Cash on hand 3.32 3.50 
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Total 29.46 15.14 

   

NOTE 7: Other balance with banks   

Particular 
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

Balance held as margin money against Credit Facility     

SBI (Against Bank Guarantee) 99.78 69.45 

PNB 17.47 56.03 

HDFC (Against Windmill) 348.85 342.75 

Total 466.10 468.23 

 
NOTE 8: Loans   

   

Particular 
  As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

i. Non-current     

(Unsecured, considered good)   

Amay Spincot Private Limited - - 

 Other Business Advances  1.54 1.54 

 Total (i)  1.54 1.54 

ii.Current - - 

(Unsecured, considered good) - - 

 Amay Spincot Private Limited   - 23.91 

 United Green Distilleries Private Limited  - - 

 Staff Advances (Including Advances to KMP)  6.02 10.30 

 Total (ii)  6.02 34.21 

 Total (i+ii)  7.56 35.75 

   
 
8.1. Disclosure in respect of Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, directors, KMP's and related parties: 

Type of Borrower 
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

Mahesh Gupta (CFO) 
                                                

-    
                                                   

0.50  

   

NOTE 9: Other Assets   

Particular 
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

i.Non-current     

Deposits 6.23 0.24 

SEBI Penalties paid against Order 24.00 0.00 

Total (i) 30.23 0.24 

ii.Current   

    

Advance to Sundry Creditors 23.86 23.94 

Deposit - - 

GST Receivable 166.18 323.13 
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SGST Refund Receivable 214.93 501.73 

Prepaid Expenses 41.89 27.55 

Income Tax refund receivable 0.00 0.00 

Power tarrif claim receivable 0.00 0.00 

Preliminary Expenses 13.00 0.00 

Total (ii) 459.86 876.36 

Total  490.09 876.59 

 

10: Equity Share Capital 

10.1: 

Particular 
As at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Authorised   

2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,500.00 2,500.00 

 2,500.00 2,500.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up - - 
2,29,51,550 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully 

paid up 2,295.16 2,295.16 

 2,295.16 2,295.16 

 

10.2:  Reconciliation of number of equity share 

Particulars   As at March 31, 2025   As at March 31, 2024  

 balance as at April 1, 2019      

 Add: Issued during the year      

 balance as at March 31,2020      

 Add: Issued during the year      

 Balance at the beginning of the year  2,29,51,550.00 2,09,51,550.00 

 Add: Issued for Cash Considerations  - 20,00,000.00 

 Add: Issued for consideration other than cash  - - 

 Balance at the end of the year  2,29,51,550.00 2,29,51,550.00 

 

10.3: Reconciliation of number of instruments entirely equity in nature 

A. Fully Convertible Share Warrants 

Particulars   As at March 31, 2025   As at March 31, 2024  

 Balance at the beginning of the year  - 20,00,000 

 Add: Issued during the year  - - 

 Less: Converted into Share Capital (Owing to 
Exercise of the options/warrants)  - -20,00,000 

 Balance at the end of the year  - - 

 

10.4:  Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares 

Name of shareholder    

 As at March 31, 2025   As at March 31, 2024  

 No. of shares               
 Percentage 
of Holding   No. of shares                Percentage of Holding  

 Gagan Mittal  32,96,850 14.36% 35,83,650 15.61% 
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 Gagan N Mittal HUF  10,47,000 4.56% 16,59,000 7.23% 

 Nirmal Mittal  40,46,250 17.63% 43,16,000 18.80% 

 Shilpa Gagan Mittal  10,82,400 4.72% 10,82,400 4.72% 

 Amay Spincot Pvt Ltd  15,00,049 6.54% 15,72,682 6.85% 

 Amaysha Textiles Private 
Limited                                             

29,78,728 12.98% 
30,49,821 

13.29% 

 

10.5: Details of shareholding of promoters* 

Name of promoters  

 As at March 31, 2025   As at March 31, 2024  

 No. of shares                Percentage of Holding   No. of shares               
 Percentage of 
Holding  

 Gagan Mittal  32,96,850 14.36% 35,83,650 15.61% 

 Nirmal Mittal  40,46,250 17.63% 43,16,000 
18.80% 

 Gagan N Mittal HUF  10,47,000 4.56% 16,59,000 7.23% 

 

10.6  Rights, Preferences and Restrictions Attached to Shares:   

 

(i) The Company has only one class of shares i.e. Equity Shares having par value of Rs 10 each. Each holder of Equity Shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. 

 

(ii) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining 
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders. 
 
 
NOTE 11: Other equity 

  Particulars  
 As  at  

  March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

  (a) Reserve & Surplus:      

  (i) Securities Premium       

  Opening Balance                            2,577.34                            1,537.34  

  Add/Less during the year *                                         -                              1,040.00  

  Less:- IPO expenses                                         -                                           -    

  Less:- Listing process exp                                         -                                           -    

  Closing Balance                            2,577.34                            2,577.34  

   (ii) Retained earnings       

  Opening Balance                            3,086.82                            2,414.25  

  Add: Profit/(loss) for the year                            1,768.91                               660.85  

 

 Add/(Less): Transfer from Other Comprehensive 
Income                                         -    

                                11.72  

  Closing Balance                            4,855.73                            3,086.82  

  (iii) General Reserve                                         -                                           -    

  Opening Balance                                0.0001                               0.0001  

  Add: During the year                                         -                                           -    

  Closing Balance                                0.0001                               0.0001  

  (b) Other  comprehensive income                                         -                                           -    

  Opening Balance                                    3.77                                  12.28  

  Add/(Less): Transfer to Reserves and Surplus                                         -                                  -11.72  

 

 Add: Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined 
benefit plans                                    0.31                                    3.21  
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  Closing Balance                                    4.07                                    3.77  

  (c ) Money Received Against Share Warrants *                                         -                                           -    

  Total                            7,437.14                            5,667.92  

 

NOTE 12:   Borrowings 

Particular  
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

 (i) Non- Current       

 Secured (At Amortised Cost)      

 Loan From SBI      

 Term Loan (For Plant/Machinery, Building 
and Working Capital)  

3,053.49 4,368.57 

 Solar Term Loan   130.46 341.24 

 Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line  760.76 1,117.25 

 Loan From Punjab National Bank   
 

 Term Loan (For Plant/Machinery, Building 
and Working Capital)  - 

-29.84 

 Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line  - 4.67 

 Loan From HDFC Bank   
 

 Windmill Term Loan  1,932.17 2,153.17 

 Car Loan (Secured by Hypothecation of car)  5.88 17.01 

 Loan from Indian Bank   
 

 Term Loan (For Plant/Machinery, Building 
and Working Capital)  - 

6.01 

 Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line  - 
1.37 

 SBI Term Loan  - - 

 OBC Term Loan (A/C NO-01207021000296)  - - 

 Indian Bank Term Loan (A/C No. - 6599316349)  - - 

 HDFC Bank (Car Loan, secured by hypothecation of car)  - - 

 Yes Bank (Car Loan, secured by hypothecation of car)  - - 

 GECL 2 -  SBI 11 CR-40217196330  - - 

 GECLS 2.0 - 5 CR Pnb -105110IL00000027  - - 

 Indian Bank GECLS-2 -(761957) 2.74 Cr  - - 

 New GECL Loan (A/C NO.41233858243)   - - 

 New PNB GECL Loan (105110EG00000222)  - - 

 Kotak Bank (Eicher Loan)  - 4.94 

  5,882.76 7,984.40 

 Less : Current maturity of term loan disclosed under the 
head "Current Borrowing"  2,378.69 2,307.69 

  3,504.07 5,676.70 

 Unsecured at amortised cost    
 Directors  91.22 91.14 

 Directors's Relative  95.40 91.46 

 Loan from Body Corporate  1,247.81 1,223.48 

 Total (i)  4,938.51 7,082.77 

 (ii) Current     

 Secured - at amortised cost    

 Loan from Financial Institutions    
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 SBI Cash Credit  1,667.66 1,894.02 

 Indian Bank Cash Credit  - 2.01 

 PNB Bank Cash Credit  - 44.98 

 Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing  2,378.69 2,307.69 

 Total  4,046.35 4,248.71 

 Unsecured     

 Payment Due Against Reverse Factoring Services    

 -With Bank  2,852.89 1,217.70 

 Total (ii)  6,899.24 5,466.40 

 

NOTE12.1: Terms of Repayment 

Nature of Security   Name of the Facility   Terms of Interest  

Primary Security (All Fund Based Facilities except 
Working Capital) 
 
First Charge by way of mortgage over factory land 
and building located at Survey No. 188 (east), 
Village Timba, Mouje Dascroi, Ahmedabad owned 
by United Polyfab Gujarat Limited, land 
admeasuring 15035 sq. mt and construction 
thereupon and hypothecation of entire moveable 
fixed assets spinning division. (Extension of Second 
Charge by PNB and Indian Bank) 
 
First Charge by way of mortgage over factory land 
and building located at Survey No. 188 (west), 
Village Timba, Mouje Dascroi, Ahmedabad owned 
by United Polyfab Techfab Limited, land 
admeasuring 15934 sq. mt and construction 
thereupon and hypothecation of entire moveable 
fixed assets spinning division. (Extension of Second 
Charge by PNB and Indian Bank) 
 
Hypothecation of entire plant and machinery 
pertaining to the project purchased out of bank 
finance (Including Solar Plant). 

 SBI Term Loan 
SBI GECL 

PNB Term Loan 
PNB GECL 

SBI Solar Term Loan 
Indian Bank Term Loan 

Indian Bank GECL  

 ROI (SBI Term Loan) : 8.65 % 
ROI (SBI GECL) : 8.65 % 

ROI (PNB Term Loan) : 8.50 % 
ROI (PNB GECL) : 8.65 % 

ROI (SBI Solar Term Loan) : 8.65 % 
ROI (Indian Bank Term Loan) : 9.95 %  

ROI (Indian Bank GECL) : 8.65 %  

 

 Hyporthecation by way of first and exclusive 
charge on all Windmill Plant and Machinery  

 HDFC Bank  
 ROI: 9.00 %  

 

Primary Security (For Working Capital) 
 
Hypothecation of entire Stock of Raw Materials, 
Stock-in-Process, Stores and Spares, Packing 
Material, Finished Goods , Book Debts and entire 
other current assets of the company (Spinning 
Unit) present and future. The charge shall  be 
shared on 1st Pari Passu basis with State Bank of 
India and Indian Bank. 

 SBI 
PNB 

Indian Bank  

 ROI (PNB): 8.65 % 
 ROI (SBI) : 8.65 % 
 ROI (Indian Bank): 10.20 %  

 

 

NOTE 12.2: Details of Collateral Security 

Property for Collateral   
 Owner of the 

Asset  
 Bank to whom security 

given  
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Mortgage over all that piece and parcel of immovable property bearing unit No. A-
38, admeasuring 571 sq ft on ground floor in the scheme known as Sumel Business 
Park-IV, on land bearing city survey No. 2453, 2740 alloted in lieu of Survey No. 
172/1 Paiki and 173 Paiki, Sub Plot No. 1 of Final Plot No. 6, Town planning scheme  
No. 16 situated at village Saher Kotda, district Ahmedabad-7 (Odhav). 

Company SBI/PNB 

Mortgage over all that piece and parcel of immovable property bearing unit No. B-
09, admeasuring 571 sq ft on ground floor in the scheme known as Sumel Business 
Park-IV, on land bearing city survey No. 2453, 2740 alloted in lieu of Survey No. 
172/1 Paiki and 173 Paiki, Sub Plot No. 1 of Final Plot No. 6, Town planning scheme  
No. 16 situated at village Saher Kotda, district Ahmedabad-7 (Odhav). 

 Company  SBI/PNB 

 Cash Collateral of Rs. 50,00,000 kept as Fixed Deposit with Bank.   Company  SBI/PNB 

 Mortgage over all that piece of parcel of immovable property bearing Survey No. 
372/450, Plot No. A4, Belle view Farms, Lapkaman village, Vadsar road, Ta.: Daskroi, 
Dist.: Ahmedabad admeasuring 4229 sq mts/45520 sq ft.  

 Nilesh Hada 
and Ritesh Hada  

SBI/PNB 

 Mortgage over immovable property bearing Block No. 182 paiki, 183 paiki and 185 
paiki, Plot No. 418 situated at Mouje, Shela, Ahmedabad admeasuring area 1131 sq 
mtrs.   Gagan Mittal   SBI  

 Mortgage over immovable property bearing  Survey No. 343, Flat No. A-202, 
Celesta Courtyard, Opp. Vikram Nagar, Jodhpur, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380015   Ritesh Hada   SBI  

 Equitable Motgage of Unit No. A-31, Ground Floor, Sumel Business Park-IV, Saher 
Kotda, Ahmedabad, admeasuring 571 sq.ft.  

 United Polyfab 
Private Limited   PNB  

 Equitable Motgage of Unit No. A-32, Ground Floor, Sumel Business Park-IV, Saher 
Kotda, Ahmedabad, admeasuring 571 sq.ft.  

 United Polyfab 
Private Limited   PNB  

 Equitable Motgage of Unit No. A-33, Ground Floor, Sumel Business Park-IV, Saher 
Kotda, Ahmedabad, admeasuring 571 sq.ft.  

 United Polyfab 
Private Limited   PNB  

 Equitable Motgage of Flat No. A-202, Second Charge, Celesta Courtyard, Off. Bopal 
Ambli Road, Jodhpur, Ahmedabad, admeasuring 172.09 sq mtr.   Ritesh Hada   PNB  

Registered Mortgage of Block No. 182 Paiki, 183 Paiki, and 185 of Shela Plot No. 
418, "Vraj Garden", Aakash Shela Co. Operative Housing Society Limited, near Saara 
City Near, Nandan Baug Society, Shela Road, Sardar Patel Ring Road, At Shela, Ta-
Sanand, Dist- Ahmedabad  Gagan Mittal   Indian Bank  

 Pledge of FDR in the name of the Company. (Now Invoked due to take over of loan 
by SBI)   Company   Indian Bank  

 Fixed Deposit for 15% of the sanctioned Term Loan (limited to the amount of 
disbursement) with HDFC   Company   HDFC Bank  

 

NOTE 12.3: Details of Personal and Corporate Gaurantee 

Name of the Guarantors   Relation with Company  

 Gagan Mittal   Director  

 Ritesh Hada   Director  

 Neeti Hada   Relative of the Director  

 United Techfab Limited   Entities in which Director is interested  

 Shilpa Mittal   Relative of the Director  

 Nirmal Mittal   Director  

 United Polyfab Private Limited   Entities in which Director is interested  

 Nilesh Hada  Relative of the Director  

 

NOTE 13:  Trade Payables 
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Particulars  
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

 Current                                         -                                           -    
 total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small 
enterprise                            1,732.58                                         -    

 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprise and small enterprise                                  67.73                            2,217.37  

 Total                 1,800.31                2,217.37  

 

NOTE 13.1: Ageing of Trade Payables 

Particulars  
(Outstanding from due date of payment/from date of transaction)  

 As At  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

 (i) MSME      

 Less than 1 year                            1,732.58                                         -    

 1-2 year                                         -                                           -    

 2-3 year                                         -                                           -    

 More than 3 year                                         -                                           -    

 (ii) Others      

 Less than 1 year                                  63.67                            2,217.37  

 1-2 year                                         -                                           -    

 2-3 year                                    4.06                                         -    

 More than 3 year                                         -                                           -    

 (iii) Disputed dues -MSME      

 Less than 1 year                                         -                                           -    

 1-2 year                                         -                                           -    

 2-3 year                                         -                                           -    

 More than 3 year                                         -                                           -    

 (iv) Disputed dues -Others      

 Less than 1 year                                         -                                           -    

 1-2 year                                         -                                           -    

 2-3 year                                         -                                           -    

 More than 3 year                                         -                                           -    

 (v) Accruals      

 Less than 1 year                                         -                                           -    

 1-2 year                                         -                                           -    

 2-3 year                                         -                                           -    

 More than 3 year                                         -                                           -    

 

NOTE 14:  Other Financial Liabilities 

Particular  
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

(i) Non-current     

Total                                        -                                           -    
(ii) Current     
 Oustanding Expenses for other materials                                241.77                               409.14  
 Outstanding Salary Expenses                                  74.11                                  79.54  

Total                               315.88                               488.67  

Total (i+ii)                               315.88                               488.67  
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NOTE 15:  Other Current liabilities 

Particulars  
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

 (i) Non-current  - - 

 Total  - - 

 (ii) Current    
 Statutory Dues   

  

 TDS                       14.33 22.91 

 Outsanding Employee Benefit Contribution                         1.10 1.28 

 Advance from Customers  - 0.50 

 Advance for Sale of Capital Asset  - - 

 Total  15.42 24.69 

  15.42 24.69 

 

NOTE 16:  Provisions 

Particulars  
 As at  

 March 31,2025   March 31,2024  

 (i) Non-current                                         -        

 Provision for Gratuity  63.26 49.91 

 Total  63.26 49.91 

 (ii) Current  - - 

 Provision for Expenses  153.08 89.28 

 Provision for Gratuity *  13.35 8.94 

 Total  166.42 98.22 

  
  

  229.68 148.13 

 

NOTE 17:  Revenue From Operations 

Particulars 

 For the year ended  

 March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

Sales     
 (i) Sales (Grey/Dyed) (Net of returns)                                                                 

-    
 (i) Yarn Sales  58,540.90 84,369.31 

 (ii) Cotton By-Product Sale  1,680.87 6,476.89 

 (iv) sale of spandex yarn  - - 

Revenue from sale of products & services - - 

 (i) Job Sales  - - 

 (ii)Subsidy Income  - - 

 (iii) Other Operating Income  - 1.52 

Total 60,221.77 90,847.72 

   
NOTE 18:  Other income 
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Particulars 

 For the year ended  

 March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

 Interest income on:      

 (i) Bank Deposites  37.12 23.08 

  
  

 Rent Income  2.03 2.80 

 Interest Income  50.92 79.68 

 Yield on MF  - - 

 Insurance Claim  - 5.57 

 Other non operating Income(Excess provision written back/ Balance 
written off)  

10.45 1.02 

 Reversal of Expected Credit Loss  - 48.37 

 Sundry Creditors Written off  - - 

 Profit on sale of Fixed asset  0.19 123.20 

 Total  100.71 283.71    

   

NOTE 19:  Cost of raw material and components consumed   

Particulars 

 For the year ended  

 March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

 Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,036.34 610.13 

 Add: Purchases - Raw Material  53,759.13 84,438.51 

  - - 

 Sub-Total  - 85,048.64 

 Less: Closing stock - Raw Material  1,148.24 1,036.34 

  - - 

 Total  53,647.22 84,012.30 
   

NOTE 20: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress and Waste Product   

   

Particulars 

 For the year ended  

 March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

 Inventories at the end of the year:      

 Finished Goods  2,268.08 906.78 

 Work-in-Progress  968.35 551.56 

 Cotton Waste (Spinning)  36.38 38.70 

 Total  3,272.82 1,497.05 
 Inventory at the beginning of the year  

  

 Finished Goods  906.78 205.13 

 Work-in-Progress  551.56 559.41 

 Cotton Waste (Spinning)  38.70 141.99 

 Total  1,497.05 906.53 

 Net (increase) / decrease                                                                              
(1,775.77) 

                                                          
(590.52) 

 
NOTE 21:  Employee Benefit Expenses   
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Particulars 

 For the year ended  

 March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

 Salary, Wages, Allowances & Bonus  989.59 899.00 

 Provision for Gratuity **  18.16 17.27 

 Staff Walfare  53.71 39.78 

 Employers Contribution to Provident Fund **  0.52 0.52 

 Directors Sitting Fee  1.80 1.80 

 Director Remuneration  18.00 18.00 

Total 1,081.78 976.37 

   

NOTE 22:  Finance Cost   

   

Particulars 

 For the year ended  

 March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

 Bank Charges  100.32 24.46 

 Interest Expenses  - - 

 Interest on Bank Term Loan  496.02 688.33 

 Interest on Working Capital  107.13 73.48 

 Interest on Reverse Factoring Services  176.48 28.13 

 Interest on Unsecured Loans  85.26 86.85 

 Interest on Vehicle Loan  1.06 2.35 

Total 966.27 903.59 

   

NOTE 23: Depreciation and amortisation expense   

   

Particulars 

 For the year ended  

 March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

 Depreciation on Property, Plants and Equipment (Refer Note )  1,299.17 1,278.42 

 Depreciation on Investment Property  1.09 1.83 

Total 1,300.26 1,280.25 

   

   

NOTE 24: Other Expense   

Particulars 

 For the year ended  

 March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

Other Operating & Manufacturing Expense:     

Cartage Expenses 2.90 13.63 

Electricity Expenses (Net off Subsidy) 1,789.13 2,101.37 

Insurance Expenses 32.33 31.37 

Loading & Unloading Expenses 7.69 12.63 

Freight Inwards 0.38 104.16 

Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery 24.67 36.12 

Repairs & Maintenance - Building & Others  25.87 69.76 

Labour / Contractor  Charges 99.18 79.95 

Folding, Packing & Testing Charges 82.24 62.11 

Stores & Spares Consumption 264.89 240.46 
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Packing Material Consumption 215.83 230.78 

Jobwork Charges 42.88 43.16 

Interest paid to vendors for late payment 75.67 70.61 

Factory Expenses 20.19 15.43 

Total 2,683.85 3,111.52 

Administrative Expenses :   

Audit Fee 5.85 5.85 

Donation 0.21 0.11 

Legal Professional & Consultancy Exps 28.44 25.16 

Membership Fees & Subscription 8.52 3.53 

Office  Expenses 9.69 8.73 

Rent, Rates and Taxes 7.93 7.77 

Traveling Exps. 39.35 10.14 

Petrol & Diesel Exp 7.98 9.81 

Office Repairs and Maintenance 1.69 1.64 

Prior period expenses 5.15 - 

Total 114.80 72.73 

Statutory Expenses   

Interest on Late payment to Govt. Authorities 11.65 0.03 

Late Fee, Penalty and Other Charges - - 

Import Duties - 6.48 

CSR Expenses 21.04 15.36 

Total 32.69 21.87 

Selling and Distribution Expenses   

Commission & Brokerage 11.65 44.32 

Advertisement Exp 0.74 0.31 

Sales Promotion Exp 2.37 7.26 

Freight Outwards 48.62 56.65 

Repairs and Maintenance - Vehicles 5.43 3.71 

Total 68.80 112.26 

Exprected Credit Loss 77.71 - 

Total 2,977.85 3,318.39 

 

Note 25: Ratios 

Sr. 
No.    Ratios  

 Current 
Reporting 

Period  

 Previous 
Reporting 

Period  
 % of 

Change   Reasons for Change  

1 Current Ratio 
                                          
1.64  1.64 0.27%   

2 Debt Equity Ratio 
                                          
1.22  1.58 -22.82%   

3 Debt Service coverage ratio 
                                          
0.37  0.27 36.32% 

Due to Increase in Current year profit compare 
to previous year. 

4 Return on Equity Ratio 
18.18% 8.30% 119.01% 

Due to Increase in Current year profit compare 
to previous year. 

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio 
                                        
14.80  40.78 -63.71% 

Due to Increase in Inventory compare to last 
year. 

6 Trade Receivables turnover ratio 
                                          
6.17  10.70 -42.37% 

Due to Decrease  in Turnover compare to last 
year. 
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7 Trade payables turnover ratio 
                                        
47.05  52.96 -11.16% 

Due to Decrease  in Purchases compare to last 
year. 

8 Working capital turnover ratio 
                                        
10.63  17.88 -40.54% 

Due to Decrease  in Turnover compare to last 
year. 

9 Net profit ratio 
2.94% 0.73% 303.80% 

Due to Increase in Current year profit compare 
to previous year. 

10 Return on Capital employed 
13.95% 10.03% 39.07% 

Due to Increase in Current year profit compare 
to previous year. 

11 Return on investment   -4.22% -117.45%   

 

Note 26: Security against Current Borrowings 

Quarter  
 Name Of Bank form which 

loan has taken  
 Particulars of 

securities provided  
  

 Amount as 
per books 
of Account 

(A)  

 Amount as 
reported in the 
quarterly stock 

statement 
submitted to bank  

(B)  

 Percentage 
of Difference  

Q1 

State of Bank of India, 
Punjab National Bank, 

Indian Bank 

Hypothecation of 
Book Debts and Stock 

Stock 
                                  
2,722.02  

                                                 
2,691.99  1.10% 

Book Debts 
                                  
8,273.09  

                                                 
8,275.63  -0.03% 

Q2 

Stock 
                                  
3,835.48  

                                                 
3,798.33  0.97% 

Book Debts 
                                  
9,827.75  

                                                 
9,827.75  0.0001% 

Q3 

Stock 
                                  
3,719.88  

                                                 
3,688.27  0.85% 

Book Debts 
                                  
9,669.62  

                                                 
9,669.68  -0.001% 

Q4 

Stock 
                                  
4,457.31  

                                                 
4,420.91  0.82% 

Book Debts 
                                  
9,821.59  

                                                 
9,821.84  -0.003% 

 

* The difference provided in Note 26 are not material and are within tolerable rate of deviation. 

Note 27: Corporate Social Responsibility 

Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

Amount Required to be Spent                                  21.04                         15.36  

Amount Spent                                  21.04                         15.36  

Shortfall (If Any)                                         -                                  -    

Nature of CSR 
Donation to Shaktishala Mahila Sangathan Samiti & 
Manguba Public Charitable Trust Donation to Karmaputra Charitable Trust 

Utlization of CSR Fund 

1.Spreading the awareness for woman rights and 
educating the general public about the social rights of 
women, political rights of women, Economic stability, 
judicial strength and all other rights of women and also 
providing training of various courses resulting into 
their empowerment. 
 
2.School Sanitation Unit Support Program. 

1. Taking care of all the cows whether 
healthy or ill by feeding them on daily basis 
and providing them required medication in 
case if need arises. 
 
2. Distribute Sports Kits And Even Help 
Rural Students And Schools 
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Note 28: Related Party Transactions 

Particulars Relationship 

Gagan N. Mittal Managing Director 

Nirmalkumar M. Mittal Director 

Ritesh K. Hada Director 

Sejalben Parmar Director 

Safalkumar H. Patel  Director 

Rashmi K. Otavani Director 

Mahesh S. Gupta Chief Financial Officer 

Dilip Matolia Company Secretary 

Shilpa G. Mittal Relative of Director 

Urmila N. Mittal Relative of Director 

Mansi N. Mittal Relative of Director 

Dropdi K. Hada Relative of Director 

Kamalkishore Hada Relative of Director 

Gagan N. Mittal HUF Director's HUF 

Unitedgreen Distilleries Private Limited Subsidiary Company 

United Eduplus Private Limited Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel  

United Polyfab Private Limited Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel  

United Techfab Limited Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel  

United Cotfab Limited Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel  

Vinod Spinners Private Limited Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel  

Vinod Cotfab Private Limited Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel  

Vishan International LLP Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel  

Vinod Texspin LLP Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel  

 

(ii)Transaction During the year with related party 

Sr. No Nature of Transactions For the Period Ended 

  31-03-2025 

1. Transactions with key management personnel/Director  

A Transactions During the Year    

(i) Director Remuneration   

  Gagan N. Mittal 18.00 

(ii) Salary  

  Mahesh S. Gupta 6.40 

  Dilip Matolia 5.43 

(iii) Interest on Unsecured Loan  

  Gagan N. Mittal 0.03 

  Ritesh K. Hada 7.20 

  Nirmalkumar M. Mittal 0.06 

(iii) Unsecured Loan Availed - 

(iv) Unsecured Loan Repaid - 

(v) Director's Sitting fees  

  Sejalben Parmar 0.60 

  Safalkumar H. Patel  0.60 

  Rashmi K. Otavani 0.60 
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B Closing Balance   

  Director Remuneration Payable - 

  Unsecured Loan  

  Gagan N. Mittal 0.37 

  Ritesh K. Hada 90.00 

  Nirmalkumar M. Mittal 0.75 

  Director's Sitting fees payable  

  Sejalben Parmar 1.08 

  Safalkumar H. Patel  0.14 

  Rashmi K. Otavani 0.54 

  Salary Payable  

  Dilip Matolia 0.35 

  Mahesh S. Gupta 0.54 

2. Transaction with Relatives of KMP  

A Transactions During the Year   

(i) Interest on Unsecured Loan  

  Shilpa G. Mittal 0.05 

  Urmila N. Mittal 0.04 

  Mansi N. Mittal 3.50 

  Dropdi K. Hada 2.25 

  Kamalkishore Hada 1.60 

  Gagan N. Mittal HUF 0.79 

(ii) Unsecured Loan Availed - 

(iii) Unsecured Loan Availed - 

(iv) Salary  

  Shilpa G. Mittal 12.00 

B Closing Balance   

  Unsecured Loan  

  Shilpa G. Mittal 0.56 

  Urmila N. Mittal 0.50 

  Mansi N. Mittal 42.08 

  Dropdi K. Hada 25.00 

  Kamalkishore Hada 20.00 

  Gagan N. Mittal HUF 7.27 

3. Transactions with Companies / Entities owned / significantly influenced by directors / relative of directors  

A Transaction During the Year   

(i) Purchases  

  United Polyfab Private Limited 904.47 

  United Techfab Limited 22,688.89 

  United Cotfab Limited 6.58 

  Vinod Spinners Private Limited 0.26 

  Vishan International LLP 12.85 

(ii) Sales  

  United Polyfab Private Limited 19,955.66 

  United Techfab Limited 205.88 

  United Cotfab Limited 5,698.23 

  Vinod Spinners Private Limited 6,490.87 

  Vinod Cotfab Private Limited 129.44 
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  Vishan International LLP 1,401.71 

(iii) Rent   

  United Polyfab Private Limited 1.20 

  United Techfab Limited 4.80 

(iii) Unsecured Loan Availed  

  United Eduplus Private Limited 100.00 

B Closing Balance   

  Trade Payables  

  United Cotfab Limited 1.92 

  Trade Receivables  

  United Polyfab Private Limited 370.79 

  United Cotfab Limited 149.90 

  Vinod Spinners Private Limited 1,330.11 

  Vinod Cotfab Private Limited 28.49 

  Vishan International LLP 477.54 

  Unsecured Loan  

  United Eduplus Private Limited 100.00 

  Prepaid Rent  

  United Techfab Limited 0.04 

 

Note 29: Defined Benefit and Contribution Plans 

(a) Defined Contribution Plans 

Particulars  
 For the Year Ended 31 March, 

2025  
 For the Year Ended 31 

March, 2024  

Contribution to Provident Fund                                          0.52                                   0.52  

Contribution to Employee State Insurance Corporation 
 The company is not liable to contribute to ESIC as per Employee 

State Insurance Act, 1948 under section 1(3) in the state of 
Gujarat, as the manufacturing unit is located in Timba, Daskroi.  

Contribution to Gratuity Fund (Plan Assets)                                             -                                        -    

 

**The company is liable to get registered under The Employee’s Provident Fund scheme, 1952 and deduct PF of its employees and 

contribute the same to EPFO. Nevertheless, the company has not taken any Universal Account Number (UAN) for EPF contribution 

and does not conform to the requirements of the said act. 

 

(b) Defined Benefit Obligations 

Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025  
 For the Year Ended 31 March, 

2024  

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of 
the Period 58.85 45.47 

Interest Cost 4.24 3.37 

Current Service Cost 13.92 13.90 

Past Service Cost - - 

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - - 

(Benefit Paid From the Fund) - - 

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - - 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations  -0.41 -3.88 
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Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the 
Period 76.60 58.85 

 

(c) Assumptions taken for Defined Benefit Obligation 

Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025  
 For the Year Ended 31 March, 
2024  

Discount Rate 6.70% 7.21% 

Salary Escalaton Rate 6% 6% 

Attrition Rate/ Average Employee Turnover Rate 10% 10% 

Mortality Rate 
Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-

14 (Urban) 
Indian Assured Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban) 

 

Note 30: Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets 

Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025  
 For the Year Ended 31 March, 

2024  

Opening Value of Deferred Liability/(Asset) 770.54 415.83 

(+/-) Tax Effect on timing difference as per Accounting 
Income and Taxable Income 

-178.96 354.71 

Closing Value of Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) 591.58 770.54 

 

Note 31: Earning Per Share 

Particulars  
 For the Year Ended 31 
March, 2025  

 For the Year Ended 31 
March, 2024  

Net Comprehensive Income Attributable to Shareholders 1,769.22 664.05 

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 2,29,51,550.00 2,14,81,605.00 

Basic earnings per share (Face value of Rs.10 each) 7.71 3.09 

Weighted average number of equity Shares (incl. dilutive) outstanding 2,29,51,550.00 2,14,81,605.00 

Diluted earnings per share (Face value of Rs.10 each) 7.71 3.09 

 

Note 32: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

Particulars   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025  
 For the Year Ended 

31 March, 2024  

(i) Contingent Liabilities   
(A) Claims against the Group / disputed liabilities not 

acknowledged as debt - - 

(B) Guarantees   
(i) Guarantees to Banks and Financial 

Institutions against credit facilities extended to third parties & 
other guarantees - - 

(ii) Performance Guarantees 2,142.00 - 

(iii) Outstanding guarantees furnished to Banks 
and Financial Institutions including in respect of Letters of 
Credits * 254.74 263.51 

        (C) Disputed Statutory Dues 4.99 - 

    
(ii) Commitments - - 
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Total 2,401.72 263.51 

   
Note 32.1 :Details of Contingent Liability   

 Type of Bank Guarantee (BG)   For the Year Ended 31 March, 2025  
 For the Year Ended 

31 March, 2024  

BG against Security Deposit for UGVCL (SBI) 97.23 97.23 

BG against Security Deposit for UGVCL (SBI) 114.16 114.16 

BG against Security Deposit for UGVCL (SBI) 43.34 45.34 

Letter of Credit against Windmill Loan(HDFC) - 6.97 

Total 254.74 263.71 

 

Details of Disputed Statutory Dues : 
(i)Tax Deducting at source (TDS) 

Sr. No   Particulars  Total Default(in Rs.) 

1 F.Y.: 2013-14 0.11 

 
2 F.Y.: 2018-19 0.01  

 
3 F.Y.: 2019-20 0.01  

 
4 F.Y.: 2020-21 0.10  

 
5 F.Y.: 2021-22 0.00  

 
6 F.Y.: 2024-25 1.19  

 
Total 

 
1.43  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Direct Tax : 

Name of the Statute  
 Nature of the 

Dues  
 Amount 
(in Rs.)  

 Period to which 
an amount relates 

(Financial Year)  

 Forum where 
dispute is pending  

 Remarks, if any  

Income Tax Act, 1961 Tax Demand 0.03 2019-20 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 

- 

Income Tax Act, 1961 Tax Demand 3.52 2017-18 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 

- 

Total   3.55 
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Note 33 : Payment to Auditor 

Nature of Payment  
 For the Year Ended 31 

March, 2025  
 For the Year Ended 31 March, 2024  

Audit Fee 5.75 5.75 

Consultancy Fee 0.50 0.40 

 

Note 34 : Non Current Asset Held for sale 

Groups of Asset held for sale   
 For the Year Ended 31 

March, 2025  
 For the Year Ended 31 

March, 2024  

Investment Property                                        34.13  - 

* Liability related to Non current asset held for sale of Rs. 76 Lakhs has been shown as Advance has been received for Investment 
property held for sale. 

 

Note 35: Significant Events Regarding the Legal Proceedings 

(i) The company had received an Adjudication Order Bearing No. Order/SV/VC/2023-24/30058-30065 dated February 29th, 2024 under 

provisions of section 15HA of Securities and Exhange Board ogf India Act, 1992, for violation of the provision of section 12A(a),(b),(c) of 

SEBI Act read with Regulations 3(a),3(b),3(c),3(d) and regulations 4(1),4(2)(a), and (e) (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade 

Practices relating to Securities Market) of SEBI Regulations, 2003, imposing a penalty of Rs. 48,00,000.  The company, along with its 

directors, have filed an appeal on April 15th, 2024 against the adjudicating officer for the amount of penalty imposed. 

(ii) The company had received Income Tax Assessment Order vide DIN: ITBA/AST/S/143(3)/2023-24/1063476558(1) on 27/03/2024 under 

section 143(3) r.w.s. 144B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 which  proposed an addition of Rs. 1,01,35,000 in the total income filed as per 

original return. The department raised a demand of Rs. 11,510 (after MAT adjustments) against which the company has filed an appeal 

on April 18th, 2024. 

(iii) The company had received Income Tax Assessment Order vide DIN: ITBA/AST/S/147/2023-24/1063361063(1) on 25/03/2024 under 

section 147 r.w.s 144B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 which proposed an addition of Rs. 1,13,41,802 in the total income filed as per original 

return. The department raised a demand of Rs. 3,52,300 (after MAT adjustments) against which the company has filed an appeal on April 

16th, 2024 
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UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED 

 

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31/03/2025 

 

1. Corporate Information 

UNITED POLYFAB GUJARAT LIMITED (the company) is a public limited company and incorporated 

under the provision of Company’s Act, 2013. The company is engaged in the manufacturing of 

Processed Yarn at Timba, Daskroi. The company caters to wide domestic market and is engaged in 

export of yarn via third party. It has acquired 99.998 % of stake in United Green Distilleries Private 

Limited, with which the financial statements are consolidated. 

 

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis, in 

accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles (Indian GAAP) and the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013. The company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all 

material respects with the Indian accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Company 

Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7m of the Companies (Account) Rules 2014.  

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those 

of previous year. 

 

2.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect 

the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual 

results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/ materialized 

 

Inventories 

Items of inventories are measured at method given below after providing for obsolescence, if 

any Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and all costs incurred in bringing them to 

their respective present location and condition. 

Cost has been determined as under: 
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1. Raw Material on FIFO basis 

2. Finished Goods – at Raw material + conversion cost 

3. Stock in process- Raw material cost and proportionate conversion cost 

4. Stores, Spares and other trading goods on weighted average cost basis.  

 

c. Cash Flow Statement 

Company has prepared Cash Flow Statement under indirect method as per Indian Accounting 

Standard -7. 

d. Depreciation on Fixed Assets  

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Straight Line Method(SLM) at the rates and in the 

manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.  

e. TangibleFixed Assets: 

Fixed Assets except Factory Building are stated at cost net of GST and Factory Building are stated at 

cost plus GST, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including 

financing costs till commencement of commercial production, net charges on foreign exchange 

contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the fixed assets are 

transferred to the Statement Profit & Loss Account. 

Subsequently expenditure related to an item of fixed assets added to its book value only if it 

increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of 

performance. All other expenses of existing fixed assets, including day to day repair and maintenance 

expenses and cost of parts replaced are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss accounts for the 

period during which such expenses are incurred. 

 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is being 

made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into 

account contractually defined terms of payment inclusive of Excise Duty and net of GST returns, 

trade allowances, rebates, taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties and 

Government. 

 

Sale of Goods:Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered and 
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the titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied: 

• The company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of the  

ownership of the goods; 

• The company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to degree usually 

associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 

• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to 

the company; and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction 

can be measured reliably 

Interest Income: Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principle 

outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. 

 

 g. Employee Benefits 

Short-Term Employee Benefits: 

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in 

Exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognized as an expense during the period 

when the employees render the services. 

 

Post-Employee Benefits: 

Defined Contribution Plans: The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund 

scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. The measurement of the 

contribution is done as Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Act, 1952.  

 

Defined Benefit Plans: The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years 

of service with the Company at the time of resignation/ superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 

days basic salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The 

gratuity liability amount is not contributed to any approved gratuity fund formed exclusively for 

gratuity payment to the employees. The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment 

benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during 

which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services. Remeasurement gains and 

losses arising from adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in 

which they occur in Other Comprehensive Income. 
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h. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are 

capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial 

period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Profit and 

Loss account. 

 

i. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax 

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the 

provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.  

Deferred tax resulting from “timing difference” between taxable and accounting income is accounted 

for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax asset is recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty 

that the asset will be realized in future. 

 

 

Provisions 

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a 

present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources 

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.Provisions are not 

discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the 

obligation at the Balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect 

the current best estimates. 

 

 k. Earningsper Share 

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number 

of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for bonus element in equity share. Diluted 

earnings per share adjust the figures used in determination of basic earnings per share to take into 

account the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are 

deemed converted as at the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. 
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l.Segment reporting 

A) Primary Business Segments: 

The Company’s Operations currently comprise of one segment i.e. manufacturing of textiles. 

B) Secondary Business Segments: 

• The company operate its business at single a place and the function of company is such that 

the company cannot be classified into segments as per IND AS 108. 

 

m. Contingent Liability: 

Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, 

the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises 

from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 

benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of amount cannot be made. 

 

(n) Financial Instruments  

i. Financial Assets  

A. Initial Recognition and Measurement  

All Financial Assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 

to the acquisition or issue of Financial Assets, which are not at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss, are 

adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of Financial Assets are recognised 

using trade date accounting. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing 

component are measured at transaction price. 

 B. Subsequent Measurement  

 a) Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost (AC)  

A Financial Asset is measured at Amortised Cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is 

to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial 

Asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent solely payments of principal and interest 

Particulars  2024-25 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Net Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders                     1769.22 

Weighted average number of equity Shares outstanding 2,29,51,550 

Basic earnings per share (Face value of Rs.10 each) (Rs) 7.71 

Weighted average number of equity Shares (incl. dilutive) 
outstanding 

2,29,51,550 

Diluted earnings per share (Face value of Rs.10 each) (Rs) 7.71 
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on the principal amount outstanding.  

b) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)  

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved 

by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the 

Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represents solely payments of principal 

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

c) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)  

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. Financial 

assets are reclassified subsequent to their recognition, if the Company changes its business model for 

managing those financial assets. Changes in business model are made and applied prospectively from 

the reclassification date following the changes in business model in accordance with principles laid down 

under Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments.  

Other Equity Investments  

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of 

Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the 

value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’. However, dividend on such equity investments are 

recognised in Statement of Profit and loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.  

D. Impairment of Financial Assets  

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating 

impairment of Financial Assets other than those measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL). 

Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount:  

• equal to 20 % of those receivables who are outstanding beyond 180 days (limited to within 365 days) 

of the bill date; 

•  equal to 50 % of those receivables who are outstanding beyond 365 days (limited to within 720 days) 

of the bill date; 

• equal to 100% of those receivables who are outstanding beyond 720 days (expected credit losses that 

result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument).  

For Trade Receivables the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime 

losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default 

rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these 

historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.  

 ii. Financial Liabilities  

A. Initial Recognition and Measurement  
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All Financial Liabilities are recognised at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly attributable 

cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. 

 B. Subsequent Measurement  

Financial Liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other 

payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair 

value due to the short maturity of these instruments.  

iii. Derecognition of Financial Instruments  

The Company derecognizes a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

Financial Asset expire or it transfers the Financial Asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition 

under Ind AS 109. A Financial liability (or a part of a Financial liability) is derecognized from the 

Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or 

expires.  

iv. Offsetting  

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet 

when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends, 

either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

 
                                                                                                                            For and on behalf of  
                                                                                                                            Rajiv Shah & Associates 
                                                                                                                            Chartered Accountants  
   
 

 

         Rajiv C Shah(Partner) 
Place: Ahmedabad                                                     FRN No.: 108454W  
Date:26/05/2025                 M. No.: 043261 
               UDIN: 25043261BMKYZC9005 
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